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One. Report to the Shareholders 

 
Dear Shareholders, 

We wish you all safety and health, and thank you for your long-term support and encouragement. The 

pandemic outbreak continued in 2022. In addition, global inflation has caused interest rates to rise and the 

exchange rate of the Taiwan dollar to depreciate, posing serious challenges to the operation of all walks of life. 

The operating revenue and net loss after tax in 2022 were NT$ 1,134,234 thousand and NT$ 19,191 thousand, 

respectively. The performance worsened compared to the previous year. 

The main reason for the decrease in revenue and net loss after tax in 2022 was due to the global inflation 

caused by the war between Russia and Ukraine since 2022 Q1, slowing down the global consumption, 

especially the consumer goods industries. The inventory level of end products in the United States is too high. 

As a result, the price of raw materials has fallen sharply since Q2, and the sales volume has declined sharply. 

Most of the Company's products are focused on the consumer goods related to the textile and sports shoes 

industries. The impact on revenue and profit was relatively serious. .  

The global economy continued to decline in 2023. Faced with such a difficult environment, Yong Shun 

Chemical will quickly adjust its pace in response to the impact brought by changes in the overall market. In 

2023, Yong Shun's operational decisions have developed toward the following three directions: 

(I) Adjust bulk raw material procurement strategy 

Due to the huge and rapid fluctuation of raw material market prices in the past two years, the 

existing suppliers have had to adjust the agility of raw material procurement, increase the flexibility 

of each production line, and reduce the inventory of raw materials and finished goods to avoid the 

impact of fluctuations in raw materials and finished products price pressures. 

(II) Continue to explore markets other than Mainland China 

As the production base for consumer goods industry-related products has been gradually relocated 

from mainland China to other regions, the sales market is adjusted in a timely manner to actively 

win new customer bases in Japan, South Korea, India, Southeast Asia, Vietnam and Indonesia. 

(III) Sustainability 

Continue to promote the spirit of environmental protection, green energy and other related 

sustainable development, and incorporate them into the corporate culture of Yong Shun. The 

Company strives to carry out various feasible plans to build a sustainable environment, social 

participation, and corporate governance as the target vision, to implement the concept of corporate 

sustainable development, toward a new life of sustainability and to jointly create a better future. 

Looking ahead to the new era of global inflation in 2023, the global economy is full of severe tests and 

challenges. The management team of Yong Shun will still adhere to the concept of stability and pragmatism, 

follow the 2023 business policy, and lead employees to move forward together toward the goal, and face the 

future with a positive and determined attitude. We are committed to continuing deliver results. We would like 

to thank all shareholders, customers, suppliers, and partners for their full support and companionship in our 

growth. We look forward to working with our shareholders towards a prosperous and sustainable future. I 

would like to express my deepest gratitude. 
 

I wish every shareholder 

 

Good health and all the best 

 

 

Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung
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I. 2022 Business Report 

(I) Business Plan Implementation Result 

The consolidated revenue in 2022 was NT$1,134,234 thousand, a decrease of 1.25% from 

NT$1,148,633 thousand in 2021; the net loss after tax in 2022 was NT$19,191 thousand, a 

decrease of 124.80% from NT$77,381 thousand in 2021; the loss per share were NT$0.31, 

down 124.41% from NT$1.27 in 2021. 

 

(II) Budget Implementation Status                         

The Company did not disclose financial forecasts in 2022. 

 

(III) Financial Income, Expenditure, and Profitability Analysis 

1. Financial Income and Expenditure 

Unit: NT$ thousand 

Item\Year 2022 2021 

Net Income (loss) Before Tax (23,355) 93,392 

Net Cash Inflow (outflow) From 

Operating Activities 
117,631 

(22,292) 

Net Cash Inflows (outflows) From 

Investments 
(11,676) 

(12,770) 

Net Cash Inflow (outflow) From 

Financial Activities 
(121,588) 

(38,751) 

Net Increase (decrease) in Cash and 

Cash Equivalents 
(15,633) 

(73,813) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the 

Beginning of the Year 
353,700 

427,513 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End 

of the Year 
338,067 

353,700 

2. Profitability Analysis 

Item/Year 2022 2021 

Liability to Asset Ratio 16.27% 19.05% 

Ratio of Long-term Funds to Property, Plants, 

and Equipment 

330.51% 344.48% 

Current Ratio 698.81% 500.63% 

Quick Ratio 464.84% 342.44% 

Return on Assets -1.37% 5.62% 

Return on Equity -1.74% 6.87% 

As a Percentage of 

Paid-in Capital 

Percentage % 

Operating Income -4.44% 14.77% 

Pre-tax Profit -3.83% 15.30% 

Net Profit Rate -1.69% 6.74% 

Earnings per Share (Loss) (NT$0.31) NT$1.27 

(IV) R&D Overview 

1. Development of various grades of unsaturated polyester resin   

2. Development of various grades of polyester polyol resin 

3. Development of various grades of FRP finished products 

4. Development of various grades of hot melt rubber and shoe rubber related products 
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II. Summary of the 2023 Business Plan     

The Company mainly produces various alkyd resin products and downstream derivatives, and 

actively invests in the development of other synthetic resin products. The Company's 2023 Business 

Plan will not only focus on the R&D of chemicals with a high market demand and technical threshold, 

but also focus on enhancing the enterprise value. 

(I) Business Policy 

1. The R&D of new products will focus on green energy, solvent-free, and other potential 

industries, and local R&D energy will be used to quickly respond to customer needs and 

accelerate the speed of products to market . 

2. The product structure will be focused on the production of biomass, new start-up industries, 

and high added value. The Company will avoid the Red Ocean market and seek 

opportunities in the Blue Ocean market. 

3. Market Structure: Explore emerging markets in Northeast Asia, Southeast Asia, and India 

to reduce dependence on the mainland market. At the same time, cooperate strategically 

with international manufacturers in Asia for more comprehensive business growth. 

 

(II) Expected Sales Volume and Basis 

The expected sales volume of the Company's main products in 2023 is as follows: 

Main Products Unit 
Estimated Sales 

Volume in 2023 

Unsaturated Polyester Resin Metric Ton 2,820  

Polyester Polyol Resin Metric Ton 7,800  

Acid Resistant Coating Metric Ton 660  

Chemical Tank Unit 12  

Hot Melt Adhesive and Shoe Adhesive 

Related Products 
Metric Ton 2,498 

 

(III) Important Production and Marketing Policies 

1. Develop new products and key raw materials. 

2. Enhance customer relationships and increase sales volume and market share. 

3. Estimate automation solutions for labor-intensive manufacturing processes. 

4. Strive for energy conservation and carbon reduction. 

5. The significant fluctuation of raw materials in recent years has made the effective 

adjustment of inventory of raw materials an important subject. 

 

III. The Impact of the External Competitive Environment, the Regulatory Environment, and the 
Overall Business Environment on the Development Strategy of the Company in the Future 

The Company has always upheld integrity, and focused on its own business. In the face of global 

competition and market changes, Yong Shun will develop markets and deploy key materials with a 

clear management philosophy, internal resource integration and business strategies to develop new 

products, avoid unnecessary price cutting competition, and continue to optimize the manufacturing 

process to meet the challenges of the uncertain environment in the future. 

      

 

Chairman: Tsai Cheng-Fung 

Manager: Lin Cheng-Chien 

Head of Accounting: Chen, Fu-Mei 
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Two. Company Profile 

 

I. Date of Establishment: July 31, 1965 

II. Organization and Operations: 

1965: Taiwan’s petrochemical raw materials relied heavily on imports, costing an enormous 

amount in foreign exchange. In light of this, the late Chairman, Mr. Lin, Jui-Tien, raised 

NT$360,000 from a number of strong-willed investors, families and friends and established 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. at No.1-4, Xiwei Street, Sanchong City, Taipei County for 

the manufacturing of resins. 

1973: In the beginning, the Company’s primary business was resin for Formica and polyester resin 

for FRP. As the original plant was not big enough, the Company relocated to its current site 

at No. 681, Haishan Rd., Kengkou Vil., Luzhu Dist., Taoyuan City in 1973. 

1974: In July 1974, the Company’s capital was increased to NT$7 million to increase machinery 

and equipment. 

1977: In June 1977, Zion Enterprise Co., Ltd. was merged, increasing the Company’s capital to 

NT$10 million. In November, the Company increased its capital by NT$25 million in cash, 

with capital totaling NT$35 million. 

1978: In April 1978, Yonggu Reinforced Plastic Co., Ltd. was merged, increasing the Company’s 

capital to NT50 million. In June, the Company increased its capital by NT$50 million in cash, 

with capital totaling NT$100 million. Mr. Chin, Chia-Liu, the new chairman, was elected 

and the former Chairman Lin became vice chairman. Products such as FRP chemical tanks 

and FRP pipes were added. 

1979: In November 1979, the Company increased its capital by NT$50 million in cash, with capital 

totaling NT$150 million. Production and sales of polyester polyol resin were added. 

1980: In December 1980, the Company increased its capital by NT$10.5 million in cash and 

transferred its surplus of NT$19.5 million, increasing its capital to NT$180 million.  

1994: In April 1994, the Company increased its capital to NT$198 million with a revaluation of 

land. 25 tons of automated production equipment was added to improve various production 

processes. 

1995: In June 2005, the Company applied to the Securities and Future Commission for a public 

offering and transferred its surplus of NT$51,480,000 to capital, increasing its capital to 

NT$249,480,000. 40 tons of automated equipment for producing unsaturated polyester resin 

was added. 

1996: In 1996, NT$62,370,000 was transferred to capital from surplus, increasing the Company’s 

capital to NT$311,850,000. 

1997: In 1997, NT$31,185,000 was transferred to capital from surplus, totaling the Company's 

paid-in capital to NT$343,035,000. In August, the Company passed ISO 9002 quality 

assurance certification of DNV. 

1998: In 1998, NT$56,125,780 was transferred to capital from surplus and NT$839,220 was 

transferred to capital from employee bonus, with paid-in capital totaling NT$400 million. 
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1999: In 1999, NT$80 million was transferred to capital from surplus, with paid-in capital totaling 

NT$480 million. 40 tons of automated equipment for producing unsaturated polyester resin 

and equipment for producing thermoplastic polyurethane resin were added. On February 24, 

1999, the Company became an OTC-listed company. 

2000: In 2000, NT$96 million was transferred to capital from surplus, with paid-in capital totaling 

NT$576 million. 25 tons of automated equipment for producing polyester polyol resin and 

equipment for producing thermoplastic polyurethane resin were added. 

2001: In 2021, NT$34,560,000 was transferred to capital from surplus, with paid-in capital totaling 

NT$610,560,000. 

2003: In August 2003, the Company passed ISO 9001:2000 quality assurance certification of DNV. 

2009: In August 2009, the Company passed ISO 9001:2008 quality assurance certification of DNV. 

2010: In January 2010, the Company established the subsidiary Sun Yang Global Co., Ltd., Ltd. 

for the manufacturing and sale of shoe and hot melt adhesive, with paid-in capital of NT$100 

million. In August, shares issued by Yong Shun were fully converted into paperless shares. 

2015: In November 2015, the subsidiary Sun Yang decreased its capital by NT$20 million to make 

up for losses, with paid-in capital totaling NT$80 million.  

2019: In May 2019, the subsidiary Sun Yang decreased its capital by NT$40 million to make up 

for losses. In the same period, the subsidiary Sun Yang increased its capital by NT$40 million 

in cash to improve its financial structure, with paid-in capital totaling NT$80 million. 

2020: In May 2020, the subsidiary Sun Yang decreased its capital by NT$30 million to make up 

for losses, with paid-in capital totaling NT$50 million. 
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Three. Corporate Governance Report 

I. Organizational system 

(I) Company Organizational System Chart: 

 

Shareholder 

structure

Board of 

Directors

Audit Committee

Remuneration 

Committee

Chairman

Audit Office

General Manager

General 

Manager s Office

Manufacturing 

Division
R&D Department

Administrative 

Division

General 

Affairs 

Department

Procurement 

Department

HR 

Department

Information 

Department

Sales 

Department

Reinforced 

Plastics 

Department

Quality 

Assurance 

Department

Plant Affairs 

Department

Manufacturing 

Department

Finance 

Department
 

(II) Tasks of Principal Divisions 

 

Department 

Name 
Tasks 

Audit Office Investigation and assessment of internal control operations. 

General 

Manager’s 

Office 

Responsible for coordinating various affairs assigned by the general manager. 

Administrative 

Division 

The Company’s administrative management department, it is responsible for 

coordinating finance, information, procurement, general affairs, personnel, 

business and stock affairs. 

Finance 

Department 

Responsible for coordinating the Company’s financial scheduling, accounting 

records and budget creation. 
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Information 

Department 

Responsible for the planning, design and maintenance of the Company’s computer 

software and hardware. 

Procurement 

Department 

Responsible for coordinating the procurement and acceptance of the Company’s 

raw materials, materials and equipment. 

General Affairs 

Department 
Responsible for managing the Company’s general affairs. 

HR Department 
Responsible for matters associated with the Company’s HR planning, personnel 

management and stock affairs. 

Sales 

Department 
Responsible for sales, payment collection and after-sales service. 

Manufacturing 

Department 

The “Manufacturing Department”, “Plant Affairs Department”, “Quality 

Assurance Department”, and “Reinforced Plastics Department” have been set up 

under the Manufacturing Division. 

R&D 

Department 

Responsible for developing new products and technologies, and improving the 

quality of products. 
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II. Information on directors, the general manager, assistant general managers, deputy assistant general managers, and heads of divisions and branch 
units 

(I) Directors: 

1. Information of Directors 

April 20, 2023 

Title 

Nationality 

or Place of 

Registration 

Name 
Gender 

and Age 

Date of Election 

(Appointment) 

Term 

of 

Office 

Date of First 

Election 

Shareholding at 

Time of Election 

Current 

Shareholding 

Current 

Shareholding of 

Spouses and 

Minor Children 

Shareholding in 

the Name of 

Others 

Principal 

Work 

Experience 

and Academic 

Qualifications 

Positions Held 

Concurrently 

in the 

Company and 

Other 

Companies 

Other Officers, Directors or 

Supervisors with Spousal 

Relationships or within Second 

Degree of Kinship 
Rem

ark 

Number 

of Shares 

Share-

holding 

Ratio 

Number 

of Shares 

Share-

holding 

Ratio 

Number 

of Shares 

Share-

holding 

Ratio 

Number 

of Shares 

Share-

holding 

ratio 

Title Name 
Relations

hip 

Chairman R.O.C.  

Tsai, 

Cheng-

Fung 

Male 

(75 and 

over) 

  

2022.06.09 3 1980.12.15 3,492,490 5.72% 3,492,490 5.72% 2,340,235 3.83% None None 

College of 

Business and 

Management, 

Tamkang 

University 

Chairman of 

the 

Company/Dire

ctor of Sun 

Yang 

Director 
Tsai, Chi-

Lung 

Relative 

within 

second 

degree of 

kinship 

 

 

Director R.O.C.  
Tsai, Chi-

Lung 

Male 

(75 and 

over) 

  

2022.06.09 3 1980.12.15 1,432,527 2.35% 1,432,527 2.35% None None None None 

Taipei Kainan 

High School 

Director of Ji-

Liang 

Construction 

Co., Ltd. 

Supervisor of 

Sun Yang 
Chairman 

Tsai, 

Cheng-

Fung 

Relative 

within 

second 

degree of 

kinship 
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Director R.O.C.  

Lin, 

Cheng-

Chien 

Male 

(66 to 75) 

  

2022.06.09 3 2022.06.09 4,205,821 6.89% 4,205,821 6.89% 1,800,621 2.95% None None 

Doctoral 

degree 

awarded in 

Edinburgh 

General 

Manager of 

the Company 

Director 
Lin, Tsyr-

Huan 

Relative 

within 

second 

degree of 

kinship 

 

Director R.O.C.  
Lin, Tsyr-

Huan 

Female 

(66 to 75) 

  

2022.06.09 3 1979.11.15 6,057,327 9.92% 5,657,327 9.27% None None None None 

Department of 

Wood 

Utilization, 

University of 

Washington 

Assistant 

General 

Manager of 

the 

Company/Chai

rman of 

NaturalTEL 

Communicatio

n Co., 

Ltd./Chairwo

man of Sun 

Yang 

Director 

Lin, 

Cheng-

Chien 

Relative 

within 

second 

degree of 

kinship 

 

Director R.O.C.  
Lin, Jih-

Cheng 

Male 

(66 to 75) 

  

2022.06.09 3 2022.06.09 27,810 0.05% 27,810 0.05% None None None None 

Department of 

Diplomacy, 

National 

Chengchi 

University 

Person in 

charge, Cheng 

Ming Land 

Administration 

Agency 

None None None 
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Director 
R.O.C. 

  

Lin Wu, 

Fang-Mei 

Female 

(66 to 75) 

  

2022.06.09 3 2004.06.10 91,080 0.15% 91,080 0.15% None None None None 

Datong 

Commercial 

High School 

Assistant 

Manager of 

the 

Company/Dire

ctor of Sun 

Yang 

None None None 

 

Independen

t Director 

R.O.C. 

  

Cheng, 

Chit-Man 

Male 

(66 to 75) 

  

2022.06.09 3 2016.6.13 0 0% 0 0% None None None None 

 J.D., 

University of 

Wisconsin-

Madison 

Campus 

CEO, Think 

Tank, U.S.A. 
None None None 

 

Independen

t Director 

R.O.C. 

  

Chin, 

Chang-

Ming 

Male 

(56 to 65) 

  

2022.06.09 3 2016.6.13 0 0% 0 0% None None None None 

 EMBA, 

National 

Taiwan 

University 

Host 

Accountant, 

KENWILLCP

A UNITED 

CPAS FIRM 

None None None 

 

Independen

t Director 

R.O.C. 

  

Chou, 

Man-

Chin 

Male 

(66 to 75) 

  

2022.06.09 3 2019.6.12 0 0% 0 0% None None None None 

 Wei Cheng 

CPAs Firm, 

National 

Chung Hsing 

University 

Associate, 

KENWILLCP

A UNITED 

CPAS FIRM 

None None None 

 

 

2. Directors acting as representatives of corporate shareholders: None. 

  



 

11 

3. Professional qualifications and independence of directors 

Criteria 

 

Name 

(Note 1) 

Professional qualifications and experience State of independence (Note 3) 

Number of other public 

companies in which the 

individual concurrently 

serves as independent 

director 

Lecturer or above in 

commerce, law, finance, 

accounting or subjects 

required by the business 

of the Company in 

public or private 

colleges or universities 

Passed the qualification 

examination with proper 

licensing by the national 

Government Apparatus as 

court judge, prosecutor, 

lawyers, certified public 

accountant or other 

professional designations 

required by the business of 

the Company 

Required work 

experience in commerce, 

law, finance, accounting 

or others required by the 

Company 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

Chairman: Tsai, 

Cheng-Fung 
  v v     v v v v  v v None 

Director: Tsai, Chi-

Lung 
  v v    v v v v v  v v None 

Director: Lin, Cheng-

Chien 
  v      v v v v  v v None 

Director: Lin, Tsyr-

Huan 
  v      v v v v  v v None 

Director: Lin, Jih-

Cheng 
 v v v  v v v v v v v v v v None 

Director: Lin Wu, 

Fang-Mei 
  v   v v v v v v v v v v None 

Independent Director: 

Cheng, Chit-Man 
v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v None 

Independent Director: 

Chin, Chang-Ming 
 v v v v v v v v v v v v v v 1 

Independent Director: 

Chou, Man-Chin 
 v v v v v v v v v v v v v v None 
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Note 1: Professional qualifications and experience: Specify the professional qualifications and experience of individual directors. If the person is a member of the Audit Committee with accounting or financial 

expertise, their accounting or financial background and work experience shall be specified, while also stating whether they meet the circumstances provided in Article 30 of the Company Act. 

Note 2: For independent directors, their state of independence must be specified, including but not limited to whether they, their spouses, or second-degree relatives serve as a director, supervisor or employee 

in the company or affiliates; the proportion of shares held by the independent director themselves, their spouses or relatives within second degree of kinship (or in the name of others); whether the 

independent director serves as a director, supervisor or an employee of a company with which the company has a specific relationship (refer to Article 3, Paragraph 1, Subparagraphs 5 to 8 of the 

Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and Compliance Matters for Public Companies); and amount of remuneration received for commercial, legal, financial and accounting 

services provided to the company or its affiliates in the past two years. 

Note 3: Please mark the box with “v” if the director met the following conditions during active duty and two years prior to the date elected. 

(1) Not an employee of the company or any of its affiliates. 

(2) Not a director or supervisor of the company or any of its affiliates (this restriction does not apply to independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the 

local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent). 

(3) Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person's spouse, minor children, or held by the person under others' names, in an aggregate of 1% or more of 

the total number of issued shares of the company or ranking in the top 10 in holdings. 

(4) Not a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the third degree of kinship, of a manager under (1) or any of the persons under (2) or (3). 

(5) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder that directly holds 5% or more of the total number of issued shares of the company, or that ranks among the top five in 

shareholdings, or that designates its representative to serve as a director or supervisor of the company under Article 27, paragraph 1 or 2 of the Company Act (this restriction does not apply to 

independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the company and its parent or subsidiary or a 

subsidiary of the same parent). 

(6) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of another company if a majority of the company's director seats or voting shares and those of any other company are controlled by the same person (this 

restriction does not apply to independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the company and 

its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent). 

(7) Not a director, supervisor or employee of another company or institution in which the chairperson, general manager or personnel with equivalent position are the same person or have a spousal 

relationship (this restriction does not apply to independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, 

the company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent). 

(8) Not a director, supervisor, manager or shareholder holding more than 5% of the shares of a specific company or institution in a business or financial relationship with the company (the same does 

not apply, however, in cases the specific company or institution holds more than 20% but less than 50% of the company’s total issued shares, and the person is an independent directors appointed 

in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent). 

(9) Not a professional, owner, partner, director, supervisor, or manager of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company, or institution that provides auditing services to the company or any affiliate of 

the company, or that provided commercial, legal, financial, accounting or related services to the company or any affiliate of the company for which the provider received cumulative compensation 

exceeding NT$500,000 in the most recent two fiscal years, or a spouse thereof. However, this restriction does not apply to a member of the Compensation Committee, Public Tender Offer Review 

Committee, or Special Committee for merger/consolidation and acquisition, who exercises powers pursuant to the Act or the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act or related laws or regulations. 

(10) Not a spouse or relative within the second degree of kinship of another director. 

(11) Does not meet any of the conditions stated in Article 30 of the Company Act. 

(12) Not elected as a government, legal person or its representative in accordance with Article 27 of the Company Act 
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4. Diversity and Independence of the Board of Directors 

(1) Diversity of the Board of Directors 

According to the Company's rules, the composition of the Board of Directors shall emphasize gender equality and shall generally possess the 

necessary knowledge, skills, and competencies to perform their duties. In order to achieve the ideal goal of corporate governance, the Board of 

Directors as a whole shall have the following capabilities: 

1. The capability to make judgments about operations.  

2. Business management capability. 

3. Leadership and decision-making capability. 

4. Knowledge of the industry.  

5. An international market perspective. 

6. Financial capability. 

7. Crisis management capability. 

The Company held a shareholders' meeting on June 9, 2022 to re-elect the members of the 20th session of the Board. The strong lineup of directors 

not only supervises the management team on behalf of shareholders, but also assists the Company in the evaluation and judgment of major decisions. 

All directors of the Company are elected by the shareholders' meeting after resolution reached by the Board of Directors. The Company emphasizes 

the diversity of the composition of the Board of Directors, including different ages, genders, industry experience, professional knowledge and 

capabilities. Members of the Board of Directors have extensive experience and expertise in the fields of finance, law, accounting, information 

technology, commerce, and management. In terms of independent directors, the Company's 20th term of independent directors has professional 

knowledge and rich practical experience in finance, law, and accounting, and can greatly improve the Company's implementation of risk management, 

internal control and internal audit. Independent directors are independent and forward-looking, and give full play to their supporting and supervisory 

functions to continue to promote the long-term development of the Company's strategic operations. The Company currently has an Audit Committee 

and a Remuneration Committee convened by independent directors. Independent directors of the Company are deeply involved in the operation of 

the Company through various functional committees to exert corporate governance and protect the interests of the public. The 20th Board of Directors 

consists of 9 directors (including 3 independent directors) who possess the abilities of leadership and decision-making, business management, and 

international market outlook, as well as rich industry experience and professionalism. Directors with rich industry experience are Chairman Tsai, 

Cheng-Fung; Director Tsai, Chi-Lung; Director Lin, Tsyr-Huan, and Director Lin Wu, Fang-Mei. Director Lin, Cheng-Chien served Academia Sinica 
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for many years and made many contributions to cloud and AI information technology. Director Lin, Jih-Cheng is a professional land administration 

agent with extensive experience in land development, construction and investment in the building field. Independent Directors Cheng, Chit-Man is 

a practicing lawyer with professional legal ability and rich practical experience. Independent directors Chin, Chang-Ming and Chou, Man-Chin have 

practical experience as accountants and have rich practical experience in finance and banking, administration and management. 

All members of the 20th Board of Directors of the Company are natives. The average age of directors is 66-75 years old. There is 1 director aged 

56-65, 6 directors aged 66-75, and 2 directors are over the age of 75. The composition of the Board also emphasizes gender equality. Among the 6 

non-independent directors, 2 are women (accounting for 33.33%), which is in line with the principle of gender diversity of the Board. Overall, the 

current Board of Directors includes 2 women, accounting for 22.22% of the board members. The Company will continue to strive for gender equality 

in the composition of the Board of Directors in the future. 
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The implementation of the diversity policy for all members of the Board: 

  

 

(2) Independence of the Board of Directors 

The Company’s Board of Directors consists of nine members, including three independent directors, accounting for 33.33% of the Board; the 

Board possesses the independence to perform duties. 

No members of the Board are related as defined in Paragraph 3 of Article 26-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act. 

Paragraph 3 of Article 26-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act: Except where the Competent Authority has granted approval, the following 

relationships may not exist among more than half of the company's directors: 

I. Spouse. 

II. A relative within the second degree of kinship.  

 

Diversification 

Item 

 

Director 

Name 

Gender 

Age 

Nationality 

Concurrentl

y an 

employee of 

the 

Company 

Ability 

to make 

operation

al 

judgment

s 

Ability to 

perform 

accounting 

and 

financial 

analysis 

Ability to 

conduct 

managemen

t 

administrati

on 

Ability to 

conduct 

crisis 

manageme

nt 

Knowled

ge of the 

industry 

An 

internatio

nal 

market 

perspecti

ve 

Ability 

to lead 

Abili

ty to 

make 

decis

ions 

Knowled

ge and 

ability of 

risk 

managem

ent 

56 

to 

65 

66 

to 

75 

Over 

75 

Director: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Male   v R.O.C.  v v v v v v v v v 

Director: Tsai, Chi-Lung Male   v R.O.C.  v v v v v v v v v 

Director: Lin, Cheng-Chien Male  v  R.O.C. v v v v v v v v v v 

Director: Lin, Tsyr-Huan Female  v  R.O.C. v v v v v v v v v v 

Director: Lin, Jih-Cheng Male  v  R.O.C.  v  v v  v v v v 

Director: Lin Wu, Fang-Mei Female  v  R.O.C. v v v v v v v v v v 

Independent Director: Cheng, 

Chit-Man 
Male  v  R.O.C.  v  v v  v v v v 

Independent Director: Chin, 

Chang-Ming 
Male v   R.O.C.  v v v v  v v v v 

Independent Director: Chou, 

Man-Chin 
Male  v  R.O.C.  v v v v  v v v v 
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(II) Information on the general manager, assistant general managers, deputy assistant general managers, and heads of all the divisions and branch units: 
April 20, 2023 

Job title Nationality Name Gender 

Date of 

Election 

(Appoint-

ment) 

Shareholding 

Shareholding of 

Spouses and Minor 

Children 

Shareholding in 

the Name of 

Others 

Principal 

Work 

Experience 

and Academic 

Qualifications 

Positions Held 

Concurrently in 

Other 

Companies 

In a Spousal Relationship or 

Familial Relationship Within 

the Second Degree of Kinship 

With a Manager 

  
Remarks 

Number of 

Shares 

Share-

holding 

ratio 

Number of 

Shares 

Share-

holding 

ratio 

Number 

of 

Shares 

Share-

holding 

ratio 

Job title Name 
Relation

-ship 

General 

Manager 
R.O.C.  

Lin, 

Cheng-

Chien 

Male 2020.08 4,205,821 6.89% 1,800,621 2.95% None None 

Doctoral 

degree 

awarded in 

Edinburgh 

None 

Assistant 

General 

Manager 

Lin, 

Tsyr-

Huan 

Relative 

within 

second 

degree 

of 

kinship 

 

Assistant 

General 

Manager 

R.O.C.  

Lin, 

Tsyr-

Huan 

Female 1993. 10 5,657,327 9.27% None None None None 

Department of 

Wood 

Utilization, 

University of 

Washington 

Chairman of 

NaturalTEL 

Communication 

Co., 

Ltd./Chairwoma

n of Sun Yang 

General 

Manager 

Lin, 

Cheng-

Chien 

Relative 

within 

second 

degree 

of 

kinship 

 

Deputy 

Assistant 

General 

Manager 

R.O.C.  

Liu, 

Ching-

Ming 

Male 2005.06 11,000 0.02% None None None None 

Department of 

Economics, 

Soochow 

University 

None None None None 
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Sales 

Manager 
R.O.C.  

Lin, Tai-

Yuan 
Male 1996.09 7,072 0.01% 3,264 0.01% None None 

Department of 

Economics, 

Chinese 

Culture 

University 

None None None None 

 

Finance 

Manager 
R.O.C.  

Chen, 

Fu-Mei 
Female 2004.03   763 0.00% None None None None 

Department of 

Accounting, 

Soochow 

University 

None None None None 

 

Sales 

Manager 
R.O.C.  

Lin, 

Chin-

Shu 

Male 2010.04 63,487 0.10% 20,740 0.03% None None 

Department of 

International 

Trade, College 

of Business 

and 

Management, 

Tamkang 

University 

None None None None 

 

Plant 

Director 
R.O.C.  

Hsu, 

Chin-

Cheng 

Male 2021.07     0 0.00%   254 0.00% None None 

Cheng-Kung 

Vocational 

Senior High 

School 

None None None None 

 

Vice Plant 

Director 
R.O.C.  

Lin, 

Chen-

Feng 

Male 2022.05     0 0.00%  0 0.00% None None 

Taichung 

Industrial 

High School  

None None None None 
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III. Remuneration paid in most recent fiscal year to directors, supervisors, the general manager, and assistant general managers 

(I) Remuneration to general directors and independent directors  

December 31, 2022; Unit: NT$ thousand 

Title Name 

Remuneration to directors Total sum of A, B, C 

and D and their 

proportion to profit 

after tax 

(Note 6) 

Remuneration received as concurrent employee Total sum of A, B, 

C, D, E, F and G and 

their proportion to 

profit after tax  

(Note 6) 

Remuneration 

received from 

investees other 

than 

subsidiaries or 

the parent 

company 

Remuneration (A) 

(Note 1) 
Pension (B) 

Remuneration to 

directors (C) 

(Note 2) 

Expenses for 

services rendered 

(D) (Note 3) 

Salaries, bonuses and 

special allowances 

(E) (Note 4) 

Pension (F)  
Remuneration to employees (G) 

(Note 5) 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

included in 

the financial 

statements 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

included in 

the financial 

statements 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

included in 

the financial 

statements 

 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

included in 

the financial 

statements 

 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

included in 

the financial 

statements 

 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

included in 

the financial 

statements 

 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

included in 

the financial 

statements 

The Company 

All companies 

included in the 

financial statements The 

Company 

All 

companies 

included in 

the financial 

statements 

Amount 

in cash 

Amount 

in stock 

Amount 

in cash 

Amount 

in stock 

Director 
Tsai, 

Cheng-Fung 

0 0 0 0 0 0 60 60 
60 

-0.31% 

60 

-0.31% 
7,223 7,223 0 0 0 0 0 0 

7,283 

-37.95% 

7,283 

-37.95% 
None 

Director 
Tsai, Chi-

Lung 

Director 
Lin, Cheng-

Chien 

Director 
Lin, Tsyr-

Huan 

Director 
Lin, Jih-

Cheng 

Director 
Lin Wu, 

Fang-Mei 

Independent 

Director 

Cheng, 

Chit-Man 

279 0 0 0 0 0 102 102 
381 

-1.99% 

381 

-1.99% 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

381 

-1.99% 

381 

-1.99% 
None 

Independent 

Director 

Chin, 

Chang-

Ming 

Independent 

Director 

Chou, Man-

Chin 

1. Please provide in detail the policy, system, standards and structure of remuneration to independent directors, and describe the relevance to the amount of remuneration according to the responsibilities, risks, time invested and other factors: 

When directors (including independent directors) perform their duties in the Company, regardless of the Company's operating profit or loss, the company may pay remuneration. The Board of Directors is authorized to negotiate their remuneration on the basis of their 

participation in the Company's operations and the value of their contributions, not exceeding the highest salary standard set by the Company's salary assessment regulations. When there is a surplus, in accordance with Article 34 of the Articles of Incorporation, no more 

than 4% shall be allocated as remuneration to directors and supervisors. However, if the Company still has a cumulative loss (including adjustment of the undistributed retained earnings amount) from previous years and makes a profit in the current year, it shall first make 

up for the loss, and then appropriate from the balance the remuneration to directors and supervisors to be distributed in cash according to the proportion in the preceding paragraph. The distribution shall be implemented by the resolution of the Board of Directors with the 

presence of more than two-thirds of the directors and the approval of more than half of the directors present, and the resolution shall be reported to the shareholders' meeting. 

2. In addition to the disclosure in the table above, in the most recent fiscal year, remuneration received by directors (e.g., serving as a non-employee consultant of the parent company/companies in the financial statements/investment businesses): None. 
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Range of Remuneration Table 

Range of remuneration paid to each director 

Director name 

Total remuneration (A+B+C+D) Total remuneration (A+B+C+D+E+F+G) 

The Company 
All companies included in the 

financial statements  
The Company 

All companies included in the 
financial statements  

Below NT$1,000,000 

Tsai, Cheng-Fung; Tsai, Chi-Lung; 

Lin, Cheng-Chien; Lin, Tsyr-Huan; 

Lin, Jih-Cheng; Lin Wu, Fang-Mei; 

Cheng, Chit-Man; Chin, Chang-Ming; 

Chou, Man-Chin 

Tsai, Cheng-Fung; Tsai, Chi-Lung; 

Lin, Cheng-Chien; Lin, Tsyr-Huan; 

Lin, Jih-Cheng; Lin Wu, Fang-Mei; 

Cheng, Chit-Man; Chin, Chang-Ming; 

Chou, Man-Chin 

Tsai, Chi-Lung; Lin, Jih-Cheng; Lin 

Wu, Fang-Mei; Cheng, Chit-Man; 

Chin, Chang-Ming; Chou, Man-Chin 

Tsai, Chi-Lung; Lin, Jih-Cheng; Lin 

Wu, Fang-Mei; Cheng, Chit-Man; 

Chin, Chang-Ming; Chou, Man-Chin 

NT$1,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$2,000,000 (exclusive) None None Lin, Cheng-Chien Lin, Cheng-Chien 

NT$2,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$3,500,000 (exclusive) None None Tsai, Cheng-Fung; Lin, Tsyr-Huan Tsai, Cheng-Fung; Lin, Tsyr-Huan 

NT$3,500,000 (inclusive) to NT$5,000,000 (exclusive) None None None None 

NT$5,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$10,000,000 (exclusive) None None None None 

NT$10,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$15,000,000 (exclusive) None None None None 

NT$15,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$30,000,000 (exclusive) None None None None 

NT$30,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$50,000,000 (exclusive) None None None None 

NT$50,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$100,000,000 (exclusive) None None None None 

Over NT$100,000,000 None None None None 

Total 9 9 9 9 

Note 1: Refers to the remuneration of directors in 2022 (including directors’ salary, job bonus, severance payment, various bonuses, incentives, etc.). 

Note 2: This is the amount of remuneration to directors from the motion for earnings distribution approved by the Board of Directors prior to the shareholders’ meeting in 2022. 

Note 3: Refers to a director’s relevant business execution expenses in 2022 (including transportation fees, special expenses, various allowances, dormitory, vehicle allocation, etc.). When providing 

housing, cars and other means of transportation or exclusive personal expenses, the nature and cost of the assets provided, the actual or fair market price rent, fuel and other payments 

shall be disclosed. In addition, if there is a driver, please note the relevant remuneration paid by the Company to the driver; however it is not to be included in the remuneration. 

Note 4: Refers to the salary, job bonus, severance payment, various bonuses, incentive payments, transportation fees, special expenses, various allowances, dormitory, vehicle allocation and other 

in-kind provisions received in 2022 by directors who also serve as employees (including also serving as a general manager, assistant general manager, other manager and employee). 

When providing housing, cars and other means of transportation or exclusive personal expenses, the nature and cost of the assets provided, the actual or fair market price rent, fuel and 

other payments shall be disclosed. In addition, if there is a driver, please note the relevant remuneration paid by the Company to the driver; however it is not to be included in the 

remuneration. 

Note 5: Refers to employee remuneration received in 2022 (including shares and cash) by directors who also serve as employees (including concurrently serving as general manager, assistant 

general manager, other managers and employees). The amount of employee remuneration from the motion for earnings distribution approved by the Board of Directors prior to shareholders’ 

meeting in the most recent fiscal year shall be disclosed. If it is not possible to estimate, the proposed distribution amount for this year shall be calculated based on the actual distribution 

amount last year, and the attached Table 1-3 shall be filled in. 

Note 6: Profit after tax refers to loss after tax for 2022. 

Note 7: Director Lin, Cheng-Chien was newly appointed on June 9, 2022. 
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(II) Remuneration to supervisors 
December 31, 2022; Unit: NT$ thousand 

Title Name 

Remunerations for supervisors 

Total sum of A, B and C and their 

proportion to profit after tax (Note 4) 

Remuneration 

received from 

investees other 

than subsidiaries 

or the parent 

company 

Remuneration (A) (Note 1) 
Remunerations for supervisors 

(B (Note 2) 
Expenses for services rendered 

(C) (Note 3) 

The Company 

All companies 
included in 

the financial 
statements 

The Company 

All companies 
included in 
the financial 
statements 

The Company 

All companies 
included in 

the financial 
statements 

The Company 

All companies 
included in 

the financial 
statements 

Supervisor Tsai, Chi-Lung 
0 0 0 0 24 24 

24 

-0.13% 

24 

-0.13% 
None 

Supervisor Lin, Jih-Cheng 

Range of Remuneration Table 

Range of remuneration paid to each supervisor 

Name of supervisor 

Total remuneration (A+B+C) 

The Company All companies included in the financial statements 

Below NT$1,000,000 Tsai, Chi-Lung; Lin, Jih-Cheng Tsai, Chi-Lung; Lin, Jih-Cheng 

NT$1,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$2,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$2,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$3,500,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$3,500,000 (inclusive) to NT$5,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$5,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$10,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$10,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$15,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$15,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$30,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$30,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$50,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$50,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$100,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

Over NT$100,000,000 None None 

Total 2 2 

Note 1: Refers to the remuneration of supervisors in 2022 (including supervisors’ salary, job bonus, severance payment, various bonuses, incentives, etc.). 

Note 2: This is the amount of remuneration to supervisors from the motion for earnings distribution approved by the Board of Directors prior to the shareholders’ meeting in 2022. 

Note 3: Refers to a supervisor’s relevant business execution expenses in 2022 (including transportation fees, special expenses, various allowances, dormitory, vehicle allocation, etc.). When 

providing housing, cars and other means of transportation or exclusive personal expenses, the nature and cost of the assets provided, the actual or fair market price rent, fuel and other 

payments shall be disclosed. In addition, if there is a driver, please note the relevant remuneration paid by the Company to the driver; however it is not to be included in the remuneration. 

Note 4: Profit after tax refers to loss after tax for 2022. 
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Note 5: On June 9, 2022, it was resolved in the shareholders' meeting that supervisors would no longer be appointed, and that an Audit Committee composed of all independent directors was to 

be set up to replace supervisors. 

 

(III) Remuneration to general managers and assistant general managers 

December 31, 2022; Unit: NT$ thousand 

Title Name 

Salary (A) Pension (B) Bonuses and special 

allowances (C) 
Remuneration to employees (D) 

Total sum of A, B, C 

and D and their 

proportion to profit 

after tax (%) 

Remuneration 

received from 

investees 

other than 

subsidiaries 

or the parent 

company 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

included in 

the financial 

statements 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

included in 

the financial 

statements 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

included in 

the financial 

statements 

The Company 

 All companies 

included in the 

financial statements The 

Company 

All 

companies 

included 

in the 

financial 

statements 

Amount 

in cash 

Amount 

in stock 

Amount 

in cash 

Amount 

in stock 

General 

Manager 

Lin, 

Cheng-

Chien 
3,110 3,110 0 0 1,328 1,328 0 0 0 0 

4,438 

-23.13% 

4,438 

-23.13% 
None 

Assistant 

General 

Manager 

Lin, Tsyr-

Huan 

Range of Remuneration Table 

Range of remuneration paid to each general manager and 

assistant general manager of the Company 

Name of the general manager and assistant general manager 

The Company All companies included in the financial statements 

Below NT$1,000,000 None None 

NT$1,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$2,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$2,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$3,500,000 (exclusive) Lin, Cheng-Chien; Lin, Tsyr-Huan Lin, Cheng-Chien; Lin, Tsyr-Huan 

NT$3,500,000 (inclusive) to NT$5,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$5,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$10,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$10,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$15,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$15,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$30,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$30,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$50,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$50,000,000 (inclusive) to NT$100,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

Over NT$100,000,000 None None 

Total 2 2 
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Note 1: Refers to the 2022 salary, job bonus, severance payment for the general manager and assistant general managers 

Note 2: Refers to various bonuses, incentive payments, transportation fees, special expenses, various allowances, dormitory, vehicle allocation and other in-kind provisions and other remuneration 

received by the general manager and assistant general managers in 2022. When providing housing, cars and other means of transportation or exclusive personal expenses, the nature and 

cost of the assets provided, the actual or fair market price rent, fuel and other payments shall be disclosed. In addition, if there is a driver, please note the relevant remuneration paid by 

the Company to the driver; however it is not to be included in the remuneration. 

Note 3: Refers to the amount of employee remuneration (including shares and cash) approved by the Board of Directors for distribution to the general manager and assistant general managers in 

2022. If it is not possible to estimate, the proposed distribution amount for this year shall be calculated based on the actual distribution amount last year, and the attached Table 1-3 shall 

be filled in. 

Note 4: Profit after tax refers to loss after tax for 2022. 
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(IV) Names of managers who receive employee remuneration and distribution status 
December 31, 2022; Unit: NT$ thousand 

General 
manager  

Title 
Name 

(note 1) 
Amount in 

stock 
Amount in 

cash 
Total 

Percentage of total 

amount to profit 

after tax (%) 

General 

Manager 

Lin, Cheng-

Chien 

0 0 0 0% 

Assistant 

General 

Manager 

Lin, Tsyr-

Huan 

Deputy 

Assistant 

General 

Manager 

Liu, Ching-

Ming 

Sales 

Manager 

Lin, Tai-

Yuan 

Finance 

Manager 

Chen, Fu-

Mei 

Sales 

Manager 

Lin, Chin-

Shu 

Plant 

Director 

Hsu, Chin-

Cheng 

Vice Plant 

Director 

Lin, Chen-

Feng 

 

Note 1: Names and titles shall be disclosed separately, whereas the amount of remuneration may be 

disclosed in aggregate. 

Note 2: Refers to the amount of employee remuneration (including shares and cash) from earnings 

distribution approved by the Board of Directors for distribution to the managers during the most 

recent fiscal year. If it is not possible to estimate, the proposed distribution amount for this year 

shall be calculated based on the actual distribution amount last year. Profit after tax refers to profit 

after tax in the most recent fiscal year. If IFRSs have been adopted, profit after tax refers to the 

profit after tax on the parent company only or individual financial statements. 

Note 3: The scope of managers is defined on the basis of Letter Tai-Cai-Zheng-(III)-Zi No. 0920001301 

dated March 27, 2003, which is specified below: 

(1) General manager and equivalent rank 

(2) Assistant general manager and equivalent rank 

(3) Deputy assistant general manager and equivalent rank 

(4) Head of the finance department 

(5) Head of the accounting department 

(6) Persons who manage company affairs and are authorized to affix the signature on behalf of the 

company 

Note 4: For directors, general managers and assistant general managers who receive employee remuneration 

(including shares and cash), details have been disclosed in this Table in addition to Table 1-2. 
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(V) Analysis of the total remuneration paid to directors, supervisors, the general manager and 

assistant general managers of the Company in the most recent 2 fiscal years by the Company 

and all companies in the consolidated financial statements as a percentage of the net profit after 

tax of the parent company only financial statements or individual financial statements; and 

explanation of the policies, standards and combinations of remuneration paid, procedures for 

determining remuneration, and their correlation with business performance and future risks: 
Unit: NT$ thousand 

2022 2021 

The Company 
All companies included in 

the financial statements 
The Company 

All companies included in 
the financial statements 

Total 
remuneratio

n paid to 
directors, 

supervisors, 
the general 

manager and 
assistant 
general 

managers 

Percentage 
of net profit 

after tax 

Total 
remuneratio

n paid to 
directors, 

supervisors, 
the general 

manager and 
assistant 
general 

managers 

Percentage 
of net profit 

after tax 

Total 
remuneratio

n paid to 
directors, 

supervisors, 
the general 

manager and 
assistant 
general 

managers 

Percentage 

of net profit 

after tax 

Total 
remuneratio

n paid to 
directors, 

supervisors, 
the general 

manager and 
assistant 
general 

managers 

Percentage 
of net profit 

after tax 

8,494 -44.26% 8,494 -44.26% 10,838 14.01% 10,838 14.01% 

 

1. In the consolidated financial statements, except for the remuneration paid by the Company to directors, 

supervisors, the general manager and assistant general managers, the other consolidated companies do not 

pay remuneration; hence the analysis is the same as the Company’s. 

2. The decrease in remuneration to directors, supervisors, the general manager and assistant general managers 

in 2022 compared to 2021 was mainly due to the decrease in loss after tax in 2022. 

3. Policy for remuneration to directors, supervisors, the general manager and assistant general managers is as 

follows: 

When directors and supervisors perform their duties in the Company, regardless of the Company's 

operating profit or loss, the company may pay remuneration, and the Board of Directors is authorized to 

negotiate their remuneration on the basis of their participation in the Company's operations and the value of 

their contributions, not exceeding the highest salary standard set by the Company's salary assessment 

regulations. 

When there is a surplus, in accordance with Article 34 of the Articles of Incorporation, the Company 

shall first set aside 1% to 3% as remuneration to employees and no more than 4% as remuneration to directors 

and supervisors. However, if the Company still has a cumulative loss (including adjustment of the 

undistributed retained earnings amount) from previous years and makes a profit in the current year, it shall 

first make up for the loss, and then appropriate from the balance the remuneration to directors and supervisors 

to be distributed in cash according to the proportion in the preceding paragraph, and the remuneration to 

employees to be distributed in stock or cash. The distribution shall be implemented by the resolution of the 

Board of Directors with the presence of more than two-thirds of the directors and the approval of more than 

half of the directors present, and the resolution shall be reported to the shareholders' meeting. 
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The appointment of the general manager shall be submitted by the chairperson to the Board of Directors 

for a majority approval; the same procedure applies for the dismissal. The other managers shall be appointed 

according to the company’s HR regulations; the same procedure applies for their dismissal. Manager 

remuneration shall be handled in accordance with Article 29 of the Company Act and the company’s salary 

payment regulation. 

4. The Company has formulated the “Manager Remuneration Standards” and remuneration to managers is 

subject to their work performance, academic skills and work attitude, with a “performance appraisal form” 

issued. 

5. Remuneration to directors and supervisors is determined subject to the Articles of Incorporation and the 

performance evaluation report of the Board of Directors. 

6. As the percentage of the total remuneration to directors, supervisors, the general manager and assistant 

general managers to profit after tax was not significant in 2022 and the total amount was not high, it had no 

significant impact on the Company's business performance or future risks. 
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IV. State of corporate governance operations: 

(I) State of Board of Directors operations: 

6 meetings of the Board of Directors were held in the most recent fiscal year (A), with the 
attendance of the directors and supervisors as follows: 

Title Name 
Actual 

attendance (B) 

Attendance 

by proxy 

Actual attendance rate (%) 

(B/A) (Notes 1 and 2) 
Remarks 

Chairman 
Tsai, Cheng-

Fung 
6 0 100% 

Re-elected on 

June 9, 2022 

Director 
Tsai, Chi-

Lung 
4 0 100% 

Newly appointed 

on June 9, 2022 

Director 
Lin, Cheng-

Chien 
4 0 100% 

Newly appointed 

on June 9, 2022 

Director 
Lin, Tsyr-

Huan 
6 0 100% 

Re-elected on 

June 9, 2022 

Director 
Lin, Jih-

Cheng 
4 0 100% 

Newly appointed 

on June 9, 2022 

Director 
Lin Wu, 

Fang-Mei 
6 0 100% 

Re-elected on 

June 9, 2022 

Independent 

Director 

Cheng, Chit-

Man 
6 0 100% 

Re-elected on 

June 9, 2022 

Independent 

Director 

Chin, Chang-

Ming 
6 0 100% 

Re-elected on 

June 9, 2022 

Independent 

Director 

Chou, Man-

Chin 
5 1 83% 

Re-elected on 

June 9, 2022 

Director Yu, Hui-Ling 2 0 100% 
Stepped down on 

June 9, 2022 

Supervisor 
Tsai, Chi-

Lung 
2 0 100% 

Stepped down on 

June 9, 2022 

Supervisor 
Lin, Jih-

Cheng 
2 0 100% 

Stepped down on 

June 9, 2022 

Other information required:  

I. Matters listed in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act and other resolutions adopted 

by the Board of Directors’ meetings with records or stated in writing of independent director 

expresses an objection or reservation, should state the date, session, the topic discussed, all 

independent directors’ opinion and how the company has responded to such opinions: The 

independent directors did not express any objections to any matters. 

II. Recusal of the directors from motions involving their interest, specify the name of the director, 

the content of the motion, the reason for recusal, and the participation in voting: None. 

III. TWSE/TPEx companies shall disclose information including the evaluation cycle, evaluation 

period, evaluation scope, evaluation method and evaluation content of the Board’s self (or peer) 

evaluation:  

Evaluation 

cycle 

Evaluation 

period 

Evaluation 

scope 

Evaluation 

method 

Evaluation content 
Evaluation results 

Once a year 2022.01.01- 

2022.12.31 

Performanc

e evaluation 

of the Board 

of Directors 

Internal self-

evaluation 

of the Board 

of Directors 

1. Participation in the operation 

of the Company 

2. Quality of the Board of 

Directors' decision making 

3. Composition and structure of 

the Board of Directors 

4. Election and continuing 

education of the directors 

5. Internal control 

The measurement 

results covered 5 

major aspects, 

meeting corporate 

governance 

requirements. 
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Once a year 2022.01.01- 

2022.12.31 

Performanc

e evaluation 

of individual 

Board 

members 

Self-

evaluation 

of Board 

members 

1. Grasp of the goals and 

missions of the Company 

2. Awareness of the duties of a 

director 

3. Participation in the operation 

of the Company 

4. Management of internal 

relationships and 

communication 

5. The director's 

professionalism and continuing 

education 

6. Internal control 

The measurement 

results covered 6 

major aspects, 

meeting corporate 

governance 

requirements. 

IV. Objectives (e.g., forming an audit committee, improving information transparency) to enhance 

Board functions in the most recent fiscal year and evaluation of the implementation: The Company 

has formulated the “Regulations for Board of Directors Meetings” in accordance with the 

“Regulations Governing Procedure for Board of Directors Meetings of Public Companies”, to 

hold Board meetings, record the meeting process and prepare a meeting book according to these 

Regulations. Moreover, important resolutions are disclosed on the Company’s website to facilitate 

information transparency. Please see the Company’s website at www.yongshunchemical.com / 

Company Profile / Internal Regulations / Regulations for Board of Directors Meetings and 

Company News / Important Resolutions by the Board of Directors. We have also set up an Audit 

Committee and Remuneration Committee to help the Board of Directors fulfill its monitoring 

duties. 

Note 1: If a director resigns before the end of the year, the resignation date shall be indicated in the Remarks 

field. The actual attendance rate (%) is calculated on the basis of the number of board meetings held 

during each director’s term and the number of meetings actually attended by that director. 

Note 2: If there was a reelection of the directors before the end of the year, the new and former directors and 

supervisors must be stated in the Remarks field, and indicate if a director is old, new, or reelected, as 

well as the reelection date. The percentage (%) of actual attendance will be calculated based on the 

number of actual attendance.  

Note 3:  

(1) The term of office of the original directors and supervisors of the Company expired on June 11, 

2022. 

An election of directors (including independent directors) took place at the general 

shareholders’ meeting, electing nine directors (including three independent directors) for a term of 

three years from June 9, 2022 to June 8, 2025, and may be eligible for re-election. 

(2) In line with Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and the Financial Supervisory 

Commission's Jin-Guan-Zheng-Fa-Zi Order No. 10703452331, as the Company has established an 

Audit Committee, no supervisors will be established as required by law. 

After the election, an Audit Committee consisting of all the independent directors will replace 

the supervisors. 
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(II) State of Audit Committee operations:  

1. The Audit Committee of the Company consists of all Independent Directors with a total of 3 

members. 

2. The term of office of the current members: June 21, 2022 to June 8, 2025. 2 (A) meetings of 

the Audit Committee were held in the most recent year. 

The attendance is as follows: 

Title Name 
Actual 

attendance (B) 

Attendance by  

proxy 

Actual attendance rate 

(%) (B/A) 

(Notes 1 and 2) 

Remarks 

Member 
Cheng, 

Chit-Man 
2 

0 
100％ 

Newly appointed 

on June 21, 2022 

Member 

Chin, 

Chang-

Ming 

2 

0 
100％ 

Newly appointed 

on June 21, 2022 

Convener 
Chou, Man-

Chin 
2 

0 
100％ 

Newly appointed 
on June 21, 2022 

Other information required: 

I. For audit committee meetings that meet any of the following descriptions, state the date and session of 

the audit committee meeting held, the topic discussed, and how the company has handled the audit 

committee's opinions. 

(I) Matters listed in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act. 

(II) Other matters that have not been approved by the Audit Committee but have been approved by 

more than two-thirds of all directors: None.          

 

II. Recusal of interest-conflicting motions by independent directors: None. 

III. State of communication between independent directors, chief internal auditor and accountants (such as 

materials matters, methods and results of communications on the Company's finances and business 

Date Summary of Important Contents Resolution 

Adopted 

2022.08.10 1. Motion for discussion of the consolidated financial statements for 

2022 Q2. 

Approved by 

resolution 

2022.11.09 1. Motion for discussion of the consolidated financial statements for 

2022 Q3. 

2. Motion for discussion on amendments to the schedule for the 

preparation of financial statements. 

3. Motion for discussion of amendments to the Company’s "Procedures 

for the Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Managers" of 

the Company and rename it as "Procedures for Management of 

Remuneration to Directors and Managers". 

4. Motion for discussion of addition of the guidelines and amendments 

to the "Procedures for Management of the Preparation of Financial 

Statements". 

Discussion of the Partial Provisions. 

5. Motion for discussion of amendments to the Company's "Procedures 

for Handling Material Inside Information". 

Approved by 

resolution 

Approved by 

resolution 

Approved by 

resolution 

 

 

Approved by 

resolution 

 

 

Approved by 

resolution 
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status): The Company's audit unit provides audit reports to the Board of Directors and management for 

review on a regular basis, and delivers them to each independent director for review in accordance with 

the regulations, as a means to implement the monitoring mechanism of the Audit Committee. The 

implementation of the internal control system is continuously tracked. When the Company convenes a 

board meeting, the attending independent directors are able to communicate and discuss any opinions 

they have. If a significant violation is found or the Company is likely to suffer material damage, the 

relevant personnel must immediately prepare a report to be submitted to the independent directors. In 

addition, the independent directors communicated with the CPAs regarding the key audit matters of 

the Company's 2022 parent company only financial statements and consolidated financial statements. 

Note 1: If a particular independent director resigned from office prior to the end of the fiscal year, specify 

the date of resignation in the field provided. The actual attendance rate (%) shall be calculated on 

the basis of the number of sessions held during the term of office as a member of the Audit 

Committee and the number of meetings actually attended by that member. 

Note 2: If there was a reelection of the independent directors before the end of the year, the new and former 

independent directors must be stated in the Remarks field, and indicate if an independent director 

is former, new, or reelected, as well as the reelection date. The actual attendance rate (%) shall be 

calculated on the basis of the number of sessions held during the term of office as a member of the 

Audit Committee and the number of meetings actually attended by that member. 
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(III) State of corporate governance operations and any difference from the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies 

and the reasons for such difference 

 

Evaluation Item 

State of Operations Difference from the Corporate 
Governance Best Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx 
Listed Companies and the 
reasons for such difference 

Yes No Summary 

I. Has the company established and disclosed its 
rules of corporate governance in accordance with 
the Corporate Governance Best Practice 
Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies? 

 v The Company has not yet established rules of corporate 
governance in accordance with the Corporate Governance 
Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 
Companies. 

This will be handled in the 
future according to the 
development needs of the 
Company and regulations. 

II. Equity structure and shareholders’ equity 
(I) Has the company formulated internal operating 

procedures to handle shareholders’ proposals, 
doubts, disputes, and litigation matters and have 
the procedures been implemented accordingly? 

 
(II) Does the company possess a list of the company’s 

major shareholders and a list of the ultimate 
controllers of its major shareholders? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(III) Has the company established and implemented 

risk control and firewall mechanisms between 
itself and affiliates? 

 
 
 
(IV) Has the company set up internal regulations to 

prohibit internal personnel from utilizing 
undisclosed information to trade securities? 

 

v 
 
 
 
 

v 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

v 

 

 

 

 

 

v 
 
 

 

 

 
(I) In accordance with the Company’s internal 

procedures, shareholder proposals, doubts, disputes, 
and litigation matters are handled by the spokesperson 
and deputy spokesperson; legal issues are handled by 
legal advisors. 

(II) Our shareholders are mainly natural persons and most 
of them are original shareholders. Yuanta Stock 
Agency Department is responsible for dealing with 
stock affairs. Each month, we have dedicated 
personnel in charge of understanding the transfer of 
shares of directors, supervisors and major 
shareholders, which is reported to the stock affairs 
agent. Our information is disclosed in accordance with 
the regulations and we possess a list of the major 
shareholders and a list of the ultimate controllers of 
our major shareholders. 

(III) The management duties between the assets of the 
Company and affiliates are clearly and independently 
divided. The management is handled according to the 
Supervision Rules of Subsidiaries. There have been no 
non-arm’s length transactions and we have established 
an internal control system to regulate such matters. 

(IV) We have formulated the “Procedures for Handling 
Material Inside Information” and continues to promote 
the prohibition of insiders from using non-public 
information for trading marketable securities to further 
prevent insider trading. 

 
(I) No significant difference. 
 
 
 
(II) No significant difference. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(III) No difference. 
 
 
 
 
 
(IV) No difference. 
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Evaluation Item 

State of Operations Difference from the Corporate 
Governance Best Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx 
Listed Companies and the 
reasons for such difference 

Yes No Summary 

III. Composition and duties of the Board of Directors 
(I) Has the board formulated a diversity policy and 

specific management objectives, and have they 
been implemented? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(II) Apart from the remuneration committee and audit 

committee, has the company voluntarily 
established other functional committees? 
 

(III) Has the company established regulations 
governing the board performance evaluation and 
its evaluation methods, and does the company 
conduct a performance evaluation each year, 
submit the performance evaluation results to the 
Board of Directors and use them as a reference in 
determining the remuneration of individual 
directors, and a nomination for reappointment? 

(IV) Does the company regularly assess the 
independence of its CPAs? 

 
v 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
v 
 
 
 
 
 
 
v 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

v 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(I) The Company’s Board of Directors consists of 9 

directors (including 3 independent directors), with a 
term of office of 3 years. The selection of the directors 
is subject to the practical operational needs of the scale 
of the Company’s business development while taking 
into account the overall configuration of the Board of 
Directors. The Board members must possess the 
knowledge, experience, skills and qualities necessary 
to perform their duties. All members of the Board are 
Taiwanese, with an average age of over 50. There are 
2 female Board members, accounting for 22.22% of all 
members. The implementation of the diversity policy 
for all members of the Board: Please refer to p. 13 and 
the Company’s website. 

(II) We have formed a Remuneration Committee and 
Audit Committee, and have not yet set up other 
functional committees. 
 

(III) The Company has established Regulations Governing 
the Board Performance Evaluation and its evaluation 
methods, and submits the performance evaluation 
results to the Board of Directors and uses them as a 
reference in determining the remuneration of 
individual directors, and a nomination for 
reappointment. (Please refer to p. 26) 

(IV) We appoint professional, responsible and independent 
CPAs. The Board of Directors assesses the 
independence and suitability of the CPAs once a year. 
In most recent review was completed on June 21, 
2022. Eight factors that may have affected the 
independence of CPAs were assessed and reviewed. 
(Please refer to p. 55) 

 
(I) No significant difference 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(II) This will be handled in the 

future according to the 
development needs of the 
Company and regulations. 

(III) No difference. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(IV) No difference. 



 

32 

Evaluation Item 

State of Operations Difference from the Corporate 
Governance Best Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx 
Listed Companies and the 
reasons for such difference 

Yes No Summary 

IV. Has the company designated an appropriate 
number of personnel that specialize in corporate 
governance affairs (including but not limited to 
providing directors/supervisors with the 
information needed to perform their duties, 
convening board meetings and shareholders' 
meetings in accordance with laws and regulations, 
preparing board meeting and shareholders' 
meeting minutes, etc.)? 

v  The Company's Finance Department is the concurrent 
corporate governance unit that specializes in corporate 
governance affairs (including providing 
directors/supervisors with the information needed to 
perform their duties, convening board meetings and 
shareholders' meetings in accordance with laws and 
regulations, preparing board meeting and shareholders' 
meeting minutes, as well as helping directors in their 
appointment and continuing education and regulatory 
compliance). 

The Company's Board of 
Directors approved the 
appointment of a Corporate 
Governance Officer on 
November 9, 2022, who is 
responsible for corporate 
governance-related affairs. 
The appointment took effect 
on January 3, 2023. 

V. Has the company established channels for 
communication with stakeholders (including but 
not limited to shareholders, employees, 
customers, and suppliers), and set up a section for 
stakeholders on the official website of the 
company, and does the company properly respond 
to the concerns of the stakeholders on issues 
related to corporate social responsibility? 

v 
 

 There is a section on the Company’s website dedicated to 
“stakeholders” and an email is available for responding to 
important corporate social responsibility concerns of 
stakeholders. The contents include “Operating Procedures 
for Transactions of the Group, Specific Companies and 
Related Parties” and corporate social responsibility reports. 
Moreover, in accordance with the regulations set forth by 
the competent authorities, the Company regularly releases 
its revenue and financial information so that stakeholders 
have enough information to make judgments to protect their 
rights and interests. 

No difference. 

VI. Does the company engage a professional stock 
transfer agency to handle affairs related to 
shareholders’ meetings? 

v  The Company has engaged “Yuanta Stock Agency 
Department” to handle shareholders’ affairs and other stock-
related matters. 

No difference. 

VII. Information Disclosure 
(I) Does the company have a website set up where its 

financial business and corporate governance 
information is disclosed? 

 
 
(II) Has the company adopted other information 

disclosure methods (e.g., establishing an English 
website, designating a responsible person for 
collecting and disclosing information of the 
company, implementing a spokesperson system, 
and uploading the proceedings of investors 
conferences on its website, etc.)? 

 
v 
 
 
 
 
v 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(I) We have set up a website to introduce the Company and 

related business, and disclosed a variety of financial 
and business information for shareholders and the 
public on the Market Observation Post System (MOPS) 
as required by the competent authority. 

(II) The Company has set up dedicated personnel 
responsible for information collection and disclosure. 
We also implement a spokesperson system to ensure 
information that may affect the rights and interests of 
shareholders and the decision-making of stakeholders 
is disclosed in a timely and appropriate manner. 

 
(I) No difference. 
 
 
 
 
(II) No difference. 
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Evaluation Item 

State of Operations Difference from the Corporate 
Governance Best Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx 
Listed Companies and the 
reasons for such difference 

Yes No Summary 

(III) Has the company published and reported its 
annual financial statements within two months 
after the end of a fiscal year, and published and 
reported its financial statements for the first, 
second, and third quarters, as well as its operating 
status for each month before the specified 
deadline? 

v (III) The Company publishes and reports its annual financial 
statements before the specified deadline (within 3 
months) in accordance with the provisions stipulated in 
Article 36 of the Securities and Exchange Act. 
Moreover, we publish and report our financial 
statements for the first, second, and third quarters as 
well as our operating status for each month before the 
specified deadline. For the disclosure related to the 
above information, please visit the Market Observation 
Post System (MOPS) and the Company’s website. 

(III) This will be handled in 
the future according to 
the development needs 
of the Company and 
regulations. 

VIII. Is there any other important information that is 
helpful in understanding the corporate governance 
operation of the company (including but not 
limited to employee rights and benefits, employee 
care, investor relations, supplier relations, 
stakeholder rights, continuing education of the 
directors and supervisors, implementation of the 
risk management policy and risk measurement 
criteria, implementation of customer policy, and 
the purchase of liability insurance for directors 
and supervisors by the company)? 

v  (I) The “Regulations for Board of Directors Meetings” 
specify that motions listed in the Board of Directors 
meeting may not be voted on if there is a risk of 
harming the Company’s interests due to conflicts of 
interest. 

(II) The Company’s directors and managers are covered 
with US$1,000,000 liability insurance. 

(III) With a proactive attitude, we encourage directors and 
supervisors to participate in continuing education. 
Professional courses taken by them have been uploaded 
onto the MOPS. 

(IV) The attendance of directors and supervisors at Board of 
Directors meetings is good; the attendance has been 
uploaded onto the MOPS. 

(V) Implementation of risk management policy and risk 
measurement criteria: According to the nature of the 
business, the Company’s management of various 
operational risks is handled by relevant management 
units. The Audit Office evaluates existing or potential 
risks of various operations to formulate a risk-oriented 
annual audit plan. The implementation and 
management units for risks are as follows: 
General Manager’s Office: Following the demands of 
the general manager, the General Manager’s Officer is 
responsible for management decision planning and 
evaluating investment benefits to reduce management 
and investment risks. 

No significant difference. 
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Evaluation Item 

State of Operations Difference from the Corporate 
Governance Best Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx 
Listed Companies and the 
reasons for such difference 

Yes No Summary 

Manufacturing Department: Responsible for 
production, manufacturing, equipment repair and 
maintenance, work rules, and labor safety and health 
management to reduce production risks.  
Sales Department: Responsible for marketing planning, 
product promotion, and mastering market information 
and trends to reduce business and operational risks. 
Procurement Department: Responsible for 
understanding raw material information and price 
changes to reduce material disruption risks. 
Information Department: Responsible for information 
security control and maintenance to reduce information 
security risks. 
Finance Department: Responsible for financial 
scheduling and utilization and establishing a hedging 
mechanism to reduce financial risks. 

(VI) Implementation of consumer or customer protection: 
The Company has passed ISO 9001 quality assurance 
certification of DNV. At Yong Shun, we have excellent 
quality control and have established credit management 
to build inclusive information of customers. Through 
our credit check mechanism, we provide appropriate 
credit lines and collection conditions to ensure that 
transactions are smooth and secure.    

(VII) We have established a labor union organization as a 
means to protect the rights and interests of employees. 
We hold labor union meetings on a regular basis to 
proactively form a communication bridge between us 
and our employees. Each year, we engage a specialized 
clinic to perform health checkups for employees. We 
have set up an Employee Welfare Committee and we 
contribute to the welfare fund and employee pension in 
accordance with the law. Relevant employee benefit 
measures and a retirement system are detailed in the 
“Work Rules” and can be found on the Company 
website. For the continuing education and training of 
employees, please refer to p. 75. 
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Evaluation Item 

State of Operations Difference from the Corporate 
Governance Best Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx 
Listed Companies and the 
reasons for such difference 

Yes No Summary 

(VIII) We have formulated the “Procedures for Handling 
Material Inside Information” to establish the 
Company’s internal material information handling 
process and disclosure mechanism. By doing this, we 
ensure the consistency and accuracy of the information 
we release to the public. Each year, we also promote 
these Procedures to directors, supervisors, managers 
and all employees. These Procedures are disclosed on 
the Company's website. www.yongshunchemical.com / 
Company Profile / Internal Regulations / Procedures 
for Handling Material Inside Information, for 
employees and related persons. 
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Evaluation Item 

State of Operations Difference from the Corporate 
Governance Best Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx 
Listed Companies and the 
reasons for such difference 

Yes No Summary 

IX. Please explain the improvements made, based on the latest Corporate Governance Evaluation results published by TWSE Corporate Governance Center in 
the most recent fiscal year, and propose priorities for enhancement matters and measures for any issues that are to be improved: 

Title Contents of Indicator Whether It 

Has Been 

Improved 

Priority Enhancement Matters and Measures 

2.2 Has the company established a diversity policy for the board 

members, and disclosed the specific management goals and 

implementation of the diversity policy on the company's website 

and annual report? 

Yes The Company has disclosed the specific management 

goals and the current progress of the diversity policy of 

the Board of Directors in the annual report and on the 

website. 

2.10 
Did the company disclose the professional qualifications and 

experience of the members of the audit committee, and the annual 

work focus and operation status? 

Yes The professional qualifications and experience of the 

members of the Audit Committee, the annual work focus, 

and operation status of the Audit Committee are 

disclosed in the annual report and on the website. 

2.15 
Did the company disclose the independent communication 

between independent directors and internal audit supervisors and 

accountants (such as the methods, matters and results of the 

communication on the company's financial reports and financial 

business status) on the company's website? 

Yes The Company discloses the independent communication 

between independent directors and internal audit 

supervisors and accountants (such as the methods, 

matters and results of the communication on the 

company's financial reports and financial business 

status) on the Company’s website. 

3.17 
Is the financial, business, and corporate governance-related 

information disclosed on the company’s website? 

Yes The financial, business, and corporate governance-

related information is disclosed on the Company’s 

website. 

4.4 Did the company compile and upload its CSR report on the 

Market Observation Post System and its website before the end of 

September in accordance with the internationally accepted 

guidelines for preparation of reports? [If the sustainability report 

discloses relevant ESG information with reference to SASB 

standards, one point will be added to the total score. ] 

Yes The Company's sustainability report discloses relevant 

ESG information with reference to SASB standards, 

including the SASB industry index comparison table. 

4.14 Did the company disclose the status of the identified stakeholders, 

issues of concern, communication channels, and response 

methods on its website or in the annual report? [If the status of 

communication with various stakeholders is reported to the Board 

of Directors on a regular basis, one point will be added to the total 

score. ] 

Yes The Company disclosed the status of the identified 

stakeholders, issues of concern, communication 

channels, and response methods on its website and was 

reported to the Board of Directors (at least once a year). 
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(IV) If the company has established a Remuneration Committee, its composition and state of 

operations shall be disclosed:  
1. Information on Remuneration Committee members: 

Identity 

(Note 1) 

Criteria 

 

 

Name 

 

Professional qualifications and 

experience 

State of independence (Note 2) 

Number of 

other public 

companies 

in which the 

individual 

concurrently 

serves as 

independent 

director 

Rem

arks 

 

E

n

d 

o

f 

A

r

t

i

c

l

e 

 

Lecturer or 

above in 

commerce, 

law, 

finance, 

accounting 

or subjects 

required by 

the 

business of 

the 

Company 

in public or 

private 

colleges or 

universities 

Passed the 

qualification 

examination 

with proper 

licensing by the 

national 

Government 

Apparatus as 

court judge, 

prosecutor, 

lawyers, 

certified public 

accountant or 

other 

professional 

designations 

required by the 

business of the 

Company 

Required 

work 

experienc

e in 

commerc

e, law, 

finance, 

accountin

g or 

others 

required 

by the 

Company 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

Independ

ent 

Director 

Cheng, 

Chit-Man 
v v v v v v v v v v v v v None  

Independ

ent 

Director 

Chin, 

Chang-

Ming 

 v v v v v v v v v v v v 1  

Independ

ent 

Director 

Chou, 

Man-Chin 
 v v v v v v v v v v v v None  

Note 1: For “Identity”, please fill in director, independent director or other. 

Note 2: Please mark the box with “v” if the members met the following conditions during active duty and two years prior to 

the date elected. 

(1) Not an employee of the company or any of its affiliates. 

(2) Not a director or supervisor of the company or any of its affiliates (this restriction does not apply to independent 

directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and 

concurrently serving as such at, the company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent). 

(3) Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person's spouse, minor 

children, or held by the person under others' names, in an aggregate of 1% or more of the total number of issued 

shares of the company or ranking in the top 10 in holdings. 

(4) Not a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the third degree of kinship, 

of a manager under (1) or any of the persons under (2) or (3). 

(5) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder that directly holds 5% or more of the total 

number of issued shares of the company that ranks among the top five in shareholdings, or that designates its 

representative to serve as a director or supervisor of the company under Article 27, paragraph 1 or 2 of the 

Company Act (this restriction does not apply to independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or 

the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the company and its parent 

or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent). 

(6) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of another company if a majority of the company's director seats or voting 

shares and those of any other company are controlled by the same person (this restriction does not apply to 
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independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, 

and concurrently serving as such at, the company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent). 

(7) Not a director, supervisor or employee of another company or institution in which the chairperson, general 

manager or personnel with equivalent position are the same person or have a spousal relationship (this restriction 

does not apply to independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the 

local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of 

the same parent). 

(8) Not a director, supervisor, manager or shareholder holding more than 5% of the shares of a specific company or 

institution in a business or financial relationship with the company (the same does not apply. However, in case 

the specific company or institution holds more than 20% but less than 50% of the company’s total issued shares. 

The person is an independent director appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the 

local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of 

the same parent). 

(9) Not a professional, owner, partner, director, supervisor, or manager of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company, 

or institution that provides auditing services to the company or any affiliate of the company, or that provided 

commercial, legal, financial, accounting or related services to the company or any affiliate of the company for 

which the provider received cumulative compensation exceeding NT$500,000 in the most recent two fiscal years, 

or a spouse thereof. However, this restriction does not apply to a member of the Compensation Committee, Public 

Tender Offer Review Committee, or Special Committee for merger/consolidation and acquisition, who exercises 

powers pursuant to the Act or the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act or related laws or regulations. 

(10) Does not meet any of the conditions stated in Article 30 of the Company Act. 
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2. Information on the state of Remuneration Committee operations 

(1) The Remuneration Committee of the Company consists of all Independent Directors with a total 

of 3 members.  

(2) Term of office of the current Remuneration Committee: June 21, 2022, to June 8, 2025. 
The Remuneration Committee had 3 meetings (A) in the most recent fiscal year and the 
attendance of the members is as follows:  

Title Name 

Numbe
r of 

attenda
nces 
(B) 

Attendance 
by proxy 

Actual attendance 
rate (%) 
(B/A) 

(Notes 1 and 2) 

Remarks 

Member Cheng, Chit-Man 3 0 100% Re-elected on June 21, 2022 

Member Chin, Chang-Ming 3 0 100% Re-elected on June 21, 2022 

Convener Chou, Man-Chin 3 0 100% Re-elected on June 21, 2022 

Other information required: 
I. If the Board of Directors declined to adopt or modified a recommendation from the remuneration 

committee, the date, session, topic discussed and the resolution of the board meeting and handling of 
the resolution of the remuneration committee shall be specified (if the remuneration package approved 
by the Board is better than the recommendation made by the committee, please specify the discrepancy 
and its reason). 

II. For the resolutions of the remuneration committee, if a member expressed any objection or reservation, 
either by recorded statement or in writing, the date, session and topic discussed of the committee 
meeting, all members' opinions and handling of members' opinions shall be specified. 

III. Information on periodical reviews of the performance assessment standards, annual and long-term 
performance goals, and the policies, systems, standards, and structure for the remuneration of the 
directors and managers. 

IV. Discussed topics and resolutions adopted by the Remuneration Committee 

 

Date Summary of Important Contents 
Resolution 
Adopted 

2022.03.17 1. Motion for distribution of remuneration to directors and supervisors 
and employees in 2021. 

2. Motion for the performance appraisals of the Company’s managers 
in 2021 Q4. 

3. Motion for the Company's 2021 BOD performance evaluation 
report. 

4. Motion for the Company’s adjustment to remuneration to managers 
in 2022. 

Approved by 
resolution 
Approved by 
resolution 
Approved by 
resolution 
Approved by 
resolution 

2022.05.10 1. Motion for the performance appraisals of the Company’s managers 
in 2022 Q1. 

Approved by 
resolution 

2022.11.09 1. Motion for the performance appraisals of the Company’s managers 
in 2022 Q2 and 2022 Q3. 

2. Motion for the Company's 2022 year-end bonus to managers. 
 

3. Motion for discussion of amendments to the Company’s "Procedures 
for the Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Managers" of 
the Company and rename it as "Procedures for Management of 
Remuneration to Directors and Managers". 

Approved by 
resolution 
Approved by 
resolution 
Approved by 
resolution 

Note 1: If a particular member of the Remuneration Committee resigned from office prior to the end of the 
fiscal year, specify the date of resignation in the field provided. The actual attendance rate (%) shall 
be calculated on the basis of the number of sessions held during the term of office as a member of the 
Remuneration Committee and the number of meetings actually attended by that member. 

Note 2: If there was a reelection of the Remuneration Committee before the end of the year, the new and former 
members of the Remuneration Committee must be stated in the Remarks field, and indicate if such 
member is old, new, or reelected, as well as the reelection date. The actual attendance rate (%) shall 
be calculated on the basis of the number of sessions held during the term of office as a member of the 
Remuneration Committee and the number of meetings actually attended by that member. 
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(V) State of the promotion of sustainable development operations and any difference from the Sustainable Development Best-Practice Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies, and the reasons for such difference: 

Promotion Item 

Implementation State Difference from the Sustainable 
Development Best-Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 
Companies, and the reasons for 

such difference 

Yes No Summary 

I. Has the company established a governance structure 
to promote sustainable development and set up a 
dedicated (concurrent) unit to promote sustainable 
development which is authorized by the Board of 
Directors to be handled by senior management and 
supervised by the Board of Directors? 

 v Although we have not yet established a dedicated unit to 
promote sustainable development, we recognize the 
importance 
of corporate governance as we pursue sustainable 
development. In recent years, we have continued to refine 
the Company through an array of means including 
strengthening Board functions, deepening responsible 
governance, improving information transparency, and 
enriching the interaction between stakeholders. We hope 
to enhance the performance of our operations through 
comprehensive management mechanisms, achieving our 
goal of sustainability. 

No significant difference. 
 

II. Has the company conducted risk assessments of 
environmental, social and corporate governance 
issues pertaining to company operations in 
accordance with the materiality principle and 
established a relevant risk management policy or 
strategy? 

 

v  By taking into account the guidelines of topics listed in 
the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI), we collect 
stakeholders’ concerns and conduct a risk assessment of 
the Company's operations, environment, labor-
management and corporate governance issues. We also 
formulate risk management strategies and disclose them 
on the Company's website and the sustainability report. 

No significant difference. 
 
 
 

III. Environmental issues 
(I) Does the company have an appropriate environmental 

management system established in accordance with 
its industrial characteristics? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
v 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(I) In accordance with the relevant regulations, we have 

set up dedicated environmental protection personnel 
to implement environmental management systems 
for the inspection of exhaust emissions and the 
operating environment and detecting organic gas 
leaks at the planning stage of the production 
process. This allows us to thoroughly grasp the 
safety status of the machinery equipment and the 
operating environment. Furthermore, air pollution 
prevention measures have been added and 

 
(I) No significant difference. 
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Promotion Item 

Implementation State Difference from the Sustainable 
Development Best-Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 
Companies, and the reasons for 

such difference 

Yes No Summary 

 
 

(II) Is the company committed to enhancing the 
utilization efficiency of resources and using 
renewable materials that have a low impact on the 
environment? 
 

 
 
 
 

(III) Does the company assess the present and future 
potential risk and opportunities of climate change and 
adopt countermeasures related to climate issues? 
 
 

(IV) Has the company prepared statistics on greenhouse 
gas emissions, water consumption and total volume 
of waste for the past two years, and formulated 
policies for saving energy and reducing carbon, 
greenhouse gas, water use, or other waste 
management? 

 
 

v 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

v 
 
 
 
 

v 
 

inspections are conducted according to the 
operating permit standards. 

(II) The Company has invested in heat recovery related 
equipment to reduce energy use to reduce carbon 
dioxide, and some packaging materials are recycled 
to reduce environmental impact. According to the 
statistics, the recycled volume of packaging 
materials (one-ton tank) in 2022 was 25,320kg, 
which was 58.05% higher than the 16,020kg 
recycled in the previous year, reducing the impact 
on the environment. 

(III) We continue to assess and monitor possible risks 
and opportunities climate change may bring in the 
future through raw material management and energy 
management. At present, we strive to reduce carbon 
and use solar power in response to climate change. 

(IV) In accordance with the regulations, we continue to 
keep statistics of wastewater, waste gas and waste 
treatment. Our aim is to achieve the goals of energy 
conservation, carbon reduction, greenhouse gas, 
waste consumption and waste reduction through the 
improvement of processes and replacement of 
energy-consuming burners. In a bid to monitor 
exhaust emissions, we have also installed 
differential pressure gauges in exhaust scrubber 
towers, exhaust condenser thermometers, and 
condenser gas flow meters, further preventing 
exhaust leaks. 

 
 
(II) No significant difference. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(III) No significant difference. 
 
 
 
 
(IV) No significant difference. 
 

IV. Social Issues 
(I) Does the company have the relevant management 

policies and procedures stipulated in accordance 
with the applicable laws and regulations and 

 
 
 
 

 

 
v 

 
 
 

 
(I) We have formulated “Work Rules” in line with the 

Labor Standards Act. We respect and support 
internationally recognized human rights 
conventions and prohibit child labor, forced labor, 

 
(I) No significant difference. 
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Promotion Item 

Implementation State Difference from the Sustainable 
Development Best-Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 
Companies, and the reasons for 

such difference 

Yes No Summary 

international conventions on human rights? 
 

(II) Has the company established and implemented 
reasonable measures for employee benefits (including 
remuneration, holidays and other benefits) that 
appropriately reflect the business performance or 
achievements in the employee remuneration? 

 
 
 
 

(III) Has the company provided employees with a safe and 
healthy work environment and regularly provided 
safety and health education to employees? 
 

 
 

(IV) Has the company established an effective career 
development training program for its employees? 
 

 
 
 

(V) Does the company comply with laws and 
international standards with respect to customer 
health, safety and privacy, marketing and labeling in 
all products and services offered, and has the 
company implemented consumer protection policies 
and complaint procedures? 

(VI) Has the company implemented a supplier 
management policy that regulates suppliers' conduct 
with respect to environmental protection, 
occupational safety and health or labor human rights 

 
 

v 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

v 
 
 

 
 
 

v 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

v 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
v 

and pregnant employees are prohibited from 
working night shifts. 

(II) We have set up an Employee Welfare Committee, 
and the “Work Rules” released to employees clearly 
define welfare measures. Salaries are adjusted after 
negotiation with the labor union according to the 
previous year’s operating results. At present, April 1 
is set as the fixed salary adjustment date. 
Consequently, we also pay annual remuneration and 
year-end bonuses to employees depending on the 
business performance. 

(III) Environmental inspection is conducted once every 
April and October; education and training on safety 
and health and hazardous substances is performed 
every June and December; a health examination is 
provided to employees and workers performing 
special operations at the end of every year. 

(IV) Continuing education and training for employees is 
carried out in accordance with labor safety and 
health laws and regulations. We also offer bonuses 
to employees who make an effort to acquire 
certifications, establishing effective career 
development training capabilities. 

(V) As we respect the interests and appeals of 
consumers, various management rules are disclosed 
on the Company’s website, as well as a contact 
window and contact method, to directly help 
customers handle any issues they might have. 

 
(VI) A supplier management process has been 

established in the Company's ISO 9001 requiring 
suppliers to provide product quality and material 
safety information to ensure environmental 

 
 
(II) No significant difference. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(III) No significant difference. 
 
 
 
 
 
(IV) No significant difference. 
 
 
 
 
 
(V) This will be handled in the 
future according to the 
development needs of the 
Company and regulations. 

  
 
(VI) No significant difference. 
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Promotion Item 

Implementation State Difference from the Sustainable 
Development Best-Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 
Companies, and the reasons for 

such difference 

Yes No Summary 

issues, and does the company track suppliers' 
performance on a regular basis? 

protection. At the same time, we promote the 
development of sustainability to suppliers by 
issuing supplier CSR pledges, requiring major 
suppliers to not pollute the local environment, harm 
the health of laborers or violate labor rights during 
the production process of raw materials. This has 
received the support and recognition of major 
suppliers. 

V. Has the company prepared a sustainability report or a 
report on non-financial information with reference to 
internationally accepted standards or guidelines? Are 
these reports supported by the assurance or opinion of 
a third-party verification entity? 

v  We disclose the report on the Company’s non-financial 
information and comparison table of the GRI Index by 
taking into account the guidelines of topics listed in the 
Global Reporting Initiative (GRI). This report has been 
assured by a third party. 

No significant difference. 

VI. If the company has formulated its own Sustainable Development Best-Practice Principles in accordance with the “Sustainable Development Best-Practice 
Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies”, please describe the differences between its operation and the Principles: 

In terms of the actual management, we do our utmost to implement the “Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 
Companies”. Furthermore, we have formulated various norms including the “Work Rules and Safety and Health Work Rules” and the “Supplier Management 
Procedures”, and we regularly conduct promotion and inspection activities; therefore, there are no differences from the spirit of the Principles. 

VII. Other important information to help understand the promotion of sustainable development implementation: 
(I) We adhere to the concept of sustainable management and take product responsibility seriously as we believe that products are a company’s corporate 

image. It goes against the Company’s spirit of sustainable management if there is a risk concerning the health and safety of users or consumers. We 
conduct improvement and safety assessments on the development of product concepts, R&D, certification, manufacturing, and storage and transportation, 
and supply of products in the production process. By doing this, we hope to achieve the projected functions of products to ensure that no harm will be 
caused to the safety of users or consumers and no risks will arise from using our products. 

(II) At the same time, we proactively engage in social responsibility and social welfare activities, hoping to give back to society. Our specific social welfare 
actions are as follows: 
1. Sponsored the Kengkou Village and Care and Welfare Association in Luzhu District, Taoyuan City. 
2. Sponsored the celebrations held at Chengsheng Temple and Yuanfu Temple in Kengkou Village, Luzhu District, Taoyuan City. 
3. Sponsored the Mid-autumn Festival in Kengkou Village, Luzhu District, Taoyuan City. 
4. Sponsored the Double Ninth Festival for the elderly at the Senior Citizens Association in Kengkou Village, Luzhu District, Taoyuan City. 
5. Sponsored the Neighborhood Annual Meeting in Kengkou Village, Luzhu District, Taoyuan City. 

(III) At Yong Shun, we respect the basic human rights of employees. In addition to specifying the protection of human rights in the “Work Rules” and the 
“Measures for Sexual Harassment Prevention”, we also stand firm on prohibiting child labor and do not discriminate or treat job applicants or employees 
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Promotion Item 

Implementation State Difference from the Sustainable 
Development Best-Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 
Companies, and the reasons for 

such difference 

Yes No Summary 

any differently based on their race, gender or age. Moreover, by having the labor union, Employee Welfare Committee and Sexual Harassment Prevention 
Committee in place, we continue to maintain a harmonious labor-management relationship. 
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(VI) Ethical management and measures adopted  
 

Evaluation Item 

State of Operations Difference from the Sustainable 
Development Best-Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 
Companies, and the reasons for 

such difference 

Yes No Summary 

I. Establishment of the ethical corporate management policy 
and action plans 

(I) Has the company established an ethical corporate 
management policy approved by the Board of 
Directors? Does the policy clearly specify in its 
rules and external documents the ethical corporate 
management policies, and the commitment of the 
Board of Directors and the senior management to 
proactively implement the management policy? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
(II) Has the company established a risk assessment 

mechanism against unethical acts, analyzed and 
assessed business activities within their business 
scope regularly that have a higher risk of involving 
unethical acts, and established prevention programs 
covering at least the preventive measures specified 
in Article 7, Paragraph 2 of the “Ethical Corporate 
Management Best-Practice Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies”? 

(III) Has the company clearly provided the operating 
procedures, conduct guidelines, disciplines for 
violations and a grievance system in its program to 
prevent unethical acts and have these been 
implemented, and has the program been regularly 
reviewed and amended?  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

v 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

v 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

v 

 
 

(I) In line with the spirit of the “Ethical Corporate 
Management Best-Practice Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies”, we have 
formulated the “Regulations for Board of Directors 
Meetings” and the “Work Rules and Safety and 
Health Work Rules”. By doing so, we enable both 
the employer and employees to commit to the 
establishment of corporate ethics as well as 
occupational integrity. Furthermore, we require the 
directors and managers to set an example by abiding 
by the principles of honesty to further establish a 
corporate culture that is based on ethical 
management. 

(II) Although we have not yet set forth prevention 
programs for unethical acts, conduct guidelines, 
disciplinary actions and grievance channels are 
provided in other rules, which are implemented 
accordingly. 

 
 
 
 
(III) Preventive measures are provided in various 

measures and the internal control system for 
business activities that have a higher risk of 
involving unethical acts. 

 
 
(I) This will be handled in the 

future according to the 
development needs of the 
Company and regulations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(II) This will be handled in the 

future according to the 
development needs of the 
Company and regulations. 

 
 
 
 
 
(III) This will be handled in the 

future according to the 
development needs of the 
Company and regulations. 
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Evaluation Item 

State of Operations Difference from the Sustainable 
Development Best-Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 
Companies, and the reasons for 

such difference 

Yes No Summary 

II. Implementation of ethical corporate management 
(I) Has the company evaluated the integrity of all 

counterparties it has business relationships with? Are 
there any integrity clauses in the agreements entered into 
with business partners? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
(II) Has the company set up a dedicated (concurrent) unit to 

promote ethical corporate management under the Board 
of Directors, and has such unit reported to the Board of 
Directors its execution in terms of ethical management 
policy and preventive programs against unethical 
conducts and the supervision status on a regular basis (at 
least once a year)? 

(III) Has the company formulated a policy that prevents 
conflicts of interest and a channel that facilitates the 
reporting of conflicts of interest? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(IV) Has the company established an effective accounting 

system and internal control system in order to implement 
ethical management, and proposed relevant audit plans 
according to the assessment results of the risks of 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

v 
 
 
 

 
v 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

v 
 
 
 
 
 
 

v 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(I) Even though the contracts we enter into with business 

partners do not specify ethical corporate 
management terms, we maintain sound ethical 
corporate management records with the absolute 
majority of those we have a longstanding business 
relationship with. As our management philosophy is 
integrity, transparency and responsibility, we 
continue to make an effort to promote policies based 
on ethical corporate management, further creating a 
sustainable management environment. 

(II) We have not yet set up a dedicated (concurrent) unit 
under the Board of Directors to promote ethical 
corporate management; however, matters in 
connection with violations of ethical corporate 
management are reported to the Board of Directors. 

 
 
(III) The Company’s “Regulations for Board of 

Directors Meetings” specify that if a director or their 
representative has an interest in a motion at the 
Board meeting, they must explain the important 
contents of their interest at that Board meeting. 
Where there is a risk of a conflict of interest in the 
director or their representative that may harm the 
Company’s interests, they may not join in the 
discussion or vote and shall recuse themselves from 
the discussion or voting and may not exercise their 
voting rights on behalf of another director. 

(IV) At Yong Shun, we follow the internal control 
system, which is continuously and effectively carried 
out. We also implement self-examination of internal 
control and enhance audits, which are reported at the 

 
(I) This will be handled in the 

future according to the 
development needs of the 
Company and regulations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
(II) This will be handled in the 

future according to the 
development needs of the 
Company and regulations. 

 
 
 
(III) This will be handled in the 

future according to the 
development needs of the 
Company and regulations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(IV) No significant difference. 
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Evaluation Item 

State of Operations Difference from the Sustainable 
Development Best-Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 
Companies, and the reasons for 

such difference 

Yes No Summary 

unethical conducts, and reviewed the compliance of the 
prevention of unethical conducts, or entrusted an 
accountant to carry out the review? 

(V) Does the company organize internal or external training 
on a regular basis to maintain ethical management? 

 
 
 

v 

Board meeting. In doing this, we are able to ensure 
the functions of directors and supervisors, further 
achieving the purpose of sound supervision. 

(V) In line with the spirit of the “Ethical Corporate 
Management Best-Practice Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies”, we provide 
education and training on ethical management on a 
regular basis, including material internal information 
handling and prevention of insider trading. In doing 
so, we implement the concepts of ethical 
management. 

 
 
 
(V) No significant difference. 

III. State of operations of the company’s reporting system 
(I) Has the company set up a specific reporting and 

incentive system, and established a channel to facilitate 
grievances and assigned dedicated personnel to receive 
grievances? 

 
(II) Has the company implemented any standard operating 

procedures and subsequent measures after carrying out an 
investigation, as well as confidentiality measures for 
handling grievances filed? 

(III) Has the company taken appropriate measures to protect 
whistleblowers from improper treatment as a result of 
whistleblowing? 

 
 
 
 
 

 
v 
 
 
 
 

v 
 
 
 

v 
 

 
(I) The Company’s “Work Rules” clearly state an 

incentive system. There is also an email on the 
Company’s website for filing grievances for internal 
and external personnel. Up to now, no grievances 
have been filed. 

(II) We have not yet set up any standard operating 
procedures and relevant confidentiality mechanisms 
for grievances. 

 
(III) There is an email set up on the Company's website 

for filing grievances. Up to now, no grievances have 
been filed. 

 
(I) This will be handled in the 

future according to the 
development needs of the 
Company and regulations. 

 
(II) This will be handled in the 

future according to the 
development needs of the 
Company and regulations. 

(III) This will be handled in the 
future according to the 
development needs of the 
Company and regulations. 

IV. Strengthening of information disclosure 
Has the company disclosed the content of its ethical 
corporate management best-practice principles and the 
results of promotion on its official website and MOPS? 

 v Although we have not yet formulated our own ethical 
corporate management best-practice principles, internal 
regulations (e.g., Operating Procedures for Material 
Internal Information Handling and Prevention of Insider 
Trading) concerning the disclosure of ethical corporate 
management are disclosed on the Company's website. 

This will be handled in the future 
according to the development needs 
of the Company and regulations. 
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Evaluation Item 

State of Operations Difference from the Sustainable 
Development Best-Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 
Companies, and the reasons for 

such difference 

Yes No Summary 

V. If the company has formulated its own Ethical Corporate Management Best-Practice Principles in accordance with the “Ethical Corporate Management Best-Practice 
Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies”, please describe the differences between its operation and the Principles: 
We have not yet formulated our own ethical corporate management best-practice principles; however, matters in relation to ethical corporate management are 

regulated in the Company's internal rules; there are no differences from the spirit of the Principles. 

VI. Any other important information that may help understanding the company’s performance of ethical corporate management better: (e.g., review of amendments to its 
Ethical Corporate Management Best-Practice Principles): 
None. 

 
(VII) If the company has adopted corporate governance best-practice principles or related bylaws, disclose how these are to be searched: 

We have formulated regulations related to corporate governance best-practice principles and these can be found on the Company’s website. 

 

(VIII) Any other material information that would afford a better understanding of the status of the company's implementation of corporate governance may also 

be disclosed: 

We prepare a sustainability report every year to enhance the understanding and improvement of the state of corporate governance.  
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(IX) The following shall be disclosed for the company's implementation of the internal control 

system 

1. Statement of Internal Control 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

 

Statement of the Internal Control System 

 

Date: March 13, 2023 

The Company declares the following concerning its internal control system during the fiscal year 2022, 

based on the findings of a self-assessment: 

I. The Company acknowledges that the establishment, implementation and maintenance of the internal 

control system are the responsibilities of the Board of Directors and managers of the Company. As such, 

the Company has established the aforementioned system. Its objectives are to provide reasonable 

assurance for the effectiveness and efficiency of its operations (including profitability, performance, and 

the guarantee of assets safety, etc.), reliable, timely and transparent reporting, and conformity to 

applicable rules, regulations, and laws. 

II. The internal control system has its inherent limitations. Regardless of how exhaustive the design is, an 

effective internal control system can only provide reasonable assurance for the achievement of the 

aforementioned three objectives. Further, due to changes in the environment or circumstances, the 

effectiveness of the internal control system may vary accordingly. Nevertheless, the Company's internal 

control system has set up a self-supervision mechanism. Once a deficiency has been identified, the 

Company will take immediate remedial actions. 

III. In accordance with the determining criteria for the effectiveness of the internal control system prescribed 

in the "Regulations Governing the Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies" 

(hereafter the “Regulations”), the Company evaluated the effectiveness of the design and execution for 

its internal control system. The determining criteria of the internal control system prescribed in the 

Regulations are based on the process of management control, dividing the internal control system into 

five composite factors: 1. Control environment, 2. Risk evaluation, 3. Control operations, 4. Information 

and communication, and 5. Supervision operations. The composition of each element also includes 

several items. Please refer to the Regulations for the aforesaid items. 

IV. The Company has adopted the aforementioned determining criteria of the internal control system to 

evaluate the effectiveness of the design and execution of its own internal control system. 

V. Based on the evaluation results of the preceding paragraph, the Company believes that its internal control 

system (including the supervision and management of subsidiaries) as of December 31, 2022, including 

understanding the achievement of the objectives of effectiveness and efficiency of its operations, 

reliability, timeliness and transparency of its reporting and compliance with the applicable laws and 

regulations, was effective in design and execution, and can reasonably assure the achievement of the 

aforementioned objectives. 

VI. This Statement will serve as the main content of the Company's annual report and prospectus and will be 

made available to the public. If the aforesaid public content has any illegal events including falsity or 

concealment, it shall be liable to the legal liabilities stipulated in Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174 of the 

Securities and Exchange Act. 
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VII. This Statement has been passed by the Board of Directors of the Company on March 13, 2023, where 

none of the 9 attending Directors expressed dissenting opinions, and the remainder all affirmed the content 

of this Statement. 

 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

 

Chairman:           Signature 

 

General Manager:           Signature 

 

2. CPA audit report, where a CPA was engaged to carry out a special audit of the internal 

control system: None. 

(X) If there has been any legal penalty against the company or its internal personnel, or any 

disciplinary penalty by the company against its internal personnel for violation of the internal 

control system in the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the date of 

publication of the annual report, where the result of such penalty could have a material effect on 

shareholder equity or securities prices, the annual report shall disclose the penalty, the main 

shortcomings, and status of improvements: In 2022 and up to the date of publication of the 

annual report, the Company did not receive any penalties. 
 

(XI) Important resolutions adopted at the shareholders' meeting and Board of Directors meeting in 

the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the 

annual report: 

1. Important resolutions adopted at the shareholders' meeting: 

2022 Annual General Meeting 

Time Summary of contents of important resolutions 
Resolution 

Implementation State 

2022.06.09 
1. Report Items 

(1) 2021 business report. 
(2) Report on the 2021 final accounts reviewed by the 

supervisors. 
(3) Report on the distribution of the directors’ and 

supervisors’ remuneration and employee’s 
remuneration of 2021. 

 
 

2. Ratification Items 

(1) Ratification of the 2021 business report and final 
accounts. 

(2) Ratification of the motion for the 2021 earnings 
distribution. 

 
3. Discussion Items 

(1) Motion for amendments to the Company's 
“Articles of Incorporation”. 

(2) Motion for amendments to the Company's “Rules 
of Procedure for Shareholders’ Meeting”. 

(3) Motion for amendments to some provisions of the 
Company’s “Procedures for Election of Directors 

The ex-dividend base date was set on 
July 13, 2022, and the cash dividends 
payment date on July 29, 2022. After 
the resolution was adopted by the 
shareholders, the actual remuneration 
paid to employees was NT$1,643,356 
and remuneration paid to directors 
and supervisors was NT$2,479,620, 
which showed no difference. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by resolution. 
 
Approved by resolution. 
 
Approved by resolution. 
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and Supervisors” and renaming as “Procedures for 
Election of Directors”. 

(4) Motion for amendments to the Company’s 
“Regulations Governing the Acquisition and 
Disposal of Assets”. 

4. Election matters 
(1) Motion for election of directors (including 

independent directors). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Other motions 

(1) Motion for lifting the restriction of competition of 
new directors. 

 
 
Approved by resolution. 
 
 
 
The elected list is as follows: 
Directors: Tsai, Cheng-Fung; Tsai, 
Chi-Lung; Lin, Tsyr-Huan; Lin, 
Cheng-Chien; Lin Wu, Fang-Mei; 
Lin, Jih-Cheng. 
Independent Directors: Cheng, Chit-
Man; Chin, Chang-Ming; Chou, Man-
Chin. 
 
Approved by resolution. 

  

2. Important resolutions adopted at the Board meeting 

Summary of contents of important resolutions adopted at the Board meeting in 2022 and 2023 
Date Summary of contents of important resolutions 

2022.03.17 1. Passed the distribution of the directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration and employee’s 
remuneration of 2021. 

2. Passed the motion for the 2021 business report and various final accounts. 
3. Passed the 2021 earnings distribution with cash dividends at NT$1.0/share, totaling 

NT$61,056,000. 
4. Passed the motion for the performance appraisal of managers for 2021Q4 reviewed by 

the Remuneration Committee. 
5. Passed the motion for the 2022 adjustments to remuneration to managers reviewed by 

the Remuneration Committee. 
6. Passed the Company’s 2021 statement of the internal control system. 
7. Passed the Company's 2021 “Board Performance Evaluation”. 
8. Passed the motion for the election of the Company's 20th directors (including 

independent directors). 
9. Motion for lifting the restriction of competition of new directors. 
10. Passed the motion for the designation of the subsidiary’s directors and supervisors. 
11. Passed the date of the 2022 shareholders’ meeting, June 9, 2022. 
12. Passed the time and location for accepting shareholder proposals for the 2022 

shareholders’ meeting. 
13. Passed matters related to the acceptance of nominations of candidates for directors 

(including independent directors) at the 2022 annual general meeting. 
14. Passed the motion for the Board of Directors to nominate and investigate the candidates 

for directors (including independent directors). 
15. Passed the motion for amendments to some provisions of the Company's “Articles of 

Incorporation” and the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholders’ Meeting”. 
16. Passed the motion for amendments to some of the provisions of the Company’s 

“Regulations Governing the Acquisition and Disposal of Assets”. 
17. Passed the motion for amendments to some provisions of the Company’s “Procedures 

for Election of Directors and Supervisors” and renaming as “Procedures for Election of 
Directors”. 

18. Passed the rollover of the borrowing line from Mega International Commercial Bank, 
South Taipei Branch. 

19. Passed the rollover of the borrowing line from Hua Nan Commercial Bank, Chengdong 
Branch. 

2022.05.10 1. Passed the consolidated financial statements for 2022 Q1. 
2. Passed the performance appraisal of managers for 2022 Q1 reviewed by the 

Remuneration Committee. 
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3. Passed the motion for amendments to some provisions of the Company's “Procedures 
for Handling Material Inside Information”, “Organizational Structure”, “Accounting 
Professional Judgement Process, Accounting Policy and Process for Changes in 
Estimates”, “Regulations for Board of Directors Meetings”, “Remuneration Committee 
Charter”, and “Rules Governing the Scope of Powers of Independent Directors”. 

2022.06.09 1. Passed the motion for the election of the Company's 20th Chairperson. 
2022.06.21 1. Passed the 2021 ex-dividend base date set on July 13, 2022, and the cash dividends 

payment date on July 29, 2022. 
2. Passed the rollover of the borrowing line from Mizuho Bank, Taipei Branch. 
3. Passed the rollover of the borrowing line from Taiwan Business Bank, Songjiang 

Branch. 
4. Passed the assessment of the independence of the Company’s CPAs. 
5. Passed the establishment of the Audit Committee and formulation of the Audit 

Committee Charter. 
6. Passed the appointment of the 5th Remuneration Committee members. 
7. Passed the motion for amendments to some provisions of the Company’s “Operating 

Procedures for Transactions of the Group, Specific Companies and Related Parties”, 
“Management for the Preparation of the Financial Statements”, and “Personnel 
Management”, and the abolition of the “Scope of Duties of Supervisors”.  

2022.08.10 1. Passed the consolidated financial statements for 2022 Q2. 
2022.11.09 1. Passed the consolidated financial statements for 2022 Q3. 

2. Passed the budget for 2023. 
3. Passed the annual audit plan for 2023. 
4. Passed the performance appraisal of managers for 2022 Q2 and 2022 Q3 reviewed by 

the Remuneration Committee. 
5. Passed the motion for the 2022 year-end bonus to managers reviewed by the 

Remuneration Committee. 
6. Passed the rollover of the borrowing line from Taiwan Cooperative Bank, Songjiang 

Branch. 
7. Passed the credit risk limit extension for financial product transactions of Mega 

International Commercial Bank, South Taipei Branch. 
8. Passed the motion for amendments to the schedule for the preparation of financial 

statements. 
9. Motion for discussion of amendments to the Company’s "Procedures for the 

Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Managers" of the Company and rename it 
as "Procedures for Management of Remuneration to Directors and Managers". 

10. Passed the motion for appointment of the Corporate Governance Officer of the 
Company. 

11. Passed the motion for discussion of addition of the guidelines and amendments to the 
"Procedures for Management of the Preparation of Financial Statements". 

12. Passed the motion for amendments to the Company's "Procedures for Handling 
Material Inside Information". 

13. Passed the motion for installing solar energy panels in Yonggu Finished Products Plant 
for self-use. 

2023.03.13 1. Passed the motion for the 2022 business report and various final accounts. 
2. Passed the 2022 earnings distribution with cash dividends at NT$0.5/share, totaling 

NT$30,528,000. 
3. Passed the performance appraisal of managers for 2022 Q4 reviewed by the 

Remuneration Committee. 
4. Passed the motion for the 2023 adjustments to remuneration to managers reviewed by 

the Remuneration Committee. 
5. Passed the Company’s 2022 statement of the internal control system. 
6. Passed the Company's 2022 “Board Performance Evaluation”. 
7. Passed the date of the 2023 shareholders’ meeting, June 19, 2023. 
8. Passed the time and location for accepting shareholder proposals for the 2023 

shareholders’ meeting. 
9. Passed the establishment of the Company's "Procedures for Preparation and Verification 

of Sustainability Report". 
10. Passed the motion for amendments to the Company's "Implementation Rules of 

Internal Audit" and "Table of Approval Authority". 
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11. Passed the motion for amendments to the "Standard Operating Procedures for 
Handling Requests from Directors" of the Company. 

12. Passed the motion for amendments to the "Regulations Governing the Supervision of 
Subsidiaries" of the Company. 

13. Passed the rollover of the borrowing line from Mega International Commercial Bank, 
South Taipei Branch. 

14. Passed the rollover of the borrowing line from Hua Nan Commercial Bank, Chengdong 
Branch. 

15. Passed the motion for change of CPAs to Weng, Po-Jen and Hsueh, Chun-Min on the 
financial statements of the Company from 2023 Q1. 

16. Passed the motion for the appointment of the current chief internal auditor of the 
Company. 

 
(XII) In the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the 

annual report, if any director or supervisor has expressed a dissenting opinion with respect to an 

important resolution passed by the Board of Directors, and said dissenting opinion has been 

recorded or prepared as a written declaration, disclose the principal content thereof: No 

dissenting opinions were expressed by directors or supervisors over important resolutions 

passed by the Board of Directors. 

 

(XIII) A summary of resignations in the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to 

the date of publication of the annual report of the company's chairperson, general manager, head 

of accounting, head of finance, chief internal auditor, head of corporate governance, and chief 

R&D officer: 

Resignation and dismissal of relevant personnel of the Company 
April 30, 2023 

Title Name 
Date of 

appointment 
Date of 

dismissal 
Reason for resignation 

or dismissal 

Chief internal 

auditor 
Yu, Jia-Ling December 2018 March 3, 2023 Personal career planning 
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V.  Information on professional fees of attesting CPAs 

 

Information on professional fees of attesting CPAs 

Unit: NT$ thousand 

Note: Where the company has changed the CPAs or the accounting firm, please indicate the audit periods 

separately, and explain the reason for the replacement in the Remarks field and disclose the audit and 

non-audit fees and other information. Non-audit fees should be listed and explain the services. 

 

(I) If audit fees for the change of accounting firms paid in the year is less than the previous year, the 
amount of the audit fees before and after the change and the reason shall be disclosed: None. 

 

(II) If the audit fees decreased by 10% or more on a year-to-year basis, the decreased amount, 
percentage and reason of the audit fees shall be disclosed: None. 

 

VI. Information on replacement of CPAs: 

 The Company did not change its CPAs or accounting firm in the past 2 years. However, in line with 
the internal work rotation of Deloitte Taiwan, the attesting CPAs for the financial statements were 
changed in 2023 Q1 from the original Hsueh, Chun-Min and Chih, Jui-Chuan to Weng, Po-Jen and 
Hsueh, Chun-Min. 

 

VII. The company’s chairperson, general manager, or any managers in charge of finance or 
accounting matters that have in the most recent year held a position at the accounting firm 
of its CPAs or at an affiliated enterprise of such accounting firm: None. 

  

 

  

Accounting firm 

name 

CPA 

name 

Certified 

Public 

Accountant 

Duration of 

audit 

Audit fees 

Non-audit 

fee 

  

Total Remarks 

Deloitte Taiwan 

Hsueh, 

Chun-

Min 2022.01.01- 

2022.12.31 
2,500 62 2,562 

Non-audit fees include 
miscellaneous 
expenses such as 
preparation of 
financial statements. 

Chih, Jui-

Chuan 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 
 

CPA independence evaluation criteria 
 2022.05.31 

Evaluation Item 
Evaluation 

Result 
Independence 
compliance 

1. Were the CPAs and the Company in a direct or material indirect 
relationship in financial interests? 

No Yes 

2. Were the CPAs engaged in financing or assurance activities with the 
Company or the Company's directors? 

No Yes 

3. Were the CPAs in a close business relationship and potential 
employment relationship with the Company? 

No Yes 

4. Did the CPAs or auditors serve as the Company's director or manager 
or in a position that significantly affected the audit during the past 2 
years? 

No Yes 

5. Did the CPAs provide any non-audit services to the Company that may 
directly affect the audit? 

No Yes 

6. Did the CPAs broker shares or other securities issued by the Company? No Yes 

7. Did the CPAs serve as advocate for the Company or coordinate 
conflicts with third parties on behalf of the Company? 

No Yes 

8. Were the CPAs relatives of the Company's directors or managers or 
personnel who had significant influence on the audit? 

No Yes 
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VIII. Any transfer of equity interests and/or change in pledge of equity interests by a director, 
manager, or shareholder with a stake of more than 10% in the most recent fiscal year or 
during the current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report. 

(I) Changes in shareholding by directors, managers and major shareholders: 

Title Name 

2022 2023 until April 20 

Shareholding 

Increase 

(decrease) 

amount 

Number of 

shares pledged 

Increase 

(decrease) 

amount 

Shareholding 

Increase 

(decrease) 

amount 

Number of 

shares pledged 

Increase 

(decrease) 

amount 

Chairman Tsai, Cheng-Fung 0 0 0 0 

Director Tsai, Chi-Lung 0 0 0 0 

Director Lin, Cheng-Chien 0 0 0 0 

Director Lin, Tsyr-Huan 0 0 (400,000) 0 

Director Lin, Jih-Cheng 0 0 0 0 

Director 
Lin Wu, Fang-

Mei 
0 0 0 0 

Independent 

Director 
Cheng, Chit-Man 0 0 0 0 

Independent 

Director 

Chin, Chang-

Ming 
0 0 0 0 

Independent 

Director 
Chou, Man-Chin 0 0 0 0 

Deputy Assistant 

General Manager 
Liu, Ching-Ming 0 0 0 0 

Sales Manager Lin, Tai-Yuan 0 0 0 0 

Finance Manager Chen, Fu-Mei 0 0 0 0 

Sales Manager Lin, Chin-Shu 0 0 0 0 

Plant Director Hsu, Chin-Cheng 0 0 0 0 

Vice Plant 

Director 
Lin, Chen-Feng 0 0 0 0 

Note: Shareholders holding 10% or more of the total shares of the Company should be indicated 

as major shareholders and listed separately. 

 

(II) Information on counterparties of transfers of equity interests of directors, managers and 
major shareholders that are related parties: None.  

 

(III) Information on counterparties of transfers of pledge of equity interests of directors, managers 
and major shareholders that are related parties: None. 
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IX. Relationship information, if among the company’s 10 largest shareholders any one is a 
related party or a spouse or relative within the second degree of kinship of another  

April 20, 2023 

Name 

Shares Held 

Shareholding of 

Spouses and Minor 

Children 

Shareholding in the 

Name of Others 

Titles or names and relationships 

between the top ten shareholders 

that are parties or spouses or 

relatives within the second degree of 

kinship of another 
Remarks 

Number 

of Shares 

Share-

holding 

ratio 

Number 

of Shares 

Share-

holding 

Ratio 

Number 

of 

Shares 

Share-

holding 

ratio 

Title/ 

Name 
Relationship 

Lin, 

Tsyr-

Huan 

5,657,327 9.27% None None None None 

Lin, Tzu-

Hung 

Lin, Cheng-

Chien 

Lin, Tsyr-

Hsi 

Yu, Hui-

Ling 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

- 

Lin, 

Tzu-

Hung 

4,469,367 7.32% 35,499 0.06% None None 

Lin, Tsyr-

Huan 

Lin, Cheng-

Chien 

Lin, Tsyr-

Hsi 

Yu, Hui-

Ling 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

- 

Lin, 

Tsyr-

Hsi 

4,457,788 7.30% None None None None 

Lin, Tzu-

Hung 

Lin, Cheng-

Chien 

Lin, Tsyr-

Huan 

Yu, Hui-

Ling 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

- 

Lin, 

Cheng

-Chien 

4,205,821 6.89% 1,800,621 2.95% None None 

Yu, Hui-

Ling; Lin, 

Tzu-Hung 

Lin, Tsyr-

Huan 

Lin, Tsyr-

Hsi 

Spouse 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

- 
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Tsai, 

Cheng

-Fung 

3,492,490 5.72% 2,340,235 3.83% None None 

Chen, Mei-

Hui 

Tsai, Chi-

Lung 

Tsai, Chia-

Ling 

Tsai, Wan-

Ling 

Spouse 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

- 

Chen, 

Mei-

Hui 

2,340,235 3.83% 3,492,490 5.72% None None 

Tsai, 

Cheng-Fung 

Tsai, Chi-

Lung 

Tsai, Chia-

Ling 

Tsai, Wan-

Ling 

Spouse 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

- 

Yu, 

Hui-

Ling 

1,800,621 2.95% 4,205,821 6.89% None None 

Lin, Cheng-

Chien 

Lin, Tzu-

Hung 

Lin, Tsyr-

Hsi and Lin, 

Tsyr-Huan 

Spouse 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

- 

Tsai, 

Chi-

Lung 

1,432,527 2.35% None None None None 

Tsai, 

Cheng-Fung 

Chen, Mei-

Hui 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

- 

Tsai, 

Chia-

Ling 

1,312,476 2.15% None None None None 

Tsai, 

Cheng-Fung 

Chen, Mei-

Hui 

Tsai, Wan-

Ling 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

- 

Tsai, 

Wan-

Ling 

1,183,598 1.94% None None None None 

Tsai, 

Cheng-Fung 

Chen, Mei-

Hui 

Tsai, Chia-

Ling 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

Familial relationship 

within the second 

degree of kinship 

- 
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X. The total number of shares and total equity stake held in any single enterprise by the 
company, its directors, managers, and any companies controlled either directly or indirectly 
by the company. 

Investment business 

(Note) 

The Company’s investment 

Investment by directors, 

managers, and 

companies controlled 

directly or indirectly 

Comprehensive 

investment 

Number 

of Shares 

Percentage of 

shareholding 

Number 

of Shares 

Percentage of 

shareholding 

Number 

of Shares 

Percentage of 

shareholding 

Sun Yang Global Co., Ltd. 5,000,000 100% 0 0% 5,000,000 100% 

Note: Investments accounted for using the equity method. 
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Four. Capital Raising Activities 

I. Company capital and shares 

(I) Source of capital stock 

1. Process of capital stock formation 

Unit: NT$; shares 

Year, 

month 

Issue price 

(value per 

share) 

Authorized capital stock Paid-in capital Remarks 

Number of 

Shares 
Amount 

Number of 

shares 
Amount Source of capital stock 

Offset by any 

property other 

than cash 
Others 

1997.07 10 43,000,000 430,000,000 34,303,500 343,035,000 Capital increase by surplus of NT$31,185,000 -- Note 1 

1998.07 10 40,000,000 400,000,000 40,000,000 400,000,000 

Capital increase by surplus of NT$56,125,780 

and capital increase by employee bonus of 

NT$839,220 

-- Note 2 

1999.06 10 48,000,000 480,000,000 48,000,000 480,000,000 Capital increase by surplus of NT$80,000,000 -- Note 3 

2000.05 10 57,600,000 576,000,000 57,600,000 576,000,000 Capital increase by surplus of NT$96,000,000 -- Note 4 

2001.06 10 61,056,000 610,560,000 61,056,000 610,560,000 Capital increase by surplus of NT$34,560,000 -- Note 5 

Note 1: Capital increase by surplus of NT$31,185,000 in July 1997 Approval date and number by the Securities and Futures Commission: (1997)-Tai-Cai-Zheng-(I) No. 53126 

dated July 10, 1997 

Note 2: Capital increase by surplus of NT$56,125,780 and capital increase by employee bonus of NT$839,220 in July 1998 Approval date and number by the Securities and 

Futures Commission: (1998)-Tai-Cai-Zheng-(I) No. 58653 dated July 10, 1998 

Note 3: Capital increase by surplus of NT$80,000,000 in June 1999 Approval date and number by the Securities and Futures Commission: (1999)-Tai-Cai-Zheng-(I) No. 56957 

dated June 23, 1999 

Note 4: Capital increase by surplus of NT$96,000,000 in May 2000 Approval date and number by the Securities and Futures Commission: (2000)-Tai-Cai-Zheng-(I) No. 45441 

dated May 25, 2000 

Note 5: Capital increase by surplus of NT$34,560,000 in June 2001 Approval date and number by the Securities and Futures Commission: (2001)-Tai-Cai-Zheng-(I) No. 138979 

dated June 19, 2001 
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2. Types of shares issued 
December 31, 2022 Unit: shares 

Type of shares 

Authorized capital stock 

Remarks 
Outstanding shares 

Unissued 

shares 
Total TPEx listed 

shares 

Non-TPEx listed 
shares 

Total 

Registered 
common stock 

61,056,000 0 61,056,000 0 61,056,000  

Note: Par value of NT$10 per share 
 

3. Shelf registration method information: Not applicable. 
 

(II) Shareholder structure  
April 20, 2023 Unit: persons; shares; % 

Shareholder 
structure 

 
Amount 

Government 
agency 

Financial 
institution 

Other 
institutional 
shareholders 

Individual 
Foreign 

institutions and 
foreigners 

Total 

Number of 
shareholders 

- - 9 5,045 12 5,066 

Shareholding - - 315,000 60,146,828 594,172 61,056,000  

Percentage of 
shareholding 

- - 0.52% 98.51% 0.97% 100.00% 

 

(III) Dispersion of equity ownership 
1. Common stock 

April 20, 2023 Unit: shares; % 

 
2. Preferred stock: None. 

 

  

Shareholding classification 
Number of 

shareholders 
Shareholding Percentage of shareholding 

1 to 999 1,945 213,383 0.35% 

1,000 to 5,000 2,298 4,871,694 7.98% 

5,001 to 10,000 398 3,257,259 5.33% 

10,001 to 15,000 112 1,463,069 2.40% 

15,001 to 20,000 89 1,629,033 2.67% 

20,001 to 30,000 69 1,801,525 2.95% 

30,001 to 40,000 40 1,422,450 2.33% 

40,001 to 50,000 25 1,150,660 1.88% 

50,001 to 100,000 44 3,210,123 5.26% 

100,001 to 200,000 19 2,552,734 4.18% 

200,001 to 400,000 8 2,307,292 3.78% 

400,001 to 600,000 3 1,475,957 2.42% 

600,001 to 800,000 3 1,948,000 3.19% 

800,001 to 1,000,000 0 - - 

Over 1,000,000 13 33,752,821 55.28% 

Total 5,066 61,056,000 100.00% 
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(IV) List of major shareholders 

April 20, 2023 

                      Shares 
Name of major shareholder 

Shareholding Percentage of shareholding 

Lin, Tsyr-Huan 5,657,327  9.27% 

Lin, Tsyr-Hung 4,469,367  7.32% 
Lin, Tsyr-Hsi 4,457,788  7.30% 

Lin, Cheng-Chien 4,205,821  6.89% 
Tsai, Cheng-Fung 3,492,490  5.72% 

Chen, Mei-Hui 2,340,235  3.83% 
Yu, Hui-Ling 1,800,621  2.95% 

Tsai, Chi-Lung 1,432,527  2.35% 
Tsai, Chia-Ling 1,312,476 2.15% 
Tsai, Wan-Ling 1,183,598  1.94% 

(V) Share prices, net worth per share, earnings per share, dividends per share, and related information 

in the most recent 2 fiscal years 

Year 

Item 
2021 2022 

Current year up to 

March 31, 2023 

Market value per 

share 

Maximum 22.85 19.3 15.15 

Minimum 13.90 14.0 14.70 

Average 17.83 16.24 14.96 

Net value per 

share 

Before distribution 18.67 17.43 17.72 

After distribution 17.67 16.93 -- 

Earnings per share 

(EPS) 

Weighted average number of shares 61,056,000 61,056,000 61,056,000 

Earnings per share (EPS) 1.27 -0.31 0.30 

Dividend per 

share 

Cash dividends  1.0 0.5 -- 

Stock grants 

Stock dividends from 

retained earnings 

-- -- -- 

Stock dividends from 

capital surplus 

-- -- -- 

Accumulated unpaid dividends -- -- -- 

Return on 

investment 

analysis 

P/E ratio (Note 5) 14.04  -52.38 -- 

P/D ratio (Note 6) 17.83 32.48 -- 

Cash dividend yield (Note 7) 5.61% 3.08% -- 

* If shares are distributed in connection with a capital increase out of earnings or capital reserve, further disclose information on market prices and cash 

dividends retroactively adjusted based on the number of shares after distribution. 

Note 1: The table lists the highest and lowest market price of common stocks for each year, and the annual average market price was calculated in 

accordance with the annual trading value and volume of each year. 

Note 2: Please fill in the number of shares issued at the end of the year and the distribution according to the resolution by the Board of Directors or general 

meeting of shareholders the following year. 

Note 3: If there is a retroactive adjustment from distribution of bonus shares, the pre-adjustment and adjusted surplus per share shall be listed. 

Note 4: Dividends that have not been issued in the current year are accrued to the issuer of the annual surplus; the accumulated undistributed dividends 

of the current year should be disclosed separately. 

Note 5: P/E ratio = Average closing price per share in the current year/earnings per share. 

Note 6: P/D ratio = Average closing price per share in the current year/cash dividend per share. 

Note 7: Cash dividend yield = Cash dividend per share/average closing price per share in the current year. 

Note 8: The data of net worth per share and earnings per share shall be based on the most recent quarter numbers audited by CPAs as of the publication 

date of the annual report; the current year’s data as of the publication date of the annual report shall be filled in the remaining columns.  
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(VI) The Company’s dividend policy and implementation status: 

1. Dividend policy 

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, earnings for the year, if 

any, shall be distributed according to the following order: ①Tax payment; ② 10% of 

the earnings shall be set aside as legal reserve, except when the accumulated legal 

reserve has reached the Company's paid-in capital; ③ Other special reserve set aside or 

reserved required by the law and regulations or competent authorities; ④ For the 

balance and accumulated undistributed earnings, the Board of Directors shall propose 

a motion for earnings distribution, and it shall be submitted to the shareholders’ meeting 

for adoption to distribute the shareholder bonus. The company adopts a fixed and 

residual dividend policy for sustainable operation, sustainable growth and long-term 

financial planning based on the overall environment and the characteristics of the 

industrial development. Shareholders' dividends shall be distributed annually from the 

distributable earnings (including cash dividends or stock dividends); the cash dividend 

shall be maintained between 10% and 90%, but may be adjusted according to changes 

in the internal and external business environment. 

2. Proposed distribution of dividends at the shareholders’ meeting 

(1) The Company’s 2022 earnings distribution plan has been drafted by the Board of 

Directors as follows in accordance with the Company Act and the Articles of 

Incorporation of the Company. 

(2) The Company's losses after tax in 2022 were NT$19,190,996, and the undistributed 

earnings at the beginning of the period were first used to make up for the deficits, 

plus the remeasurement of the defined benefit plan of NT$ 4,553,055 recognized in 

the retained earnings. The earnings available for distribution at the end of the period 

was NT$91,598,422.88 and the amount proposed to be distributed as shareholder 

bonus was NT$30,528,000. Each share will be distributed at NT$0.5, and the 

amounts will be rounded down. For respective amounts less than NT$1, the 

Chairperson shall be authorized to contact a specific person to take them over.   

(3) After this proposal is approved by the general shareholders’ meeting, the Board of 

Directors is authorized to determine the ex-dividend date and other relevant matters. 

(4) If the Company issues new shares due to the buyback of treasury shares, or transfers 

treasury shares to employees, or cancels treasury shares, or issues rights shares, or 

issues new shares due to employee’s exercising subscription rights of stock option 

certificates, thus affecting the number of outstanding shares and resulting in a change 

in the dividend distribution ratio, the Company shall request the shareholders' 

meeting to authorize the Chairman to make an adjustment in proportion based on the 

number of outstanding shares on the ex-dividend date.  

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

2022 Distribution of Earnings 

Unit: New Taiwan Dollars 

Undistributed Retained Earnings at 

the Beginning of the Period 

 $106,236,363.88 

Add: Remeasurement of the Defined 

Benefit Plan Recognized in Retained 

Earnings 

  

4,553,055.00 

2022 Undistributed Retained 

Earnings After Adjustment 

 $110,789,418.88 

Less: Loss After Tax for the Current 

Year    

(19,190,996.00)  

2022 Distributable Earnings  $91,598,422.88 

Dividend to Shareholders - Cash 

Dividend of NT$0.5 per share 

(30,528,000.00)  

Undistributed Retained Earnings at 

the end of 2022 

 $61,070,422.88 
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(VII) Effect upon business performance and earnings per share of any stock dividend distribution 

proposed or adopted at the most recent shareholders' meeting: 

Not applicable, as there were no stock dividends or stock grants in this year. 

(VIII) Employee, director and supervisor remuneration 

1. The percentages or ranges of employee, director and supervisor remuneration, as set 

forth in the Company's Articles of Incorporation: 

If the Company has yearly profit, it should first set aside 1% to 3% as employees’ 

remuneration and no more than 4% as directors’ remuneration. However, if the 

Company still has a cumulative loss (including adjustment of the undistributed earnings 

amount) and makes a profit in the current year, it should first make up for the loss, and 

then appropriate from the balance the directors’ remuneration in cash according to the 

proportion in the preceding paragraph, and the employees’ remuneration is to be 

distributed in stock or cash. The distribution shall be implemented by the resolution of 

the Board of Directors with the presence of more than two-thirds of the directors and 

the approval by more than half of the directors present, and the resolution shall be 

reported to the shareholders' meeting. 

2. The basis for estimating the amount of employee and director remuneration, for 

calculating the number of shares to be distributed as employee remuneration, and the 

accounting treatment of the discrepancy, if any, between the actual distributed amount 

and the estimated figure, for the current period. 

The Company’s amount of remuneration to employees, directors and supervisors is 

not different from the estimated amounts recognized in the year. 

3. Status of distribution of remuneration approved by the Board of Directors: 

(1) Amount of remuneration to employees and remuneration to directors distributed in 

cash or stocks: If there is any discrepancy with the estimated figure for the fiscal 

year and the expenses are recognized, the discrepancy, its cause, and the status of 

treatment shall be disclosed. 

The Company concluded the accounts at a loss after tax in 2022. Therefore, no 

remuneration to employees and directors was distributed. 

(2) The amount of any employee compensation distributed in stocks, and the size of 

that amount as a percentage of the sum of the after-tax net income stated in the 

parent company only financial statements or individual financial statements for the 

current period and total employee compensation. 

Not applicable, as the Company did not distribute remuneration to employees in 

stocks in 2022. 
4. The actual distribution of employee, director and supervisor remuneration for the 

previous fiscal year (with an indication of the number of shares, monetary amount, and 

stock price of the shares distributed), and, if there is any discrepancy between the actual 

distribution and the recognized employee, director and supervisor remuneration, the 

discrepancy, cause, and how it is treated.  

Among the 2021 distributable earnings approved by the Board of Directors in 2022, 

remuneration to employees was NT$1,643,356 and remuneration to directors and 

supervisors was NT$2,479,620. After a resolution adopted at the shareholders’ meeting, 

the actual remuneration to employees was NT$1,643,356 and actual remuneration to 

directors and supervisors was NT$2,479,620. There was no discrepancy. 

(IX) Status of the company repurchasing its own shares: 

The Company did not directly repurchase its own shares. 

II. Issuance of corporate bonds: None. 

III. Issuance of preferred shares: None. 

IV. Issuance of global depository receipts: None. 
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V. Issuance of employee share subscription warrants: None. 

VI. Issuance of new restricted employee shares: None. 

VII. Issuance of new shares in connection with mergers and acquisitions or with acquisitions of 
shares of other companies: None. 

VIII. Implementation of the company’s capital allocation plans and benefits shown: 

(I) Description of the plans: For the period as of the quarter preceding the date of 
publication of the annual report, with respect to each uncompleted public issue or 
private placement of securities, and to such issues and placements that were completed 
in the most recent 3 years but have not yet fully yielded the planned benefits: This did 
not occur in the Company. 

(II) Status of implementation: Not applicable.  
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Five. Overview of Operations 

I. Description of the business 

(I) Scope of business: 

1. The company's major lines of business 

(1) Manufacturing of various paints and raw materials of synthetic resin for paints 

(2) Manufacturing and sale of multi-component resins 

(3) Manufacturing and sale of special coating resins 

(4) Manufacturing of various Binder fixing agents for printed fabrics and various 

adhesives for bamboo and wood 

(5) Manufacturing of fiber auxiliaries 

(6) Manufacturing, processing and trading of various reinforced plastic products 

(7) Manufacturing of auxiliary raw materials referred to in the preceding 

paragraphs 

(8) Purchase of raw materials for self-use, and import and export of finished 

products related to the businesses referred to in the preceding paragraphs 

 

2. Main products and their operating weight 

Major Product 2022 Operating Weight 

Unsaturated Polyester Resin 14.20% 

Polyester Polyol Resin 47.13% 

Polyurethane Granules (hot melt 

adhesive and shoe adhesive) 
30.10% 

 

3. Current products and services 

(1) Unsaturated Polyester Resin 

(2) Polyester Polyol Resin 

(3) Acid Resistant Coating 

(4) Chemical Tank 

(5) Polyurethane Granules (Hot Melt Adhesive and Shoe Adhesive) 

 

4. New products planned for development 

The Company’s future R&D direction: 

(1) Unsaturated polyester resin: 1. Development and application of solvent-free 

unsaturated polyester resin. 2. The application of bio-based materials in 

unsaturated polyester resin. 

(2) Polyester polyol resin: 1. Development and application of bio-based alkyd resin. 

2. Development and application of water-based polyurethane.      

(3) FRP products: The development of composite materials toward energy saving, 

environmental protection , light weight , and large-scale, such as automotive, 

yacht and other parts and components related to the supply of materials. 

(4) Polyurethane Granules (hot melt adhesive and shoe adhesive): Since the EU 

banned PVC products, most companies in the industry have switched to 

thermoplastic polyurethane (TPU) with environmentally friendly materials to 

replace PVC materials. 

The products involved include shoe materials, auto parts, pipe fittings, etc. In 

particular, the materials used in the biomedical field are one of the key items newly 

developed and quoted. 
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(II) Overview of the industry 

 

1. Links between the upstream, midstream, and downstream segments of the industry 

supply chain 
Structure of the plastic industry 

  

Adipic acid 

Oil refining and 

natural gas processing 

Raw material chemical 

industry 

Plastic raw material 

manufacturing industry 

Light oil 

(Naphtha) 

Low-density polyethylene (LDPE) 

High-density polyethylene (HDPE) 

Polyvinyl chloride (PVC) 

Ethylene 
Vinyl chloride 

monomer (VCM) 

Propylene 

Polycarbonate 

Acetone 
Methacrylic acid - (acrylic resin) 

Malondiol 

(Polycarbonate) 

Polypropylene (PP) 

Epichlorohydrin Epoxy 

Acrylonitrile (AN) 
(Acrylic resin) 

Acrylonitrile - Butadiene - Benzene 

Plastic products processing 

industry 

Films, sheets, bags, household goods 

Containers, pipe fittings, household 

goods 

Pipe, cloth, leather, film, molded 

products 

Acrylic sheets, auto parts, billboards, 
Electronic and home appliance parts, 

car parts, household goods 

Adhesive films, woven bags, car parts, 

household appliance coatings, 

adhesives, reinforced plastics, leather, 

coatings, adhesives 

Acrylonitrile butadiene styrene (ABS) 

Suitcases, plating materials, car and 

electronic parts 

Butadiene 

Cyclohexane 

Hexamethy

lenediamin

Caprolactam 

Nylon 66 
Caprolactam industrial fiber, 

engineering plastics 

Nylon 6 

Styrene monomer 

  (SM) 

(Polystyrene) General purpose 

Impact resistance 

Foam type 

Hydraulic tubing, films, gears, 

impact-resistant car parts and 

utensils, plastic shells, toys, molded 

products 
Plastic helmets, electrical appliances, 

motorcycle and auto parts 

Food containers, packaging materials, 

polystyrene coatings, adhesives 

Be

nz

(Alkyd) 

(Acrylic resin) 

Toluene 

Toluene 

diisocyanate 
  

Polyurethanes (PU) 

Xylene Phthalic 

anhydride 

(Alkyd) 

(Unsaturated polyester resin) 

(UP) 

Aromatic 

hydrocarbons 

Coatings, adhesives 

Synthetic leather, foam, coatings, 

adhesives, soles, heat insulation 

materials, pulleys 

Buttons, Formica, FRP products, 

coatings 

Urea Melamine 

(Amino resin) 

Melamine resin 

(Urea-formaldehyde) Methanol Formaldehyde 

(phenol formaldehyde resin) 

(Phenolic) Phenol 

Polyacetal resin 

(Polyacetal) 

Tableware, adhesives, molding 

powder 

Plywood adhesives, tableware, 

containers, coatings 

Adhesives, electronic parts, office 

machines and other molded products 

Electrical and mechanical parts, car 

parts, consumer materials 
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2. Development trends and competition for the company's products  

(1) Unsaturated Polyester Resin 

The market demand for polyester resin in 2022 was affected by the COVID-19 

pandemic and the war between Ukraine and Russia, which caused a significant 

decline in global economic activities. However, the market for unsaturated 

polyester resin was in electronics-related industries, the Company was not 

significantly affected. In addition to exploring markets other than China, Yong 

Shun is also actively developing new biodegradable products to improve market 

and product competitiveness. Therefore, the overall market performance of 

unsaturated resins is similar to that in 2021. 

(2) Polyester Polyol Resin 

The main products of polyester polyol resin are shoes and textile-related 

applications. In 2022, under the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the 

impact of rising global inflation and prices, the demand in the consumer market 

declined sharply, in particular since the 2022 Q2. However, polyester polyol 

resins are mainly used in the textile and footwear markets, and their impact is 

more serious. The sales of polyester polyol resins for the whole year fell sharply 

compared to 2021 .  

(3) Polyurethane Granules (Hot Melt Adhesive and Shoe Adhesive) 

Polyurethane granules are mainly sold to the textile and footwear industries. 

However, the severity of the pandemic in Southeast Asia in the second half of 

2021 caused many shoe factories to shut down production. In 2022, due to the 

deferred order effect of 2021, the downstream market significantly replenished 

inventory. Therefore, the performance of the polyurethane granule market has 

grown double-digit compared to last year. 

(III) Overview of technologies and research and development 

1. Research and development expenditures in the most recent fiscal year or during the 

current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report: NT$7,370 

thousand.  

2. Unsaturated polyester resin: Mainly develop unsaturated resins with low volatility 

solvents, good heat resistance, and biodegradable characteristics. They have 

biodegradable characteristics, and at the same time have the mechanical properties 

and physical and chemical properties of general resins, regardless of whether it is 

unsaturated resin of biological origin or unsaturated resin with biodegradable 

function, we expect to achieve its maximum use limit and reduce the diffusion of 

harmful substances. 

3. Polyester polyol resin: Bio-based plastics and green energy polymer materials have 

become an inevitable trend due to worldwide environmental protection 

requirements. Therefore, polyester polyol resin is mainly developed with low 

environmental pollution. We also use green polymer materials to produce high 

value-added products, such as polyester polyol resin with special functions or high 

quality adhesives, synthetic leather, elastomers, and other finished products. 

4. FRP products: Development of higher value-added composite materials to meet the 

needs of environmental protection and energy conservation projects, such as 

shipbuilding and wind power generation and other related projects material supply .  

5. Polyurethane granules (hot-melt adhesive and shoe adhesive): Development of 

low-temperature processing hot-melt plastics for textile, footwear and industrial 

purposes, and development of waterproof and moisture-permeable TPU materials. 

(IV) Long- and short-term business development plans 

1. Short-term business plans 

(1) Monitor changes in raw materials in all aspects and stabilize the source and 

price of raw materials. 

(2) Continue to de-bottleneck related processes, reduce production costs, and 

improve product price competitiveness. 

(3) Actively develop new products in line with customer needs. 
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2. Long-term business plans 

(1) Increase R&D manpower, constant R&D and innovation, and develop high 

value-added products. 

(2) Continue to develop environment-friendly products, high-end products, and 

high value-added products. 

(3) Strengthen cooperation with leading international manufacturers and maintain 

the Company's status as an important supplier and strategic partner in Asia. 

II. Analysis of the market and the production and marketing situation 

(I) Analysis of the market 

1. Sales area of major products 

The Company's products are mainly sold domestically, while overseas markets are 

mainly located in Northeast Asia, Southeast Asia, and a small portion of the China 

market. 

2. Market share 

Major product 
2022 production 

value 

Projected market 

share 

Unsaturated Polyester Resin 
NT$154,904 

thousand 
5~10% 

Polyester Polyol Resin 
NT$678,384 

thousand 
10~15% 

Polyurethane Granules (hot melt 

adhesive and shoe adhesive) 

NT$316,499 

thousand 
5~10% 

3. Supply and demand conditions for the market in the future and market growth 

potential 

Due to the wide variety of synthetic resin products, our customers cover a variety 

of industries, and the products are closely related to the needs of people's livelihood. 

The products are detailed as follows: 

(1) Unsaturated polyester resin: Unsaturated polyester resins are mainly used for 

button, polycarbonate processing, and general FRP products, etc., and are 

supplied in the vicinity of domestic factories of manufacturers. Local FRP 

yachts, artificial marble building materials, automotive refinishing, and high-

grade wood coatings grew slightly.In addition, overseas sales of soft resins, 

transparent resins, and acid-resistant coatings are also increasing year by year. 

(2) Polyester polyol resin: polyester polyol resins are mainly used in PU and other 

related industries. The Company is currently developing biocompatible or 

solvent-free products, such as water-based synthetic leather resin, water-based 

adhesive grade, solvent-free PU products. 

(3) FRP products: Used for marine accessories, air pollution prevention and wind 

power generation and other related purposes. 

(4) Polyurethane granules (hot melt adhesive and shoe adhesive): used in the 

footwear, textile, and industrial applications. 

4. Competitive niches and favorable and unfavorable factors for future development 

and countermeasures 
(1) Favorable factors 

A. Product are diverse and widely used 

Polyurethane granules are widely used in various petrochemical mid-

stream and downstream industries. In addition to the integration of key 

technologies for joint development, many new applications have been 

developed, allowing many industries to have more room for development 

in order to accelerate structural adjustment and transformation, and 

diversify the impact of the downturn in a single industry. 

B. Complete mid-stream and upstream raw materials industry chain 

As the middle and upstream products in the petrochemical industry 

in Taiwan are complete, 70% of our raw materials are purchased from 

Taiwan. Given this, the supply is immediate and the price fluctuation is 
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lower than that of China, and the price is also lower than that of Southeast 

Asia, so the price of our products is relatively competitive. 

C. Cost-effective products provided to customers 

Due to the high flexibility of the production process, the Company's 

products can meet the needs of customers in small quantities, enhance 

customer competitiveness, increase customer profitability, and form 

long-term business partnerships with our customers. 
(2) Unfavorable factors and countermeasures 

A. Global inflation has greatly increased inventory cost pressure 

Since 2022 Q2, the market has been affected by global inflation and 

the demand in the consumer market has been sluggish. 

As a result, it is difficult for downstream consumer products to be 

depleted, and the overall sales volume and gross profit of synthetic resins 

have declined sharply, causing a significant increase in the inventory cost 

of raw materials and finished goods. 

Countermeasures: In addition to actively monitoring changes in raw 

material prices, Yong Shun also strives to establish inventory 

management of raw materials and finished goods to prevent the drastic 

price fluctuations which may cause the loss of raw materials and finished 

goods from falling in price. 

B. China peers continue to set up factories in Southeast Asia 

Due to the trade war between the U.S. and China, the downstream 

processing industry in China has been relocating to Southeast Asia and 

South Asia. Synthetic resins in the same industry in China are also 

gradually setting up relevant factories in this region to seize the market. 

The competition in the fats and oils industry is becoming increasingly 

fierce. 

Countermeasures: Proactively expand the market in Northeast Asia 

and assess the feasibility of setting up overseas factories. 

 

(II) Usage and manufacturing processes of the main products 

1. Important usage for the main products 

Product name Important usage 

Unsaturated polyester 

resin 

Can be used in FRP products (e.g., wave boards, bathtubs, barrel 

tanks, boats, car parts), injection molding (e.g., artificial marble, 

artistic dolls), coatings (e.g., decoration board patch, coatings), etc. 

Polyester Polyol Resin 

Can be used in foams, coatings, adhesives, synthetic leather, 

elastomers, thermoplastic resins, spandex and waterproof materials, 

etc. 

Polyurethane Granules 
(Hot melt adhesive 
and shoe adhesive) 

Can be used in textiles, footwear, coatings, adhesives, synthetic 

leather, elastomers and waterproof materials, etc. 
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2. Manufacturing processes of the main products 

(1) Manufacturing process of unsaturated polyester resin 

 

(2) Manufacturing process of polyester polyol resin 

 

(3) Manufacturing process of polyurethane granules (hot melt adhesive and shoe adhesive) 

 

 

(III) Supply situation of the major raw materials 

Raw material Main suppliers Supply situation 

Adipic acid (AA) Japan, Korea Good 

Ethylene glycol (EG) Taiwan Good 

Propylene glycol (PG) U.S.A. Good 

Styrene monomer (SM) Taiwan Good 

Phthalic anhydride (PA) Taiwan Good 

Butylene glycol (1.4BG) Taiwan, U.S.A. Good 

Maleic anhydride (MA) Taiwan Good 

Fiberglass (FB) Taiwan Good 

Methylene diphenyl diisocyanate 

(MDI) 
Japan, Korea Good 

 

Production 

materials 

for 

production 

pipes 

Viscosity/hardness 

Polyme

rization 

Quality 

testing 
Drying Packaging Warehousing 

Materials 

by 

production 

control 

Polyme

rization 

Quality 

testing 

Acid value, 

consistency 

Cooling Dissolution Adjustment Packaging Warehousing 

Viscosity gelation time 

Additive addition 

Materials 

by 

production 

control 

Polyme

rization 

Quality 

testing 

Acid value, hydroxide 

group value 

Cooling Packaging Warehousing  
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(IV) List of main procurement and sales clients in the most recent 2 fiscal years 

1. Information of major procurement clients in the most recent 2 fiscal years 

Unit: NT$ thousand 

Item 

2021 2022 March 31, 2023 

Name Amount 

As 
percentage 
of annual 
net sales 

(%) 

Relations
hip with 

the issuer 
Name Amount 

As 
percentage 
of annual 
net sales 

(%) 

Relationshi
p with the 

issuer 
Name Amount 

As a percentage of 
net sales for the 

current year up to 
the previous 
quarter (%) 

Relationshi
p with the 

issuer 

1 Company A 123,104  10.72 None Company D 150,934  13.31 None Company B 24,287  11.26 None 

2 Company B 146,341  12.74 None Company B 175,361  15.46 None Company A 15,272  7.08 None 

3 Company C 147,883  12.87 None Company C 173,673  15.31 None Company C 55,034  25.52 None 

 Others 731,305  63.67 None Others 634,266  55.92 None Others 121,089  56.14 None 

 Net sales 1,148,633  100.00  Net sales 1,134,234  100.00  Net sales 215,682  100.00   

Company A is a listed company in Taiwan manufacturing resins and plastics; Company B is a manufacturer in Taiwan of PU adhesives sold mainly in China and Southeast Asia; Company C is a listed 

company in Taiwan manufacturing and selling synthetic leather.Company D manufactures and sells synthetic leather for China. 

 

2. Information of major suppliers in the most recent 2 fiscal years  
Unit: NT$ thousand 

Item 

2021 2022 March 31, 2023 

Name Amount 

As 
percentage 
of annual 

net 
procurement 

(%) 

Relationsh
ip with the 

issuer 
Name Amount 

As 
percentage 
of annual 

net 
procuremen

t (%) 

Relationsh
ip with the 

issuer 
Name Amount 

As a percentage 
of net 

procurement for 
the current year 

up to the 
previous quarter 

(%) 

Relationshi
p with the 

issuer 

1 Supplier A 322,833  37.16 None Supplier A 322,043  38.44 None Supplier A 45,594  34.46 None 

2 Supplier B 272,125  31.32 None Supplier B 193,934  23.15 None Supplier B 29,739  22.47 None 

3 Supplier C 68,750  7.91 None Supplier C 119,981  14.32 None Supplier D 14,310  10.81 None 

 Others 205,118  23.61 None Others 201,827  24.09 None Others 42,688  32.26 None 

 
Net 

procurement 
868,826  100.00  

Net 

procurement 
837,785  100.00  

Net 

procurement 
132,331  100.00  

Supplier A is a major foreign manufacturer of AA; Supplier B, Supplier C is a major manufacturer and distributor in Taiwan of midstream raw materials including 1.4BG and PG, and Supplier D is a 

major domestic manufacturer of midstream raw materials for PA.MA. These raw materials are the major raw materials for resin production, accounting for more than 70% of the total costs. Given this, 

the total annual procurement amount mostly exceed 10%.
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(V) Production volume in the most recent 2 fiscal years 

Unit: NT$ thousand/tons 

 

(VI) Sales volume in the most recent 2 fiscal years 

Unit: NT$ thousand/tons 

 

III. The number of employees employed in the most recent 2 fiscal years, and during the 
current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report 

Year 

                Production volume 

Main product 

2021 2022 

Production 

capacity 

Production 

volume 

Production 

value 

Production 

capacity 

Production 

volume 

Production 

value 

Unsaturated Polyester Resin 28,000  2,830 143,859 28,000  2,725 154,904 

Polyester Polyol Resin 30,000  8,934 675,648 30,000  7,227 678,384 

Polyurethane Granules (hot melt 

adhesive and shoe adhesive) 
5,400 2,364 286,827 5,400 2,424 316,499 

Total 63,400  14,128 1,106,334 63,400  12,376 1,149,787 

                 Year 

Sales volume 

Main product 

2021 2022 

Domestic sales Foreign sales Domestic sales Foreign sales 

Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value 

Unsaturated Polyester Resin 1,866 101,351 951 54,033 1,811 107,752 820 53,363 

Polyester Polyol Resin 5,808 503,074 1,511 123,590 4,964 482,003 557 52,612 

Polyurethane Granules (hot melt 

adhesive and shoe adhesive) 
1,519 188,303 721 84,038 1,705 234,236 817 107,133 

Total 9,193 792,728 3,183 261,661 8,480 823,991 2,194 213,108 

Year 2021 2022 April 30, 2023 

Number of 

employees 

Sales and management 

personnel 
35 36 37 

Direct personnel 93 95 95 

R&D personnel 9 9 9 

Total 137 140 141 

Average age 45.39 46.08 46.04 

Average years of service 12.04 11.7 11.71 

Education level 

Doctoral degree 2.19% 2.14% 2.13% 

Master's Degree 7.30% 7.86% 6.38% 

College 39.42% 35.72% 37.59% 

Senior high school 42.34% 47.14% 46.81% 

Below senior high school 8.75% 7.14% 7.09% 
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Note: The above personnel includes the foreign workers 

IV. Disbursements for environmental protection 

(I) Any losses suffered by the company in the most recent fiscal year or during the current 

fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report due to environmental 

pollution incidents (including any compensation paid and any violations of 

environmental protection laws or regulations found in environmental inspection, 

specifying the disposition dates, disposition reference numbers, the articles of law 

violated, and the content of the dispositions): 

 

(II) Disclosure of future action plans (including improvement measures) and an estimate 

of possible expenses that could be incurred currently and in the future (including 

measures being or to be taken for losses, penalties and estimated compensation). If a 

reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explanation of the facts of why it cannot be 

made shall be provided: As described above. 
 

V. Labor relations 

(I) List any employee benefit plans, continuing education, training, retirement systems, 

and the status of their implementation, and the status of labor-management agreements 

and measures for preserving employees' rights and interests 

1. Employee welfare measures 

The Company formed an Employee Welfare Committee on October 20, 1984, and 

regularly contributes to the welfare fund. The benefit plans are as follows: 

(1) Employee birthday parties. 

(2) Gifts on new year and festivals. 

(3) Establishment of funds for weddings and funerals for employees. 

(4) Establishment of reading and leisure facilities. 

(5) Employee trips.  

(6) Year-end dinner and party. 

(7) Labor and health insurance provided as required by the government; 

employees are also covered with group accident insurance, occupational 

hazard insurance and term life insurance. 

(8) Establishment of on-the-job scholarships for employees and scholarships for 

their children to encourage them to receive further education and their children 

to work hard at school. 

(9) A regular health examination is provided for employees, enabling them to 

better grasp their health situation. 

Disposition 

date 

Disposition 

order number 

Provisions of 

violation of laws 

and regulations 

Cause of violation 

Amount of 

fine 

(Unit: NT$) 

Improvement measures 

2023.3.15 Fu-Xiao-Wei-

Zi No. 

1120068360 

Article 15 of the 

Fire Services Act 

The location of the 

outdoor storage place 

for public dangerous 

goods did not meet the 

requirements and the 

open space around was 

not wide enough. 

32,000 Relevant units have been 

instructed to strengthen 

employee education and 

training and make 

improvements as soon as 

possible. 
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(10) To allow employees to care for their families after work, we make an effort to 

help them work more efficiently with peace of mind, further increasing 

production benefits.From July 1, 2015, in addition to providing 7 days of leave 

as required by the Act of Gender Equality in Employment, we also provide 

employees with paid 3-day family care leave. This leave is not included in the 

calculation of personal leave. 

(11) Lunch subsidy for all employees. 

2. Continuing education and training of employees 

(1) In accordance with labor safety and labor health related laws, we regularly 

conduct hazard awareness and first-aid training courses, as well as fire safety 

drills.  

(2) In accordance with the Company’s Education and Training Procedures, each 

unit proposes education, management training and professional training for 

new employees or special occupational training for specific personnel in 

conjunction with the annual plan, business strategy and work requirements. 

(3) The Company trained 946 persons in 2022, totaling 1,904 hours, with a 

training expenditure of NT$634 thousand. 

(4) Financial information transparency personnel that have attained a license as 

designated by the competent authorities: 

International internal auditor license: 1 person in the Finance Department. 

3. The Company has formulated its “Work Rules” that set forth the code of ethical 

conduct for employees, while the “Code of Practice for Safety and Health” 

discloses measures for the work environment and personal safety protection of 

employees. The above “Work Rules” and “Code of Practice for Safety and Health” 

have been made known to employees and are disclosed on the Company’s website 

at www.yongshunchemical.com / Company Profile / Internal Regulations / “Work 

Rules” and “Code of Practice for Safety and Health”. 

4. Pension system 

(1) We have established the “Employee Retirement Management Procedures” in 

accordance with the “Labor Standards Act”. These Procedures are applicable 

for all regular employees appointed before the implementation of the “Labor 

Pension Act” promulgated on July 1, 2005, as well as employees who 

continued to opt for the “Labor Standards Act” after the implementation of the 

“Labor Pension Act”. In accordance with the requirements of these Procedures, 

the payment of pensions is calculated based on the length of service and the 

average wages of the 6 months prior to the approved retirement date. Two base 

points are given for each full year of service rendered; after 15 years of service, 

one base point is given for each full year of service rendered. The total number 

of base points shall be no more than 45. From January 1994, 4% (changed to 

8% in April 1995 and 10% in January 1997) of monthly wages is contributed 

to the labor retirement reserve fund, monitored by the Labor Pension Fund 

Supervisory Committee. The fund is deposited into a special account at the 

Trust Department of the Bank of Taiwan under the name of the Committee. In 

2022, 4 meetings held to resolve the retirement of 4 employees. Up to the end 

of 2022, a total of 60 employees have applied for pension. In addition, before 

the end of each fiscal year, the balance of the special labor retirement reserve 

fund account is calculated. Where there is insufficient funds to pay the 

aforementioned amount, the difference will be made up by the Company by 

the end of March of the following year. In 2022, a total NT$1,932 thousand 

was contributed to the labor retirement reserve fund. 

(2) For employees using the new labor retirement system, the Company 

contributes 6% of their monthly wages to be deposited into a personal pension 

account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance. In 2022, a total NT$2,242 thousand 

was contributed to the pension fund under the new system. 
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5. Labor-management agreements: As the Company does its utmost to maintain a 

harmonious relationship with employees, there have been no significant labor-

management disputes. 

(II) List any losses suffered by the company in the most recent fiscal year and up to the 

annual report publication date due to labor disputes (including any violations of the 

Labor Standards Act found during labor inspections, specifying the disposition dates, 

disposition reference numbers, the articles of law violated, the substance of the legal 

violations, and the content of the dispositions), and disclose an estimate of possible 

expenses that could be incurred currently and in the future and measures being or to 

be taken; if a reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explanation of the facts of why 

it cannot be made shall be provided. 

The Company's management system and welfare system are sound, and the 

relationship between labor and management is harmonious. In the future, the 

Company will uphold the business philosophy of creating a good working 

environment in a harmonious labor-management environment, and formulate various 

education and training programs, so that employees' knowledge and experience will 

improve as the Company grows. Based on the above, after assessment, the Company 

believes that there is no consideration of signing a collective agreement with the labor 

union of the Company. In the future, it will be processed according to the Company's 

development needs and laws and regulations. 

 

VI. Cyber security management 

(I) Describe the cybersecurity risk management framework, cybersecurity policies, 

concrete management programs, and investments in resources for cybersecurity 

management 
The Company’s cybersecurity policy takes into account security protection 

approaches, measures or mechanisms involving necessary and cost-effective 

management. By doing this, we are able to ensure that the Company's information 

assets are protected from misuse, leakage, tampering, theft and destruction. In the 

event of an emergency such as malicious attack, destruction or misuse, the Company 

will be able to make necessary responses to ensure normal operations are restored 

within the shortest possible time. This way, the possible impact from these events that 

may jeopardize the Company's operations can be reduced. In addition, the Company 

has strengthened its information security organization, defined the authority of IT 

personnel, implemented information security management, and secured information 

assets in order to ensure the smooth progress of the overall IT business. The Company 

has adopted the following management measures:  

1. Personnel: Through the reinforcement of education and training, we strengthen 

the capabilities of employees, enabling them to respond to intentional or 

unintentional external information security incidents. 

2. Process: We have a comprehensive information internal control process in place. 

The effectiveness and reliability of the process are inspected by an annual 

periodic internal audit and external audit from time to time by a CPA firm.  

3. Technology: An offsite backup mechanism has been established. The network is 

centrally managed and we have established an integrated firewall and enterprise-

level anti-virus software. 

With the effective management of the above measures, the Company’s 

information security risks are reasonably controlled. 

(II) List any losses suffered by the company in the most recent fiscal year or during the 

current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report due to significant 

cybersecurity incidents, the possible impacts therefrom, and measures being or to be 
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taken; if a reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explanation of the facts of why it 

cannot be made shall be provided. 

The Company did not suffer any losses in the most recent fiscal year or during the 

current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report due to significant 

cybersecurity incidents.  
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VII. Important contracts 

Nature of the 

contract 

Contracting 

parties 

Commencement date and expiration 

date of the contract 
Main content 

Restrictive 

clauses 

Material 

procurement 

contract 

Grand Pacific 

Petrochemical 
2023.01.01~2025.12.31 Material procurement None 

Material 

procurement 

contract 

Air Liquide Far 

Eastern 

From 2014.09.01, the contract will be 
forever effective and renewed 

automatically every 10 years unless 
amended or terminated by mutual 

consent of both parties. 

Material procurement None 

Material 

procurement 

contract 

San Fu Chemical 

From 2012.09.26, the contract will be 
forever effective and renewed 

automatically every five years unless 
amended or terminated by mutual 

consent of both parties. 

Material procurement None 

Material 

procurement 

contract 

Linde LienHwa 

Group 

From 2022.07.01, the contract will be 
forever effective and renewed 

automatically every five years unless 
amended or terminated by mutual 

consent of both parties. 

Material procurement None 

Loan contract Mizuho Bank 2022.07.31~2023.07.31 

Short-term loan and 

import and export 

credit 

None 

Loan contract 

Mega 

International 

Commercial Bank 

2022.04.23~2023.04.29 

Short-term loan and 

import and export 

credit 

Among which 

NT$50 million 

is revocable 

Loan contract 

Mega 

International 

Commercial Bank 

2022.11.23~2023.11.22 
Trading limit for 

financial derivatives 
None 

Loan contract 
Taiwan 

Cooperative Bank 
2022.03.22~2023.12.07 

Short-term loan and 

import and export 

credit 

None 

Loan contract 
Taiwan Business 

Bank 
2022.10.12~2023.10.24 

Short-term loan and 

import and export 

credit 

None 

Loan contract 
Taiwan Business 

Bank 
2022.10.12~2023.10.24 

Trading limit for 

financial derivatives 
None 

Loan contract 
Hua Nan 

Commercial Bank 
2022.07.19~2023.11.22 

Short-term loan and 

import and export 

credit 

None 

Lease contract Hung, Kuo-Ting 2022.01.01~2026.12.31 Lease of plant None 

Lease contract Yu, Chun-Te 2022.11.01~2027.12.31 Lease of warehouse None 
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Six. Overview of Financial Status 

I. Condensed balance sheets and statements of comprehensive income for the past 5 
fiscal years 

(I) Condensed Balance Sheets  
Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheets - Adoption of IFRSs 

Unit: NT$ thousand 

Note 1: Financial information from 2018 to 2022 has been audited by CPAs. 

Note 2: Financial information for 2023 Q1 has been reviewed by CPA Weng, Po-Jen and CPA Hsueh, Chun-Min 

of Deloitte Taiwan, with a standardized unmodified review report issued.  

Note 3: The motion for the 2022 earnings distribution has not yet been resolved by the shareholders’ meeting.  

 
Year 

 
 
 
Item 

Financial information for the past 5 fiscal years (Note 1) 
Financial 

information 
for the 

current year 
up to March 

31, 2023 
(Note 2) 

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Current assets 983,123 941,697 969,543 1,020,386 848,335 898,035 

Property, plant, and equipment 374,775 366,985 354,248 349,508 347,729 345,183 

Intangible assets 238 188 138 88 38 25 

Other assets 36,385 51,349 43,600 37,813 74,590 78,578 

Total assets 1,394,521 1,360,219 1,367,529 1,407,795 1,270,692 1,321,821 

Current 

liabilities 

Before 

distribution 
237,185 192,142 189,017 203,821 121,397 155,551 

After distribution 267,713 228,776 237,862 264,877 Note 3 -- 

Non-current liabilities 69,278 75,296 65,808 64,301 85,316 84,193 

Total 

liabilities 

Before 

distribution 
306,463 267,438 254,825 268,122 206,713 239,744 

After distribution 336,991 304,072 303,670 329,178 Note 3 -- 

Equity attributable to owners of 

the parent company 
1,088,058 1,092,781 1,112,704 1,139,673 1,063,979 1,082,077 

Share capital 610,560 610,560 610,560 610,560 610,560 610,560 

Capital surplus 53,309 53,309 53,309 53,309 53,309 53,309 

Retained 

earnings  

Before 

distribution 
424,189 428,912 448,835 475,804 400,110 418,208 

After distribution 393,661 392,278 399,990 414,748 Note 3 -- 

Other equity -- -- -- -- -- -- 

Treasury stock -- -- -- -- -- -- 

Non-controlling interest -- -- -- -- -- -- 

Equity 

total amount 

Before 

distribution 
1,088,058 1,092,781 1,112,704 1,139,673 1,063,979 1,082,077 

After distribution 1,057,530 1,056,147 1,063,859 1,078,617 Note 3- -- 
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Parent Company’s Condensed Balance Sheets - Adoption of IFRSs 
Unit: NT$ thousand 

Note 1: Financial information of the parent company only financial statements from 2018 to 2022 has 

been audited by CPAs. 

Note 2: The motion for the 2022 earnings distribution has not yet been resolved by the shareholders’ meeting. 

  

Year 

 

 

Item 

Financial information for the past 5 fiscal years (Note 1) Financial 

information 

for the 

current year 

up to March 

31, 2023 

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Current assets 895,640 855,108 881,656 913,023 774,808 

Not 

applicable 

Funds and 

investments 
14,341 49,266 50,476 61,129 62,558 

Property, plant, and 

equipment 
340,998 335,770 330,479 326,546 326,216 

Intangible assets 238 188 138 88 38 

Other assets 20,340 20,111 18,869 19,203 22,911 

Total assets 1,271,557 1,260,443 1,281,618 1,319,989 1,186,531 

Current 

liability 

Before 

distribution 
115,440 102,236 106,223 117,087 66,245 

After 

distribution 
145,968 138,870 155,068 178,143 Note 2 

Long-term liabilities 45,957 46,273 46,034 45,866 45,841 

Other liabilities 22,102 19,153 16,657 17,363 10,466 

Liability 

total 

amount 

Before 

distribution 
183,499 167,662 168,914 180,316 122,552 

After 

distribution 
214,027 204,296 217,759 241,372 Note 2 

Share capital 610,560 610,560 610,560 610,560 610,560 

Capital surplus 53,309 53,309 53,309 53,309 53,309 

Retained 

earnings 

Before 

distribution 
424,189 428,912 448,835 475,804 400,110 

After 

distribution 
393,661 392,278 399,990 414,748 Note 2 

Other equity -- -- -- --  

Treasury stock -- -- -- --  

Equity 

total 

amount 

Before 

distribution 
1,088,058 1,092,781 1,112,704 1,139,673 1,063,979 

After 

distribution 
1,057,530 1,056,147 1,063,859 1,078,617 Note 2 
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(II) Condensed Statements of Comprehensive Income 
 

Consolidated Condensed Statements of Comprehensive Income - Adoption of IFRSs 
Unit: NT$ thousand 

Note 1: Financial information of consolidated financial statements from 2018 to 2022 has been audited by CPAs. 

Note 2: Financial information for 2023 Q1 has been reviewed by CPA Weng, Po-Jen and CPA Hsueh, Chun-Min of 

Deloitte Taiwan, with a standardized unmodified review report issued.   

Year 
 
 
Item 

Financial information for the past 5 fiscal years (Note 1) 
Financial 

information for 
the current 
year up to 
March 31, 

2023 (Note 2) 

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Operating revenue 1,167,662 1,046,430 810,058 1,148,633 1,134,234 215,682 

Operating margin 109,452 115,407 119,610 177,252 49,267 40,867 

Operating profit (loss) 25,266 31,805 43,200 90,191 (27,134) 21,018 

Non-operating income and 

expenses 

5,772 2,622 15,669 3,201 3,779 
525 

Net profit (loss) before tax 31,038 34,427 58,869 93,392 (23,355) 21,543 

Net income (loss) for the 

period from continuing 

operations 

23,538 33,722 55,516 77,381 (19,191) 18,098 

Loss from discontinued 

operations 
-- -- -- -- -- -- 

Net income (loss) for the 

period 
23,538 33,722 55,516 77,381 (19,191) 18,098 

Other comprehensive 

income (loss) for the period 

(net amount after tax) 

458 1,529 1,040 (1,568) 4,553 -- 

Total comprehensive 

income (loss) for the period 
23,996 35,251 56,556 75,813 (14,638) 18,098 

Net income (loss) 

attributable to the owners of 

the parent company 

23,538 33,722 55,516 77,381 (19,191) 18,098 

Net income attributable to 

non-controlling interests 
-- -- -- -- -- -- 

Total comprehensive 

income (loss) attributable to 

the owners of the parent 

company 

23,996 35,251 56,556 75,813 (14,638) 18,098 

Total comprehensive 

income attributable to non-

controlling interests 

-- -- -- -- -- -- 

Earnings (loss) per share  0.39 0.55 0.91 1.27 (0.31) 0.30 
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Parent Company’s Statements of Comprehensive Income - Adoption of IFRSs  
Unit: NT$ thousand  

Note 1: Financial information of the parent company only financial statements from 2018 to 2022 

has been audited by CPAs. 

 

  

Year 

 

Item 

Financial information in the most recent 5 fiscal years (Note 1) Financial 

information 

for the 

current year 

up to March 

31, 2023 

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Operating revenue 1,019,214 897,214 664,234 1,021,713 974,263 

Not 

applicable 

Operating margin 110,617 102,708 108,068 153,399 37,217 

Operating profit (loss) 44,897 34,996 43,518 78,757 (26,982) 

Non-operating income and 

expenses 
(13,984) (641) 15,518 14,360 3,643 

Net profit (loss) before tax 30,913 34,355 59,036 93,117 (23,339) 

Current net profit (loss) 
from continuing 
operations 

23,538 33,722 55,516 77,381 (19,191) 

Loss from discontinued 

operations 
-- -- -- -- -- 

Net income (loss) for the 

period 
23,538 33,722 55,516 77,381 (19,191) 

Other comprehensive 

income (loss) for the period 

(net amount after tax) 

458 1,529 1,040 (1,568) 4,553 

Total comprehensive 

income (loss) for the period 
23,996 35,251 56,556 75,813 (14,638) 

Net income (loss) 

attributable to the owners of 

the parent company 

23,538 33,722 55,516 77,381 (19,191) 

Net income attributable to 

non-controlling interests 
-- -- -- -- -- 

Total comprehensive 

income (loss) attributable to 

the owners of the parent 

company 

23,996 35,251 56,556 75,813 (14,638) 

Total comprehensive 

income attributable to non-

controlling interests 

-- -- -- -- -- 

Earnings (loss) per share  0.39 0.55 0.91 1.27 (0.31) 
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(III) Names of CPAs and the audit opinions in the most recent 5 fiscal years 

Note: Financial information for 2023Q1 has been reviewed by CPA Weng, Po-Jen and CPA Hsueh, 

Chun-Min of Deloitte Taiwan, with a standardized unmodified review report issued. . 

II. Financial analysis in the most recent 5 fiscal years 

Consolidated Financial Analysis - Adoption of IFRSs 

Year CPA firm name CPA Opinion Remarks 

2018 Deloitte Taiwan 
Yu, Su-Huan; Weng, 

Po-Jen 

Unmodified 

opinion 
－ 

2019 Deloitte Taiwan 
Chih, Jui-Chuan; Yu, 

Su-Huan 

Unmodified 

opinion 
－ 

2020 Deloitte Taiwan 
Chih, Jui-Chuan; Yu, 

Su-Huan 

Unmodified 

opinion 
－ 

2021 Deloitte Taiwan 
Hsueh, Chun-Min; 

Chih, Jui-Chuan 

Unmodified 

opinion 
－ 

2022 Deloitte Taiwan 
Hsueh, Chun-Min; 

Chih, Jui-Chuan 

Unmodified 

opinion 
－ 

Year 

 

 

Analysis Item 

Financial analysis in the most recent 5 fiscal years(Note 1) 
Financial 

information for 

the current year up 

to March 31, 2023 

(Note 2) 
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Financial 

structure 

(%) 

Ratio of liabilities to 

assets 
21.98 19.66 18.63 19.05 16.27 18.14 

Ratio of long-term 

funds to property, plant, 

and equipment 

308.81 318.29 332.68 344.48 330.51 337.87 

Solvency 

(%) 

Current ratio 414.50 490.10 512.94 500.63 698.81 577.33 

Quick ratio 268.80 340.12 389.39 342.44 464.84 400.02 

Times interest earned 1,728.44 1,943.97 5,022.16 13,674.42 -2,092.96 6,168.45 

Operating 

capabilities 

Accounts receivable 

turnover ratio (times) 
5.78 5.09 4.01 4.82 5.51 3.76 

Average collection 

days 
63 71 91 75 66 97 

Inventory turnover ratio 

(times) 
2.91 2.97 2.69 3.55 3.62 2.43 

Accounts payable 

turnover ratio (times) 24.33 21.83 13.03 18.10 28.32 10.15 

Average sales days 125 122 135 102 100 150 

Property, plant and 

equipment turnover 

ratio (times) 

3.12 2.85 2.29 3.29 3.26 2.5 

Total asset turnover 

ratio (times) 
0.84 0.77 0.59 0.82 0.89 0.65 

Profitability 

Return on assets 1.73 2.56 4.14 5.62 -1.37 1.32 

Return on equity 2.12 3.09 5.03 6.87 -1.74 1.63 

Ratio of pre-tax income 

to paid-in capital 5.08 5.64 9.64 15.30 -3.83 3.53 

Net profit rate 2.02 3.22 6.85 6.74 -1.69 8.39 

EPS (NT$) 0.39 0.55 0.91 1.27 -0.31 0.30 



 

84 
 

Note 1: Financial data from 2018 to 2022 has been audited by CPA with financial reports issued. 

Note 2: Financial data for 2023Q1 has been reviewed by CPA Weng, Po-Jen and CPA Hsueh, Chun-Min of Deloitte 

Taiwan, with a standardized unmodified review report issued. 

  

Cash flow  

Cash flow ratio 10.62 79.00 61.71 -10.94 96.90 5.64 

Cash flow adequacy 

ratio 
198.89 253.88 150.36 78.44 98.15 181.50 

Cash reinvestment ratio -2.63 6.64 4.32 -3.77 3.07 0.47 

Leverage 
Operating leverage 2.08 1.84 1.52 1.25 0.15 1.27 

Financial leverage 1.08 1.06 1.03 1.01 0.96 1.02 

Reasons for changes in financial ratios in the most recent 2 fiscal years: 

1. Current ratio and quick ratio: The current ratio increased by 39.59% and 35.74% compared to the previous period, 

respectively, mainly due to the increase in the ratio of decrease in current liabilities to decrease in current assets during the 

period. 

2. Times interest earned: The decrease of 115.31% compared to the previous period was mainly due to the net loss before tax 

for the period. 

3. Accounts payable turnover ratio (times): The increase of 56.47% compared to the previous period was mainly due to the 

increase in cost of goods sold for the period compared to the previous period. 

4. Return on assets and return on equity: The decrease of 124.38% and 125.35%, respectively, compared to the previous 

period was mainly due to the net loss before tax for the period. 

5. Ratio of pre-tax income to paid-in capital: The decrease of 125.01% compared to the previous period was mainly due to 

the net loss before tax for the period. 

6. Earnings per share: The decrease of 124.80% compared to the previous period was mainly due to the net loss after tax for 

the period. 

7. Cash flow ratio: The increase of 985.96% compared to the previous period was mainly due to the increase of net cash flow 

from operating activities in the current period compared to the previous period. 

8. Cash flow adequacy ratio: The increase of 25.13% compared to the previous period was mainly due to the increase in net 

cash flow from operating activities in the current period and the past five years. 

9. Cash reinvestment ratio: The increase of 181.51% compared to the previous period was mainly due to the increase in net 

cash flow from operating activities. 

10. Operating leverage: The decrease of 88.31% compared to the previous period was mainly due to the net operating loss for 

the period. 
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Parent Company’s Financial Analysis - Adoption of IFRSs 
 

Year 

 

 

Analysis Item 

Financial analysis in the most recent 5 fiscal years (Note 1) 
Financial 

information 
for the 
current 

year up to 
March 31, 

2023 

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Financial 

structure 
(%) 

Ratio of liabilities to 

assets 
14.39 13.30 13.18 13.66 10.33 

Not 
applicable 

Ratio of long-term funds 

to property, plant, and 

equipment  

338.90 344.94 355.66 368.37 343.42 

Solvency 

(%) 

Current ratio 775.85 836.41 830.00 779.78 1,169.61 

Quick ratio 564.59 639.33 672.64 580.36 849.53 

Times interest earned 18,722.29 62,563.64 393,673.33 490,189.47 -12,653.55 

Operating 

capabilities 

Accounts receivable 

turnover ratio (times) 
4.36 4.10 3.25 4.41 4.79 

Average collection days 83 89 112 82 76 

Inventory turnover ratio 

(times) 
3.58 3.61 3.06 4.42 4.27 

Accounts payable 

turnover ratio (times) 
23.00 23.02 16.43 22.28 26.57 

Average sales days 101 101 119 82 85 

Property, plant and 

equipment turnover ratio 

(times) 

2.99 2.67 2.01 3.13 2.99 

Total asset turnover 

ratio (times) 
0.80 0.71 0.52 0.77 0.82 

Profitability 

Return on assets (%) 1.78 2.67 4.37 5.95 -1.52 

Return on equity (%) 2.12 3.09 5.03 6.87 -1.74 

As 

percentage 

of paid-in 

capital (%) 

Operating 

income 
7.35 5.73 7.13 12.90 -4.42 

Pre-tax 

profit 
5.06 5.63 9.67 15.25 -3.82 

Net profit rate (%) 2.31 3.76 8.36 7.57 -1.97 

EPS (NT$) 0.39 0.55 0.91 1.27 -0.31 

Cash flow 

Cash flow ratio (%) 32.67 130.51 65.57 5.35 101.80 

Cash flow adequacy 

ratio (%) 
123.97 147.51 108.73 76.65 91.43 

Cash reinvestment ratio 

(%) 
-2.07 6.10 1.93 -2.45 0.38 

Leverage 
Operating leverage 1.24 1.29 1.20 1.11 0.71 

Financial leverage 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.99 

Reasons for changes in financial ratios in the most recent 2 fiscal years: 

1. Ratio of liabilities to assets: The decrease of 24.39% compared to the previous period was mainly due to the increase in the 

ratio of decrease in liabilities to decrease in assets for the period. 

2. Current ratio and quick ratio: The current ratio increased by 49.99% and 46.38% compared to the previous period, 

respectively, mainly due to the increase in the ratio of decrease in current liabilities to decrease in current assets during the 

period.  

3. Times interest earned: The decrease of 102.58% compared to the previous period was mainly due to the net loss before tax 

for the period. 

4. Return on assets and return on equity: The decrease of 125.54% and 125.35%, respectively, compared to the previous period 

was mainly due to the net loss before tax for the period. 
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Note 1: Financial information of the parent company’s financial statements from 2018 to 2022 has been audited by 

CPAs. 

  

5. Ratio of operating profit and pre-tax income to paid-in capital: The decrease of 134.26% and 125.06%, respectively, was 

mainly due to the net operating loss and net loss before tax. 

6. Earnings per share: The decrease of 124.80% compared to the previous period was mainly due to the net loss after tax for 

the period. 

7. Cash flow ratio: The increase of 1.801.68% compared to the previous period was mainly due to the increase of net cash flow 

from operating activities in the current period compared to the previous period. 

8. Cash reinvestment ratio: The increase of 226.71% compared to the previous period was mainly due to the increase in net 

cash flow from operating activities. 

9. Operating leverage: The decrease of 36.08% compared to the previous period was mainly due to the net operating loss for 

the period. 
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III. Audit committee's report for the financial statements in the most recent fiscal year 

 
 

Audit Committee Review Report 

 

The Board of Directors prepared and presented the Company's 2022 Business Report, 

financial statements (consolidated and parent company only), and earnings distribution 

proposal, of which the financial statements (consolidated and parent company only) were 

audited by Hsueh Chun-Min and Chih, Jui-Chuan of Deloitte Taiwan, with an audit report 

issued. 

 

The Audit Committee found no inconsistency in the reports and reports prepared by the 

Board of Directors. Presented in accordance with Article 14-4 of the Securities and 

Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Act. 

 

To 

 

2023 General Shareholders’ Meeting of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

 

 

 

Chairman of the Audit Committee: Chou Man-Chin 

 

 

 
March 28, 2023 
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IV. inancial statements in the most recent fiscal year: 

 
 

Independent Auditor's Report 
 
To Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd.: 
 
Opinion 
  We have duly audited the consolidated balance sheet of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and 
Subsidiaries for December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the consolidated comprehensive income statement, 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement from January 1 to 
December 31, 2022 and 2021 as well as notes to the consolidated financial statements (including the 
summary of material accounting policies). 
  In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above have been prepared, in all 
material respects, in conformity with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 
Securities Issuers, and are fairly stated in terms of the consolidated financial position of Yong Shun 
Chemical Co., Ltd. as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the consolidated financial performance and 
consolidated cash flow from January 1 to December31, 2022 and 2021. 
Basis for Opinion 
  Certified Public Accountants conducted our audits in accordance with Regulations Governing 
Auditing and Attestation of Financial Statements using auditing principles. Our responsibilities as an 
auditor under the abovementioned standards are explained in the Responsibilities paragraph. All 
relevant personnel of the accounting firm have followed the CPA code of ethics and maintained 
independence from Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries when performing their duties. We 
believe that the evidence obtained provides an adequate and appropriate basis for our opinion. 
Key Audit Matters 
  Key audit matters are matters that we considered to be the most important, based on professional 
judgment, when auditing the 2022 consolidated financial statements of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 
and its subsidiaries. These issues were addressed when we audited and formed our opinions on the 
consolidated financial statements. Therefore, we do not provide opinions separately for individual 
matters. 
  The key audit items of the consolidated financial statements of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its 
subsidiaries for 2022 are as follows: 
Key audit matter: Authenticity of sales, revenue and shipment to specific customers 
  Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the design, development, 
and manufacturing of resin products. Since changes in the major customers have a significant impact on 
the financial statements, and sales revenue is inherently subject to a high degree of risk, we have 
identified customers meeting specific criteria, and assessed the authenticity of the sales revenue 
transactions for these customers as a key audit matter. Please refer to Notes 4 and 21 to the consolidated 
financial statements. 
  In response to the above important matters, the main audit procedures implemented by the CPAs are 
as follows:  
 1. Understanding and testing the revenue recognition of a specific sales target is critical to the design 

and execution of internal control. 
 2. For the aforementioned specific sales target revenue details, select an appropriate sample to check 

the relevant supporting documents and test the collection status to confirm that the sales 
transaction actually occurred. 

 3. We review whether material sales returns and discounts have occurred after the balance sheet date, 
in order to confirm whether there is material misstatement in the revenue of specific sales targets. 
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Other Items 
  Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. has only prepared the parent company’s financial statements for the 
years 2022 and 2021, and we have issued an audit report with a unmodifiedopinion for reference. 
Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
  The responsibility of management is to prepare consolidated financial statements that fairly present 
the financial position of the Company in accordance with the Guidelines Governing the Preparation of 
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Interpretations issued by the Financial Supervisory 
Commission, and to maintain necessary internal controls relevant to the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
  In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management's responsibility also includes 
assessing Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries' ability to continue operating, the disclosure 
of related matters, and the adoption of the basis of accounting, unless management intends to liquidate 
Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries or to cease operations, or there is no practical 
alternative to liquidation or cessation of operations. 
  The governance units (including the Audit Committee) of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its 
subsidiaries are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 
  The purposes of our audit were to obtain reasonable assurance of whether the consolidated financial 
statements were prone to material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error, and to issue a report 
of our audit opinions. We considered assurance to be reasonable only if it is highly credible. However, 
audit tasks conducted in accordance with auditing principles do not necessarily guarantee detection of all 
material misstatements within the consolidated financial statements. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error. Misstatements are considered material if the individual amount or aggregate total is reasonably 
expected to affect economic decisions of the financial statement user. 
  When conducting audits in accordance with auditing principles, we exercised judgments and raised 
doubts as deemed professionally appropriate. We also performed the following tasks as an auditor: 
 1. Identifying and assessing risk of material misstatement within the consolidated financial 

statements that are attributed to fraud or error; designing and executing appropriate response 
measures for the identified risks; and obtaining adequate and appropriate audit evidence to 
support audit opinions. Fraud may involve conspiracy, forgery, intentional omission, untruthful 
declaration, or breach of internal controls, and our audit did not find any material misstatement 
where the risk of fraud is greater than the risk of error. 

 2. Obtaining an understanding of the internal controls relevant to our audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries' internal controls. 

 3. Assessing the appropriateness of accounting policies adopted by the management, and the 
rationality of accounting estimates and related disclosures. 

 4. Based on the evidence obtained, making a conclusion on the appropriateness of the management's 
adoption of the basis of accounting and whether there is any material uncertainty about the events 
or circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the ability of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 
and its subsidiaries to continue operating. We are bound to remind consolidated financial 
statement users to pay attention to relevant disclosures in the notes of statements within our audit 
report if material uncertainties exist in regards to the aforementioned events or circumstances, and 
amend audit opinions when the disclosures are no longer appropriate. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the audit report. However, future events or 
circumstances may cause Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries to cease to have the 
ability to continue operating. 

 5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements 
(including the notes in the statements), and whether the consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 6. Obtaining sufficient and appropriate audit evidence of financial information and entities within the 
group, and expressing opinions on consolidated financial statements. Our responsibilities as auditor 
are to instruct, supervise, and execute audits and form audit opinions on the Company. 
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  We have communicated with the governance body about the scope, timing, and significant findings 
(including significant defects in internal controls identified during the audit) of our audit. 
  We have also provided the governance body with a declaration of independence stating that all 
relevant personnel of the accounting firm have complied with the CPA code of ethics, and communicated 
with the governance body on all matters that may affect the auditor's independence (including relevant 
protection measures). 
  From the matters communicated with the governance unit, we decided on the key audit items for the 
audit of the annual consolidated financial statements of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its 
subsidiaries for 2022. These issues have been addressed in our audit report except for: 1. Certain topics 
that are prohibited by law from disclosing to the public; or 2. Under extreme circumstances, topics that 
we decide not to communicate in the audit report because they may cause higher negative effects than 
the benefits they bring to public interest. 
 
 
 
 
 
Deloitte Taiwan 
CPA Hsueh, Chun-Min 

  
CPA Chih, Jui-Chuan 

 
 
 
 
 
Financial Supervisory Commission approval 
number 
 Letter referenced Jin-Guan-Cheng-Shen Zi 
No. 1090358185 

 Financial Supervisory Commission approval 
number 
 Letter referenced Jin-Guan-Cheng-Shen Zi No. 
1060023872 

 
 
 
 
 

March 28, 2023 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2022 
Unit: NTD thousands 

 

    December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Code  Asset  Amount  %  Amount  % 

  Current assets         
1100  Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6 and 27)    $ 338,067     27    $ 353,700     25 
1136  Financial assets measured at amortized costs - current (Notes 8, 9 and 

27) 
 

   99,000     8     99,000     7 
1150  Net notes receivable (Notes 10, 21 and 27)     35,616     3     42,776     3 
1170  Net accounts receivable (Notes 10, 21 and 27)     115,246     9     213,418     15 
130X  Inventory (Note 11)     248,837     19     305,869     22 
1410  Prepayments     2,843     -     4,881     - 
1220  Income tax assets of the period (Note 23)     8,274     1     19     - 
1479  Other current assets (Notes 15 and 27)     452     -     723     - 
11XX  Total current assets     848,335     67     1,020,386     72 

                       

  Non-current assets         
1600  Property, plant and equipment (Notes 13, 25 and 29)     347,729     27     349,508     25 
1755  Right-of-use assets (Note 14)     34,627     3     2,436     - 
1821  Intangible assets     38     -     88     - 
1840  Deferred income tax assets (Note 23)     36,098     3     33,040     3 
1915  Prepaid equipment purchases     1,843     -     315     - 
1920  Refundable deposits (Note 27)     2,022     -     2,022     - 
15XX  Total non-current assets     422,357     33     387,409     28 

                       
1XXX  Total assets    $ 1,270,692     100    $ 1,407,795     100 

           
Code  Liabilities and equity         

  Current liabilities         
2100  Short-term borrowing (Notes 16, 25 and 27)    $ 34,000     3    $ 69,913     5 
2110  Short-term notes payable (Notes 16, 25 and 27)     12,714     1     30,005     2 
2120  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - current (Notes 7 

and 27) 
 

   344     -     188     - 
2130  Contractual liabilities - current (Note 21)     9,262     1     4,496     - 
2150  Notes payable (Notes 17 and 27)     4,121     -     5,831     1 
2170  Accounts payable (Notes 17 and 27)     24,526     2     42,150     3 
2219  Other payables (Notes 18 and 27)     28,892     2     33,714     2 
2280  Lease liabilities - current (Notes 14, 25 and 27)     6,847     -     2,490     - 
2230  Income tax liabilities of the period (Note 23)     247     -     14,546     1 
2399  Other current liabilities     444     -     488     - 
21XX  Total current liabilities     121,397     9     203,821     14 

                       

  Non-current liabilities         
2570  Deferred income tax liabilities (Note 23)     45,999     4     46,938     4 
2580  Lease liabilities - non-current (Notes 14, 25 and 27)     24,224     2     -     - 
2550  Liability reserves - non-current (Note 14)     4,627     -     -     - 
2640  Net defined benefit liabilities - non-current (Note 19)     10,466     1     17,363     1 
25XX  Total non-current liabilities     85,316     7     64,301     5 

                       
2XXX    Total liabilities     206,713     16     268,122     19 

                       

  Owner’s equity attributable to owner of the Company (Note 20)         

  Share capital         
3110  Common stock     610,560     48     610,560     43 
3200  Capital surplus     53,309     4     53,309     4 

  Retained earnings         
3310  Legal reserve     210,483     17     202,902     14 
3320  Special reserve     98,028     8     98,028     7 
3350  Undistributed retained earnings     91,599     7     174,874     13 
3300  Total retained earnings     400,110     32     475,804     34 

                       
3XXX  Total equity     1,063,979     84     1,139,673     81 

                       

  Total liabilities and equity    $ 1,270,692     100    $ 1,407,795     100 
 

The attached notes are part of the consolidated financial report. 
 

Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien Head of Accounting: Chen Fu-Mei 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 
Unit: NTD thousand, except earnings (losses) per share which is in NTD 

 

    2022  2021 
Code    Amount  %  Amount  % 

4000  Operating revenue (Note 21)    $ 1,134,234     100    $ 1,148,633     100 
                       
5000  Operating costs (Notes 11 and 

22) 
 

 (  1,084,967 )   (  95 )   (  971,381 )   (  84 ) 
                       
5900  Operating margin     49,267     5     177,252     16 
                       
  Operating expenses (Note 22)         
6100  Selling expenses   (  37,531 )   (  3 )   (  40,893 )   (  4 ) 
6200  Administrative expenses   (  37,361 )   (  3 )   (  39,559 )   (  3 ) 
6300  Research and development 

expenses 
 

 (  5,569 )   (  1 )   (  5,709 )   (  1 ) 
6450  Expected credit recovery 

gain (impairment loss) 
 

   4,060     -   (  900 )     - 
6000  Total operating 

expenses 
 

 (  76,401 )   (  7 )   (  87,061 )   (  8 ) 
                       
6900  Operating net (loss) income   (  27,134 )   (  2 )     90,191     8 
                       
  Non-operating income and 

expenses (Notes 22 and 31) 
 
       

7100  Interest income     2,013     -     1,579     - 
7010  Other income     655     -     846     - 
7020  Other gains and losses     2,176     -     1,464     - 
7050  Finance costs   (  1,065 )     -   (  688 )     - 
7000  Total non-operating 

income and 
expenses 

 

   3,779     -     3,201     - 
                       
7900  Net profit (loss) before tax   (  23,355 )   (  2 )     93,392     8 
                       
7950  Income tax income (expense) 

(Note 23) 
 

   4,164     -   (  16,011 )   (  1 ) 
                       
8200  Net (loss) profit for the year   (  19,191 )   (  2 )     77,381     7 
 
(continued on the next page) 
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(continued from the previous page) 
 

    2022  2021 
Code    Amount  %  Amount  % 

  Other comprehensive income 
(Notes 19, 20 and 23) 

 
       

  Items not reclassified into 
profit or loss: 

 
       

8311  Remeasurement of 
defined benefit 
obligation 

 

  $ 5,691     1   ( $ 1,960 )     - 
8341  Income tax related to 

items not 
reclassified 

 

 (  1,138 )     -     392     - 
8310       4,553     1   (  1,568 )     - 
8300  Other comprehensive 

income of the 
period (net after 
tax) 

 

   4,553     1   (  1,568 )     - 
                       
8500  Comprehensive income of the 

period 
 

 ( $ 14,638 )   (  1 )    $ 75,813     7 
                       
  Net profit attributable to         
8610  Owner of the Company   ( $ 19,191 )   (  2 )    $ 77,381     7 
8620  Non-controlling interest     -     -     -     - 
8600     ( $ 19,191 )   (  2 )    $ 77,381     7 
                       
  Consolidated profit or loss 

attributable to 
 
       

8710  Owner of the Company   ( $ 14,638 )   (  1 )    $ 75,813     7 
8720  Non-controlling interest     -     -     -     - 
8700     ( $ 14,638 )   (  1 )    $ 75,813     7 
                       
  Earnings (losses) per share (Note 

24) 
 
       

9750  Basic   ( $ 0.31 )         $ 1.27      
9850  Diluted   ( $ 0.31 )         $ 1.27      
 
 
 

The attached notes are part of the consolidated financial report. 
 
 
 
 
Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien Head of Accounting: Chen, Fu-Mei 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 
Unit: NTD thousands 

 

    Share capital    Retained earnings   
Code    Number of shares 

(thousand)  Amount  Capital surplus  Legal reserve  Special reserve  
Undistributed 

retained earnings  Total equity 
A1  Balance on January 1, 2021     61,056    $ 610,560    $ 53,309    $ 197,246    $ 98,028    $ 153,561    $ 1,112,704 
                                      
  Earnings distribution for 2020               
B1  Legal reserve     -     -     -     5,656     -   (  5,656 )     - 
B5  Cash dividends     -     -     -     -     -   (  48,844 )   (  48,844 ) 
                                      
D1  Net profit for 2021     -     -     -     -     -     77,381     77,381 
                                      
D3  Other after-tax comprehensive income of 2021     -     -     -     -     -   (  1,568 )   (  1,568 ) 
                                      
D5  Total comprehensive income of 2021     -     -     -     -     -     75,813     75,813 
                                      
Z1  Balance on December 31, 2021     61,056     610,560     53,309     202,902     98,028     174,874     1,139,673 
                                      
  Earnings distribution for 2021               
B1  Legal reserve     -     -     -     7,581     -   (  7,581 )     - 
B5  Cash dividends     -     -     -     -     -   (  61,056 )   (  61,056 ) 
                                      
D1  Net loss for 2022     -     -     -     -     -   (  19,191 )   (  19,191 ) 
                                      
D3  Other after-tax comprehensive income of 2022     -     -     -     -     -     4,553     4,553 
                                      
D5  Total comprehensive income of 2022     -     -     -     -     -   (  14,638 )   (  14,638 ) 
                                      
Z1  Balance on December 31, 2022     61,056    $ 610,560    $ 53,309    $ 210,483    $ 98,028    $ 91,599    $ 1,063,979 
 
 
 

The attached notes are part of the consolidated financial report. 
 
 
 
Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien Head of Accounting: Chen, Fu-Mei 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 
Unit: NTD thousands 

 

Code    2022  2021 
  Cash flow from operating activities     
A10000  Net income (loss) before tax   ( $ 23,355 )    $ 93,392 
A20010  Income, expenses and losses     
A20100  Depreciation expenses     22,514     22,449 
A20200  Amortization expenses     50     50 
A20300  Expected credit impairment 

(recovery gain) 
 

 (  4,060 )     900 
A20400  Net gain (loss) of financial liabilities 

at fair value through profit or 
loss 

 

   156   (  730 ) 
A20900  Finance costs     1,065     688 
A21200  Interest income   (  2,013 )   (  1,579 ) 
A22500  Gain on disposal of property, plant, 

and equipment 
 

 (  180 )   (  572 ) 
A23800  Loss on decline in value of 

inventories 
 

   20,683     1,689 
A29900  Inventory scrapping loss     1,254     983 
A30000  Net change of operating assets and 

liabilities 
 

   
A31130  Notes receivable     7,160   (  3,639 ) 
A31150  Accounts receivable     102,232   (  40,011 ) 
A31200  Inventory     35,095   (  89,054 ) 
A31230  Prepayments     2,038   (  827 ) 
A31240  Other current assets     293     230 
A32125  Contractual liabilities     4,766     1,532 
A32130  Notes payable   (  1,710 )   (  974 ) 
A32150  Accounts payable   (  17,624 )   (  10,414 ) 
A32180  Other payables   (  4,822 )     1,584 
A32230  Other current liabilities   (  2,453 )     79 
A32240  Defined benefit liabilities   (  2,344 )   (  1,254 ) 
A33000  Cash from operations     138,745   (  25,478 ) 
A33100  Interest received     1,991     1,579 
A33300  Interest paid   (  718 )   (  597 ) 
A33500  Income tax paid   (  22,387 )     2,204 
AAAA  Net cash inflow (outflow) from 

operating activities 
 

   117,631   (  22,292 ) 
             
 
(continued on the next page) 
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(continued from the previous page) 
 

Code    2022  2021 
  Cash flow from investment activities     
B02700  Acquisition of property, plant and 

equipment 
 

 ( $ 10,030 )   ( $ 13,027 ) 
B02800  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant 

and equipment 
 

   197     572 
B07200  Increase in prepaid equipment purchase   (  1,843 )   (  315 ) 
BBBB  Net cash outflow from investments   (  11,676 )   (  12,770 ) 
             
  Cash flow from financial activities     
C00200  Increase (decrease) in short-term 

borrowings 
 

 (  35,913 )     29,913 
C00500  Decrease in short-term notes payable   (  17,291 )   (  13,045 ) 
C04020  Repayment of lease liability principal   (  7,328 )   (  6,775 ) 
C04500  Dividend payment to owner of the 

Company 
 

 (  61,056 )   (  48,844 ) 
CCCC  Net cash outflow from financial 

activities 
 

 (  121,588 )   (  38,751 ) 
             
EEEE  Decrease in cash and cash equivalents   (  15,633 )   (  73,813 ) 
             
E00100  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 

the year 
 

   353,700     427,513 
             
E00200  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 

year 
 

  $ 338,067    $ 353,700 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The attached notes are part of the consolidated financial report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien Head of Accounting: Chen, Fu-Mei 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 
(NTD thousand, Unless Stated Otherwise) 

 
 I. Organization and Operations 

  Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as "the Company") was established 
in July 1965, mainly engaged in the manufacturing and sales of multi-component resins, special 
coating resins and fiber auxiliaries as well as the manufacturing, processing and trading of 
various reinforced plastic-steel products, the manufacturing of the auxiliary raw materials, the 
purchase of raw materials, and the import and export of finished products. 
  The Company's stock has been traded on the Taipei Exchange of the Republic of China 
since February 1999. 
  The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, collectively 
referred to as the “Group” are presented in the Company’s functional currency, the New 
Taiwan dollar. 

 II. Financial Statement Approval Date and Procedures 
  The consolidated financial report was approved by the Board of Directors on March 13, 
2023. 

 III. Application of new standards, amendments, and interpretations 
 (I) Initial application of the amendments to the Regulations Governing the Preparation of 

Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC 
Interpretations (SIC) (hereinafter referred to collectively as the “IFRSs”) endorsed and issued 
into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC) 
  The application of the revised IFRSs approved and issued by the FSC will not result in a 
material change in the accounting policies of the Group. 

 (II) FSC-approved IFRSs applicable from 2023 onwards 

New/amended/revised standards and interpretations  
Effective date of IASB 

announcement 
Amendments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting 

Policies” 
 January 1, 2023 (Note 1) 

Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting 
Estimates” 

 January 1, 2023 (Note 2) 

Amendments to IAS 12 "Deferred Tax Related to Assets 
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction" 

 January 1, 2023 (Note 3) 

 
Note 1: The amendments apply to the annual reporting periods beginning on or after 

January 1, 2023. 
Note 2: The amendments apply to changes in accounting estimates and in accounting 

policies that occur during the annual reporting period beginning on and after 
January 1, 2023. 

Note 3: In addition to recognizing deferred income tax on the temporary difference 
between leases and decommissioning obligations on January 1, 2022, the 
amendment is applicable to transactions that occur after January 1, 2022. 

 1. Amendments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies” 
  The amendments clearly stipulate that the Group shall determine the material 
accounting policy information to be disclosed based on the definition of materiality. If 
accounting policy information can be reasonably expected to affect the decisions made 
by the main users of general-purpose financial statements based on these financial 
statements, the accounting policy information is material. The amendments also 
clarify: 
˙ Accounting policy information related to non-material transactions, other matters, 

or circumstances that are non-material, and the Group is not required to disclose 
such information. 



 

98 
 

˙ The Group may determine the relevant accounting policy information to be 
material due to the nature of transactions, other matters, or circumstances, even if 
the amount is not material. 

˙ Not all accounting policy information related to the significant transaction, other 
matters, or circumstances is material. 

  In addition, the amendments also illustrate that if the accounting policy 
information is related to material transactions, other matters, or circumstances while 
in line with the following circumstances, the information may be material: 
 (1) The Group changes its accounting policies during the reporting period, and the 

change results in a material change in financial statement information; 
 (2) The Group selects its applicable accounting policies from the options allowed 

by the standards; 
 (3) Due to the lack of specific standards, the Group has formulated accounting 

policies in accordance with IAS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes and Errors in 
Accounting Estimates"; 

 (4) The Group discloses the accounting policies that are determined using 
significant judgments or assumptions; or 

 (5) Complicated accounting treatment rules are involved and the user of the 
financial statements relies on the information to understand significant 
transactions or other matters or circumstances. 

 2. Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates” 
  The amendments define accounting estimates as the currency amount affected by 
measurement uncertainty in the financial statements. When applying accounting 
policies, the Group may need to measure the items in the financial statements using 
the currency amount that cannot be observed directly and must be estimated. When 
measuring the effect of the changes in technique or input value on accounting 
estimates, they shall be the changes in accounting estimates if they are not the 
correction of the previous errors. 

  In addition to the impacts referred to above, as of the date the financial report was 
authorized for issue, the Group has assessed the possible impact that the application of other 
standards and interpretations will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial 
position and financial performance. 

 (III) IFRSs issued by the IASB but not yet approved and released by the FSC 

New/amended/revised standards and interpretations  
Effective date announced by 

IASB (Note 1) 
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution 

of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint 
Venture” 

 To be determined 

Amendments to IFRS 16 “Lease Liabilities under Sale and 
Leaseback” 

 January 1, 2024 (Note 2) 

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”  January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IFRS 17  January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IFRS 17 "First-time Application of IFRS 
17 and IFRS 9 - Comparative Information" 

 January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as 
Current or Non-current” 

 January 1, 2024 

Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with 
Contractual Clauses” 

 January 1, 2024 

 
Note 1: Unless stated otherwise, the new/amended/ revised standards and interpretations 

above are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after their 
respective effective dates. 

Note 2: A seller-lessee should apply the amendments to IFRS 16 retrospectively to sale and 
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of IFRS 16. 
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Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current” (Amended in 
2020) and “Non-current Liabilities with Contractual Clauses” (Amended in 2022) 
  Amended in 2020 to clarify that when determining whether a liability is classified as 
non-current, it is necessary to assess whether the Group has the right to defer the settlement 
period to at least 12 months after the reporting period at the end of the reporting period. If 
the Group has the right at the end of the reporting period, regardless of whether the Group 
expects to exercise the right, the liabilities are classified as non-current. 
  The 2020 amendments further specify that if the Group must comply with certain 
conditions before it has the right to defer payment of its liabilities, the Group must have 
complied with certain conditions at the end of the reporting period, even if the lender is 
testing whether the Group has complied with those conditions at a later date. The 2022 
amendments further clarify that only the contractual terms that must be followed before the 
end of the reporting period will affect the classification of liabilities. Although the terms of 
the contract to be followed within 12 months after the reporting period do not affect the 
classification of liabilities, relevant information must be disclosed to enable users of the 
financial statements to understand that the Group may not be able to comply with the 
contractual terms and be required to make repayments within 12 months after the reporting 
period. 
  The 2020 amendments provide that, for the purpose of liability classification, the 
aforementioned settlement refers to the extinguishment of liabilities due to the transfer of 
cash, other economic resources, or equity instruments of the Group to the counterparty. 
However, if the terms of the liability may be based on the choice of the counterparty, 
resulting in the settlement of the equity instrument of the Group, and if the choice is 
separately recognized in equity according to IAS 32 "Financial Instruments: Presentation", 
the aforementioned clauses do not affect the classification of liabilities. 
  Except for the above impact, as of the date the financial report authorized for issue, the 
Group is continuously assessing the possible impact that the application of other standards 
and interpretations will have on the Group’s financial position and financial performance 
and will disclose the relevant impact when the assessment is completed. 

 IV. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 (I) Statement of compliance 

  The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the 
IFRSs approved and issued by the FSC. 

 (II) Basis of preparation 
  In addition to financial instruments measured at fair value and net defined benefit 
liabilities recognized at the present value of defined benefit obligations less the fair value of 
planned assets, the consolidated financial statements are prepared based on historical cost. 
  The fair value measurements, which are grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree 
to which the fair value measurement inputs are observable and based on the significance of 
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, are described as follows: 
 1. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities. 
 2. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 

observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., 
derived from prices). 

 3. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 (III) Criteria for distinguishing current and non-current assets and liabilities 

  Current assets include: 
 1. Assets held primarily for trading purposes; 
 2. Assets expected to be realized within 12 months of the balance sheet date, and 
 3. Cash and cash equivalents (other than those restricted from being exchanged or 

settled more than 12 months after the balance sheet date). 
  Current liabilities include: 
 1. Liabilities held primarily for trading purposes; 
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 2. Liabilities due for settlement within 12 months of the balance sheet date (long-term 
refinancing or rescheduled agreements completed after the balance sheet date and 
before the issuance of the financial report are also current liabilities), and 

 3. Liabilities that cannot be unconditionally deferred until at least 12 months after the 
balance sheet date. If the terms of the liability may be settled by issuing equity 
instruments at the choice of the counterparty, the classification will not be affected. 

  Assets or liabilities that are not classified as current assets or liabilities are classified as 
non-current assets or non-current liabilities. 

 (IV) Basis of consolidation 
  The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial instruments of the 
Company and the entities controlled by the Company (i.e., its subsidiaries). In the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the operating income of the acquired or 
discontinued subsidiaries since the acquisition date or until the disposal date has been 
included. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries 
to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by the Group. All intra-group 
transactions, balances, income, and expenses are eliminated in full upon consolidation. The 
total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attributable to the owners and to the non-
controlling interest of the Company, even if the non-controlling interest becomes a loss. 
  Where the change of ownership rights of the subsidiaries of the Group does not result in 
a loss of control, it shall be treated as an equity transaction. The book values of the Group 
and non-controlling interests have been adjusted to reflect the change in the relative interests 
in subsidiaries. The difference between the adjusted amount of non-controlling interests and 
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is directly recognized as equity and 
belongs to the owners of the Company. 
  For details of subsidiaries, shareholding ratio and business items, please refer to note 12 
and Table 3. 

 (V) Foreign currency 
  Within the financial statements for each individual entity, every transaction in a 
currency other than the individual's functional currency (foreign currency) is converted into 
the functional currency based on the exchange rate on the transaction date. 
  Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are converted at the closing rate on 
the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary items 
or the conversion of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period they occur. 
  Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value 
are converted at the prevailing exchange rates on the date when the fair values are 
determined, and the resulting exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss for the 
current period, except for those arising from changes in fair value that should be recognized 
in other comprehensive income. 
  Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies measured at historical cost are 
converted at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of transactions and are not re-
converted. 

 (VI) Inventory 
  Inventory includes raw materials, supplies, finished goods and work-in-progress. 
Inventories are measured at a lower cost or net realizable value. Comparisons between cost 
and net realizable value are made on an item-by-item basis, except for inventories of the 
same type. The net realizable value is the estimated selling price under normal 
circumstances less the estimated costs still to be invested to completion and the estimated 
costs required to complete the sale. The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted-
average method. 

 (VII) Property, plant, and equipment 
  Property, plant and equipment are recognized at cost and subsequently measured at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 
  Property, plant and equipment are depreciated separately over their useful lives on a 
straight-line basis for each significant component. The Group reviews the estimated useful 
lives, residual values and depreciation methods at least at the end of each year and defers 
the effect of changes in applicable accounting estimates. 
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  When property, plant and equipment are de-recognized, the difference between the net 
disposal price and the carrying amount of the assets is recognized in profit or loss. 

 (VIII) Intangible assets 
 1. Single acquisition 

  Individually acquired intangible assets with finite useful lives are initially 
measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization 
and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line 
basis over their useful lives. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives, residual 
values and amortization methods at least at the end of each year and defers the effect 
of changes in applicable accounting estimates. Intangible assets with uncertain useful 
lives are presented at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 

 2. Derecognition 
  When intangible assets are de-recognized, the difference between the net disposal 
price and the carrying amount of the assets is recognized in the current profit or loss. 

 (IX) Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets. 
  The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that 
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets may have been 
impaired. If any indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated. If the recoverable amount of an individual asset cannot be estimated, the Group 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
Common assets are allocated to the group of minimum cash-generating units on a 
reasonable and consistent basis. 
  The recoverable amount is the higher fair value less costs to sell and value in use. If the 
recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, then 
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable 
amount, and the impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss. 
  When an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset or 
cash-generating unit is increased to the revised recoverable amount, provided that the 
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount (net of amortization or 
depreciation) that would have been determined if the impairment loss had not been 
recognized in prior years for that asset or cash-generating unit. Reversal of impairment loss 
is recognized in profit or loss. 

 (X) Financial instruments 
  Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the consolidated balance sheet 
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
  When financial assets and financial liabilities are not initially recognized at fair value 
through profit or loss, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issuance of the financial assets or financial liabilities. 
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets or 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or 
loss. 
 1. Financial assets 

  Regular transactions of financial assets are recognized and de-recognized using 
trade date accounting. 
 (1) Type of measurements 

  The types of financial assets held by the Group are financial assets at 
amortized cost. 
Financial assets measured at amortized costs 
  The Group’s investment in financial assets is classified as financial assets 
carried at amortized cost if both of the following two conditions are met: 
A. It is held under an operating model in which financial assets are held for the 

purpose of receiving contractual cash flows; and 
B. The terms of the contract generate cash flows on specific dates that are solely 

for the payment of principal and interest on the outstanding principal 
amount. 
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  Financial assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash 
equivalents, notes receivable, accounts receivable and other receivables 
measured at amortized cost, and refundable deposits), after initial recognition, 
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method to determine 
the total carrying amount less any impairment loss, and any foreign currency 
exchange gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. 
  Interest income is calculated by multiplying the effective interest rate by 
the total carrying amount of the financial assets, except for the following two 
cases: 
A. For credit-impaired financial assets purchased or established, interest income 

is calculated by multiplying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate by the 
amortized cost of the financial assets. 

B. For financial assets that are not acquired or created but subsequently become 
impaired, interest income should be computed by multiplying the effective 
interest rate by the amortized cost of the financial assets from the next 
reporting period after the impairment is applied. 

  Credit-impaired financial assets are those for which the issuer or the debtor 
has experienced significant financial difficulties or defaulted, or where it is 
probable that the debtor will declare bankruptcy or other financial 
reorganization, or where an active market for the financial assets has 
disappeared due to financial difficulties. 
  Cash equivalents include time deposits that are highly liquid, readily 
convertible into fixed deposits with minimal risk of changes in value within 3 
months from the date of acquisition and are used to meet short-term cash 
commitments. 

 (2) Impairment of financial assets 
  The Group assesses impairment losses on financial assets (including 
accounts receivable) measured at amortized cost based on expected credit losses 
at each balance sheet date. 
  Accounts receivable are recognized as a loss provision based on the 
expected credit loss over the period of survival. Other financial assets are first 
evaluated to determine whether there is a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition. If there is no significant increase, an allowance for loss is 
recognized based on the expected credit loss over 12 months. If there is a 
significant increase, a loss provision is recognized based on the expected credit 
loss over the remaining period. 
  Expected credit loss is a weighted average credit loss weighted by the risk 
of default. The 12-month expected credit loss represents the expected credit loss 
arising from possible defaults within 12 months after the reporting date of the 
financial instrument, and the ongoing, expected credit loss represents the 
expected credit loss arising from all possible defaults during the expected life of 
the financial instrument. 
  For internal credit risk management purposes, the Group determines, 
without regard to the collateral held, that a default on a financial asset has 
occurred in the following circumstances. 
A. There is internal or external information that indicates that the debtor is 

unlikely to be able to pay its debts. 
B. Financial assets are more than 365 days past due, unless there is reasonable 

and supportable information indicating that the basis for delayed default is 
more appropriate. 

  All impairment losses on financial assets are reversed by reducing the 
carrying amount through the provision account. However, the loss provision on 
investments in debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive 
income are recognized in other comprehensive income without reducing their 
carrying amount. 



 

103 
 

 (3) De-recognition on financial assets 
  The Group derecognizes financial assets only when the contractual rights 
to the cash flows from the financial assets lapse or when the financial assets 
have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the assets have been transferred to other enterprises. 
  When the financial asset is de-recognized as a whole at amortized cost, the 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the 
consideration received is recognized in profit or loss. When investments in debt 
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income are de-
recognized as a whole, the difference between the carrying amount of the 
investments and the sum of the consideration received and any accumulated 
gain or loss recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit 
or loss. When investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income are de-recognized as a whole, the cumulative gain 
or loss is transferred directly to retained earnings and is not reclassified as 
profit or loss. 

 2. Financial liabilities 
 (1) Subsequent measurements 

  All financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method, except for the following. 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
  Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss are held 
for trading. 
  Financial liabilities held for trading are measured at fair value, and gains or 
losses arising from their re-measurement are recognized in other gains and 
losses. 
  For the determination of fair value, please refer to note 27. 

 (2) De-recognition of financial liabilities 
  When a financial liability is de-recognized, the difference between the 
carrying amount and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets 
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss. 

 3. Derivatives 
  The derivative instruments entered into by the Group include forward foreign 
exchange contracts used to manage the Group’s exchange rate risks. 
  Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value upon entering into derivative 
contracts and subsequently remeasured at fair value at the balance sheet date, with 
gains or losses arising from subsequent measurements recognized directly in profit or 
loss. However, for derivatives that are designated and are effective hedging 
instruments, the timing of their recognition in profit or loss will depend on the nature 
of the hedging. When the fair value of a derivative is positive, it is classified as a 
financial asset; when the fair value is negative, it is classified as a financial liability. 
  Derivatives that are embedded in asset master contracts within the scope of IFRS 
9, "Financial Instruments", are used as a whole to determine the classification of 
financial assets. A derivative is considered to be a separate derivative if it is embedded 
in a master contract of an asset that is not within the scope of IFRS 9 (e.g., embedded 
in a master contract of a financial liability) and the embedded derivative meets the 
definition of a derivative, the risks and characteristics of which are not closely related 
to those of the master contract and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value 
through profit or loss. 

(XI) Revenue recognition 
  The Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation after the 
performance obligation is identified in the customer contract and recognizes revenue when 
each performance obligation is satisfied. 
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Revenue from product sales 
  Revenue from product sales is from the manufacturing and sale of multi-resins. The 
Group recognizes revenue when the product is delivered and control of ownership is 
transferred. Advance receipt of payments for the sale of goods are recognized as contract 
liabilities before the products are delivered. 

(XII) Leases 
  The Group assesses whether a contract is (or contains) a lease at the contract inception 
date. 
The Group as lessee 
  Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date 
for all leases, except for leases of low-value underlying assets and short-term leases to which 
the recognition exemption applies, where lease payments are recognized as expenses on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. 
  The right-of-use asset is measured initially at cost (consisting of the original 
measurement amount of the lease liability, lease payments made prior to the commencement 
date of the lease less lease incentives received, original direct cost and estimated cost of 
restoration of the subject asset) and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and the re-measurement of the lease 
liability is adjusted. Right-of-use assets are presented separately in the consolidated balance 
sheet. 
  Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis from the commencement date 
of the lease either to the end of the useful life or the end of the lease term, whichever occurs 
first. 
  Lease liabilities are measured initially at the present value of lease payments (primarily 
fixed payments). Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implied by the lease 
if it is readily recognizable. If the rate is not readily identifiable, the lessee's incremental 
borrowing rate is used. 
  Subsequently, the lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost basis using the 
effective interest method and interest expense is allocated over the lease term. If the lease 
term, the expected payment amount under the guarantee of residual value, the evaluation of 
the purchase option of the underlying assets or the index or rate used to determine the lease 
payment changes, which leads to a future lease payment change, the Group remeasures the 
lease liability and adjusts the right-of-use asset accordingly. However, if the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero, the remaining re-measurement amount is 
recognized in profit or loss. Lease liabilities are presented separately in the consolidated 
balance sheet. 

(XIII) Borrowing cost 
  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an 
asset that meet the criteria are included as part of the cost of the asset until substantially all 
of the activities necessary to bring the asset to its intended use or sale condition have been 
completed. 
  Investment income earned on the temporary investment from specific borrowings 
pending the occurrence of qualifying capital expenditures is deducted from the qualifying 
borrowing costs for capitalization. 
  Except for the above, all other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the 
period in which they are incurred. 

(XIV) Employee benefits 
 1. Short-term employee benefits 

  Short-term employee benefit-related liabilities are measured at the non-
discounted amount expected to be paid in exchange for employee services. 

 2. Post-employment benefits 
  Payments to the defined contribution pension plan is an expense that recognizes 
the amount of pension benefits to be contributed during the employees' service 
period. 
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  The defined benefit cost (including service cost, net interest and re-measurement) 
of the defined benefit pension plan is actuarially determined using the projected unit 
benefit method. Service costs (including current service cost and previous service cost 
and settlement profit and loss) and the net interest on net defined benefit liabilities 
(assets) are recognized as employee benefit expenses when they occur, when the plan 
is revised or curtailed and when liquidation occurs. Re-measurements (including 
actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets, net of interest) are recognized in 
other comprehensive income as incurred and included in retained earnings, and are 
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 
  The net defined benefit liability (asset) represents the appropriation deficit 
(surplus) of the defined benefit pension plan. The net defined benefit asset must not 
exceed the present value of the refund of appropriation from the plan or of the 
reduction of future appropriation. 

 3. Severance benefits 
  The Group recognizes a severance benefit liability when it can no longer 
withdraw its offer of severance benefits, or recognizes the associated restructuring 
costs, whichever is earlier. 

(XV) Income tax 
  Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax payable and deferred tax. 
 1. Current tax payable 

  The Group determines the current income (loss) in accordance with the 
regulations of each income tax filing jurisdiction and calculates the income tax payable 
(recoverable) accordingly. 
  Income tax on undistributed earnings calculated in accordance with the ROC 
Income Tax Act is recognized in the year when the shareholders resolve to retain the 
earnings. 
  Adjustments to prior years' income tax payable are to be included in the current 
period's income tax. 

 2. Deferred tax 
  Deferred income tax is computed on temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities and the tax basis of taxable income. 
  Deferred income tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary 
differences, and deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against which income tax credits can be 
utilized for temporary differences. 
  Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences 
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group can control the 
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the 
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred income tax 
assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences associated with such 
investments only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable income will be 
available to allow the temporary differences to be realized and to the extent that a 
reversal is expected in the foreseeable future. 
  The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient tax 
assets will be available to allow recovery of all or part of the asset. Deferred income 
tax assets that have not been recognized are reviewed at each balance sheet date and 
the carrying amount is increased to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
income will be available to recover all or part of the asset. 
  Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply to the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realized, 
which are based on tax rates and tax laws that have been legislated or substantively 
legislated at the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred income tax liabilities 
and assets reflects the tax consequences of the manner in which the Group expects to 
recover or settle the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities at the balance sheet 
date. 
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 3. Income tax of the current period and deferred income tax 
  Current and deferred income taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except for 
current and deferred income taxes related to items recognized in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, which are recognized in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, respectively. 

 V. Sources of Uncertainty to Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates, and Assumptions 
  In adopting accounting policies, the Group’s management is required to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that are based on historical experience and other relevant factors 
when relevant information is not readily available from other sources. Actual results may differ 
from estimates. 
  The Group takes the recent development of COVID-19 and the possible impact on the 
economic environment into the consideration of major accounting estimates such as cash flow 
estimates, growth rates, discount rates, profitability, etc. Management will review estimates and 
underlying assumptions on an ongoing basis. If a revision of an estimate affects only the current 
period, it is recognized in the period in which it is revised. If a revision of an accounting 
estimate affects both the current and future periods, it is recognized in the period in which it is 
revised and in the future period. 

 VI. Cash and cash equivalents 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Cash on hand and working capital    $ 140    $ 140 
Checking accounts and demand 

deposits     87,990     83,742 
Cash equivalents     

  Commercial paper     249,937     269,818 
    $ 338,067    $ 353,700 

 
 VII. Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Financial liabilities - current     

Derivative instruments     

  (not specified for hedging)     

    - FX forward contracts    $ 344    $ 188 
 
The FX forward contracts on the balance sheet date that are not subject to hedge accounting and 
have not yet matured are as follows: 

  Currency  Maturity period  
Contract amount (NTD 

thousand) 
December 31, 2022       
Purchase of FX 
forward contract 

 NTD to USD  November 7, 2022 ~ 
January 30, 2023 

 NTD7,704/USD240 

Purchase of FX 
forward contract 

 NTD to USD  December 09, 2022 ~ 
March 1, 2023 

 NTD5,310/USD174 

Purchase of FX 
forward contract 

 NTD to USD  December 19, 2022 ~ 
March 16, 2023 

 NTD1,004/USD33 

       
December 31, 2021       
Purchase of FX 
forward contract 

 NTD to USD  November 1, 2021 ~ 
April 21, 2022 

 NTD9,468/USD340 

Purchase of FX 
forward contract 

 NTD to USD  December 13, 2021 ~ 
June 2, 2022 

 NTD20,695/USD744 

Purchase of FX 
forward contract 

 NTD to USD  December 6, 2021 ~ 
March 3, 2022 

 NTD1,246/USD45 
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  The purpose of the engagement in FX forward contracts by the Group in 2021 and 2022 was 
to avoid the risk of foreign currency assets and liabilities arising from exchange rate 
fluctuations. The FX forward contracts held by the Group do not meet the effective hedging 
conditions, so hedge accounting is not applicable. 

 VIII. Financial assets measured at amortized costs  

 December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Current     
Domestic investment     
  Time deposits with original 

maturity over 3 months 
 

  $ 99,000    $ 99,000 
 
  As of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the interest rate range of time deposits 
with original maturity over 3 months is 1.2-1.325% and 0.755% per annum. 
  The Group has no pledge of financial assets measured at amortized cost. 

 IX. Credit risk management of debt instrument investment 
  The debt instruments invested by the Group are financial assets measured at amortized cost: 
December 31, 2022 

    At amortized cost 
Total book value      $ 99,000 
Loss provision       - 
Amortized cost      $ 99,000 
December 31, 2021 

    At amortized cost 
Total book value      $ 99,000 
Loss provision       - 
Amortized cost      $ 99,000 
 
  The credit risk of bank deposits and other financial instruments is measured and monitored 
by the financial departments of the Group. As the trading counterparties and performing 
parties of the Group are all banks with good credit ratings and financial institutions or 
corporate organizations of investment grade or above, there is no major doubt of default, so 
there is no major credit risk. 
  The current credit risk rating mechanism of the Group and the total book value of debt 
instrument investment of each credit rating are as follows: 

Credit 
rating  Definition  

Recognition basis of 
expected credit loss  

Expected 
credit loss 

rate  

Total book 
amount on 

December 31, 
2022  

Total book 
amount on 

December 31, 
2021 

Normal  The debtor's credit risk is low, and 
the debtor is fully capable of 
paying off the contractual cash 
flow. 

 12-month expected 
credit loss 

 0%    $ 99,000    $ 99,000 

 X. Notes receivable, accounts receivable and collection 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Notes receivable     
At amortized cost     
  Arising from business    $ 35,616    $ 42,776 
     

Accounts receivable     
At amortized cost     

  Arising from business    $ 115,739    $ 217,371 
  Less: Loss allowance   (  493 )   (  3,953 ) 
    $ 115,246    $ 213,418 
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 (I) Accounts receivable 

  The average credit period of the Group for commodity sales is 90 days, and the accounts 
receivable are not subject to interest. The policy adopted by the Group is to only conduct 
transactions with objects rated at or above the investment grade, and obtain sufficient 
guarantees when necessary to mitigate the risk of financial losses due to default. The Group 
will use other publicly available financial information and historical transaction records to 
rate its major customers. The Group continuously monitors the credit risk and the credit 
rating of the counterparty, and manages the credit risk through the annual review and 
approval of the counterparty's credit limit. 
  In order to mitigate the credit risk, the management of the Group assigned specialists to 
be responsible for the credit line decision, credit approval and other monitoring procedures 
to ensure that appropriate actions have been taken for the recovery of overdue receivables. 
In addition, the Group will review the recoverable amount of the receivables one by one on 
the balance sheet date to ensure that the unrecoverable receivables have been provided with 
appropriate impairment losses. 
  The Group recognizes the loss provision of accounts receivable based on the expected 
credit loss during the existence period. The expected credit loss during the duration is 
calculated using the preparation matrix, which takes into account customers’ past default 
records and current financial situation, the industrial economic situation, the GDP forecast 
and the unemployment rate. Because the historical experience of credit loss of the Group 
shows that there is no significant difference between the loss types of different customer 
groups, the preparation matrix does not further distinguish customer groups, and only sets 
the expected credit loss rate based on the number of days of accounts receivable. 
  If there is evidence that the counterparty is facing serious financial difficulties and the 
Group cannot reasonably expect the recoverable amount, for example, the counterparty to 
the transaction is in liquidation or the debt has been established for more than 365 days, the 
Group will directly write off the relevant accounts receivable, but will continue the recovery 
activities. The amount recovered due to the recovery is recognized in profit or loss. 
  The following table details the loss allowance of accounts receivables based on the 
Group’s provision matrix. 
December 31, 2022 

  

Account 
established for 

1 to 90 days  

Account 
established for 
91 to 180 days  

Account 
established for 
181 to 365 days  

Account 
established for 
over 365 days  Total 

Total book value    $ 109,084    $ 6,655    $ -    $ -    $ 115,739 
Loss allowance (lifetime 

ECLs)   (  193 )   (  300 )     -     -   (  493 ) 

Amortized cost    $ 108,891    $ 6,355    $ -    $ -    $ 115,246 

 
December 31, 2021 

  

Account 
established for 

1 to 90 days  

Account 
established for 
91 to 180 days  

Account 
established for 
181 to 365 days  

Account 
established for 
over 365 days  Total 

Total book value    $ 204,128    $ 13,243    $ -    $ -    $ 217,371 
Loss allowance (lifetime 

ECLs)   (  193 )   (  3,760 )     -     -   (  3,953 ) 

Amortized cost    $ 203,935    $ 9,483    $ -    $ -    $ 213,418 

 
  The provision for losses of accounts receivable is calculated according to the expected 
credit loss rate of each age range, and the expected credit loss rate for the years ended 
December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 is 0.17%～4.51% and 0.09%～28.39%, respectively. 
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Changes in loss provision on accounts receivable: 

  2022  2021 
Beginning balance    $ 3,953    $ 2,553 
Add: Provision for impairment loss 

(reversal) for the current year   (  3,460 )     1,400 
Ending balance    $ 493    $ 3,953 
 

 (II) Collections (listed under other non-current assets) 
  Information on the change in provision for bad debts from collections is as follows: 

  2022  2021 
Beginning balance    $ 25,219    $ 25,719 
Less: Reversal of impairment 
losses for the year   (  600 ) 

 
 (  500 ) 

Ending balance    $ 24,619    $ 25,219 
 
  As of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the amount of loss provision included 
individual impaired accounts receivable in significant financial difficulties, amounting to 
NTD24,619 thousand and NTD25,219 thousand, respectively, which had been transferred to 
collections (listed under other non-current assets).  The Group does not hold any collateral 
for these receivable balances. 

XI. Inventory 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Raw materials    $ 134,075    $ 149,142 
Work-in-progress     4,390     9,378 
Finished goods     110,372     147,349 
    $ 248,837    $ 305,869 
 
  The nature of cost of goods sold is as follows: 

  2022  2021 
Cost of inventory sold    $ 1,064,284    $ 969,692 
Inventory write-downs     20,683     1,689 
    $ 1,084,967    $ 971,381 

 
XII. Subsidiary 

Subsidiaries included in consolidated financial statements 

  The entities of the consolidated financial report are as follows: 
      % of Ownership 

Name of the 
investor  Investee  Main Business  

December 
31, 2022  

December 
31, 2021 

Yong Shun 
Chemical Co., 
Ltd. 

 Sun Yang Global 
Co., Ltd. 

 The manufacturing and sales of synthetic 
resins, plastics, coatings, paints, industrial 
additives, other chemical materials and other 
plastic products, and the procurement of raw 
materials for self use and the import and 
export of finished products related to the 
business referred to above. 

 100%  100% 

 
  The financial statements of Sun Yang Global Co., Ltd. are prepared in accordance with the 
company's financial statements audited by a CPA for the same period. 
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XIII. Property, plant, and equipment 

  Land  Building  
Machinery 
equipment  

Transportation 
equipment  

Office 
equipment  

Leased 
improvements  Other equipment  Total 

Cost                 
Balance on January 1, 2022    $ 276,190    $ 148,382    $ 514,296    $ 15,444    $ 12,264    $ 6,515    $ 59,730    $ 1,032,821 
Increase     -     314     5,803     1,790     1,456     224     2,852     12,439 
Disposals     -     -    (  2,159 )   (  2,532 )   (  836 )     -   (  289 )   (  5,816 ) 
Reclassification     -     -      315      -      -      -     -     315  
Balance on December 31, 

2022    $ 276,190    $ 148,696    $ 518,255    $ 14,702    $ 12,884    $ 6,739    $ 62,293    $ 1,039,759 
                 
Cumulative depreciation                 
Balance on January 1, 2022    $ -    $ 108,003    $ 491,638    $ 14,442    $ 9,446    $ 3,961    $ 55,823    $ 683,313 
Depreciation expenses     -     3,852     6,895     455     1,253     748     1,313     14,516 
Disposals     -     -    (  2,142 )   (  2,532 )   (  836 )     -   (  289 )   (  5,799 ) 
Balance on December 31, 

2022    $ -    $ 111,855    $ 496,391    $ 12,365    $ 9,863    $ 4,709    $ 56,847    $ 692,030 
                 
Net on December 31, 2022    $ 276,190    $ 36,841    $ 21,864    $ 2,337    $ 3,021    $ 2,030    $ 5,446    $ 347,729 
                 

Cost                 
Balance on January 1, 2021    $ 276,190    $ 146,912    $ 510,749    $ 15,255    $ 13,070    $ 6,098    $ 59,560    $ 1,027,834 
Increase     -     1,470     6,738     804     1,506     417     170     11,105 
Disposals     -     -    (  3,191 )   (  615 )   (  2,312 )     -     -   (  6,118 ) 
Balance on December 31, 

2021    $ 276,190    $ 148,382    $ 514,296    $ 15,444    $ 12,264    $ 6,515    $ 59,730    $ 1,032,821 
                 
Cumulative depreciation                 
Balance on January 1, 2021    $ -    $ 103,490    $ 486,720    $ 14,670    $ 10,782    $ 3,242    $ 54,682    $ 673,586 
Depreciation expenses     -     4,513     8,109     387     976     719     1,141     15,845 
Disposals     -     -    (  3,191 )   (  615 )   (  2,312 )     -     -   (  6,118 ) 
Balance on December 31, 

2021    $ -    $ 108,003    $ 491,638    $ 14,442    $ 9,446    $ 3,961    $ 55,823    $ 683,313 
                 
Net on December 31, 2021    $ 276,190    $ 40,379    $ 22,658    $ 1,002    $ 2,818    $ 2,554    $ 3,907    $ 349,508 

 
  The Group’s property, plant and equipment listed on December 31, 2021 and December 31, 
2022 have been evaluated and there was no indication of impairment. 
  There was no interest capitalization on the property, plant and equipment of the Group in 
2021 and 2022. 
Depreciation expense is accrued on a straight-line basis for the following years of service: 

Building   
  Main building  20 to 50 years 
  Decoration work, etc.  3 to 10 years 
Machinery Equipment  3 to 16 years 
Transportation equipment  3 to 7 years 
Office equipment  3 to 5 years 
Leased improvements  1 to 15 years 
Other equipment  2 to 10 years 

 
  Please refer to note 29 for the amount of property, plant and equipment pledged as loan 
collateral. 

XIV. Lease arrangements 
 (I) Right-of-use assets 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Right-of-use assets amounts     

  Buildings    $ 34,627    $ 2,436 
 

  2022  2021 

Increase in the right-of-use assets    $ 40,189    $ - 
Depreciation charge for right-of-

use assets 
 

 
 

 

  Buildings    $ 7,998    $ 6,604 
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 (II) Lease liabilities 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Lease liabilities amounts     

  Current    $ 6,847    $ 2,490 
  Non-current    $ 24,224    $ - 
 
  The range of discount rate for lease liabilities are as follows: 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Buildings  1.484%～1.997%  1.484% 
 

 (III) Other lease agreements 

  2022  2021 

Short term lease expense    $ 590    $ 348 
Total cash outflow from lease   ( $ 7,918 )   ( $ 7,123 ) 
 
  The Group chooses to apply the recognition exemption to the leases of houses and 
buildings that meet the short-term lease criteria, and does not recognize the relevant right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for such leases. 

 (IV) Provision for liabilities 

    December 31, 2022 
Cost of decommissioning, 

remediation and restoration 
 

    $ 4,627 
 
  Provision for decommissioning, remediation, and restoration costs is based on historical 
experience and management's judgment of the likely demolition and relocation costs 
estimated. Such estimates may vary with the use of properties, plants, and equipment. 

XV. Other assets 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Current     

Other receivables     

  Interest receivable    $ 54    $ 32 
  Business tax refund receivable     70     534 
  Other     38     74 
Provisional payment     290     83 
    $ 452    $ 723 
Non-current     

Collection    $ 24,619    $ 25,219 
Less: Provision for bad debts   (  24,619 )   (  25,219 ) 
    $ -    $ - 

 
XVI. Borrowings 

 (I) Short-term borrowing 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Secured loans     

- Bank loans    $ -    $ 913 
Unsecured loans     

- Credit loans     34,000     69,000 
    $ 34,000    $ 69,913 
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  The interest rates of bank revolving loans as of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 
2021 were 1.625%~2.30% and 1.23%~1.43%, respectively. 

(II) Short-term notes payable 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Bank acceptances    $ 12,714    $ 30,005 
 
  Outstanding short-term notes payable were as follows: 
December 31, 2022 

Guarantee/acceptance 
institution  Book value  

Original 
currency 
amount 
(USD)  

Name of 
collateral  

Book value of 
collateral 

Bank acceptances         
Mega International 

Commercial Bank 
   $ 5,344    $ 174  None    $ - 

Taiwan Cooperative 
Bank  

    7,370     240  None     - 

    $ 12,714    $ 414      $ - 

 
December 31, 2021 

Guarantee/acceptance 
institution  Book value  

Original 
currency 
amount 
(USD)  

Name of 
collateral  

Book value of 
collateral 

Bank acceptances         
Hua Nan Bank    $ 30,005    $ 1,084  None    $ - 

 
XVII. Notes and accounts payable 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Notes payable     

Arising from business    $ 4,121    $ 5,831 
     

Accounts payable     

Arising from business    $ 24,526    $ 42,150 
 

  Accounts payable are paid at the agreed time in the contract. The Group has a financial risk 
management policy to ensure that all payables are repaid within the pre-agreed credit period. 

XVIII. Other liabilities 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Current     

Other payables     
  Directors’ and supervisors’ 

remuneration payable    $ -    $ 2,480 
  Employees’ remuneration 

payable     -     1,643 
  Remuneration payable to 

employees of subsidiaries     21     160 
  Salary and bonus payable     18,734     19,377 
  Equipment payables     2,409     - 
  Other     7,728     10,054 
    $ 28,892    $ 33,714 
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XIX. Retirement benefit plans 
 (I) Defined contribution plans 

  The pension system of the “Labor Pension Act” applicable to the Company and Sun 
Yang Global Co., Ltd. of the Group is a definite retirement plan managed by the 
government. 6% of the employee’s monthly salary is appropriated to employees’ individual 
account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance. 

 (II) Defined benefit plans 
  The pension system of the Group in accordance with the country's “Labor Standards 
Act” is a government-administered defined-benefit retirement plan. The employee's pension 
is calculated based on the length of service and the average salary for the six months before 
the approved retirement date. The Group allocates 10% of the total monthly salary of the 
employees to the pension, and hands it over to the Labor Retirement Reserve Supervision 
Committee to deposit it into the special account of the Bank of Taiwan in the name of the 
committee. Before the end of the year, if it is estimated that the balance of the special account 
is not sufficient to pay the workers who are expected to meet the retirement conditions in the 
next year, the difference will be provided in one go by the end of March of the next year. The 
special account is entrusted to the Bureau of Labor Fund of the Ministry of Labor for 
management, and the Group has no right to influence the investment management strategy. 
  The amounts of defined benefit plans included in the consolidated balance sheet are 
shown below: 
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Present value of defined benefit 

obligations 
 

  $ 66,019    $ 73,393 
Fair value of plan assets   (  55,553 )   (  56,030 ) 
Net defined benefit liabilities    $ 10,466    $ 17,363 
 
Changes in net defined benefit liabilities (assets) are as follows: 

  

Present value of 
defined benefit 

obligations  
Fair value of 
plan assets  

Net defined 
benefit liabilities 

(assets) 
Balance on January 1, 2022    $ 73,393   ( $ 56,030 )    $ 17,363 
Service cost       
  Service costs for the current 

period 
 

   624     -     624 
Interest expense (revenue)     459   (  356 )     103 
Recognized as loss (profit)     1,083   (  356 )     727 
Re-measurement       
  Compensation for planned 

assets (excluding the 
amount included in net 
interest) 

 

   -   (  4,898 )   (  4,898 ) 
  Actuarial (gain) loss     -     -     - 
   Changes in financial 

assumptions 
 

 (  2,317 )     -   (  2,317 ) 
   Adjustment based on past 

experience 
 

   1,524      -     1,524  
Recognized in other 

comprehensive income 
 

 (  793 )   (  4,898 )   (  5,691 ) 
Employer contribution     -   (  1,933 )   (  1,933 ) 
Benefit paid   (  7,664 )     7,664     - 
Balance on December 31, 2022    $ 66,019   ( $ 55,553 )    $ 10,466 
 
(continued on the next page) 
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(continued from the previous page) 

  

Present value of 
defined benefit 

obligations  
Fair value of 
plan assets  

Net defined 
benefit liabilities 

(assets) 
Balance on January 1, 2021    $ 80,927   ( $ 64,270 )    $ 16,657 
Service cost       
  Service costs for the current 

period 
 

   741     -     741 
Interest expense (revenue)     291   (  232 )     59 
Recognized as loss (profit)     1,032   (  232 )     800 
Re-measurement       
  Compensation for planned 

assets (excluding the 
amount included in net 
interest) 

 

   -   (  890 )   (  890 ) 
  Actuarial loss (gain)                
   Changes in demographic 

assumptions 
 

   1,804     -     1,804 
   Changes in financial 

assumptions 
 

 (  1,372 )     -   (  1,372 ) 
   Adjustment based on past 

experience 
 

   2,418      -     2,418  
Recognized in other 

comprehensive income 
 

   2,850   (  890 )     1,960  
Employer contribution     -   (  2,054 )   (  2,054 ) 
Benefit paid   (  11,416 )     11,416     - 
Balance on December 31, 2021    $ 73,393   ( $ 56,030 )    $ 17,363 
 
  The amounts recognized in profit or loss for defined benefit plans are summarized by 
function as follows: 

  2022  2021 
Operating costs    $ 452    $ 491 
Operating expenses     275     309 
    $ 727    $ 800 
 
  The Group is exposed to the following risks as a result of the “Labor Standards Act” 
pension system: 
 1. Investment risk: The Bureau of Labor Fund of the Ministry of Labor invests labor 

pension funds in domestic (foreign) equity and debt securities and bank deposits 
through self-operation and entrusted management, but the Group’s distributable 
amount of the plans’ assets is the income calculated at not lower than the 2-year fixed 
deposit interest rate of the local bank. 

 2. Interest rate risk: The decrease in interest rates of government/corporate bonds will 
increase the present value of the defined benefit obligation, but the return on the debt 
investment of the planned assets will also increase; the impact of the two on the net 
defined benefit liabilities is partially offset. 

 3. Salary risk: For the calculation of the present value of defined benefit obligations, 
reference is made to the future salaries of the members of the plans. Therefore, 
increases in plan members' salaries will result in an increase in the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation. 

  The present value of the Group’s defined benefit obligation was actuarially determined 
by a qualified actuary with the following significant assumptions as of the measurement 
date. 
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  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Discount rate  1.375%  0.625% 

Expected rate of salary increase  2.250%  2.000% 

 
  If there are reasonable possible changes in significant actuarial assumptions, the amount 
by which the present value of the defined benefit obligation would increase (decrease), with 
all other assumptions held constant, is as follows: 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Discount rate     

  0.25% increase   ( $ 1,094 )   ( $ 1,352 ) 
  0.25% decrease    $ 1,126    $ 1,394 
     

Expected rate of salary increase      

  0.25% increase    $ 1,099    $ 1,354 
  0.25% decrease   ( $ 1,073 )   ( $ 1,320 ) 
 
  The sensitivity analysis above may not reflect actual changes in the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation, because the actuarial assumptions may be correlated and changes 
in only one assumption are not probable. 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Amount expected to be 

appropriated within 1 year    $ 1,920    $ 1,900 
Average period of defined benefit 

obligation to maturity  6.8 years  7.5 years 
 

XX. Equity 
 (I) Common share capital 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Authorized ordinary shares (in 

thousands)     61,056     61,056 
Authorized capital    $ 610,560    $ 610,560 
Issued and paid ordinary shares 

(in thousands)     61,056     61,056 
Issued capital    $ 610,560    $ 610,560 

 
  The par value of each issued common share is NTD10; each share has one voting right 
and the right to receive dividends. 

 (II) Capital surplus 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
May be used to offset a deficit, 

distributed cash dividend or 
transferred to shares (1)     

Treasury stock trading    $ 52,541    $ 52,541 
Donated assets     768     768 
    $ 53,309    $ 53,309 

 
 1. Such capital surplus may be used to offset a deficit; in addition, when the Company 

has no deficit, such capital surplus may be distributed as cash dividends or 
transferred to share capital (limited to a certain percentage of the Company’s capital 
surplus and to once a year). 
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 (III) Retained earnings and dividends policy 
  Under the dividends policy as set forth in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, 
where the Company made a profit in a fiscal year, the profit shall be first utilized for paying 
taxes, offsetting losses of previous years, setting aside as legal reserve 10% of the remaining 
profit, setting aside or reversing a special reserve in accordance with the laws and 
regulations and then any remaining profit together with any undistributed retained earnings 
shall be used by the Company’s board of directors as the basis for proposing a distribution 
plan, which should be resolved in the shareholders’ meeting for distribution of dividends 
and bonus to shareholders. Please refer to note 22(7) employees’ remuneration and directors’ 
and supervisors’ remuneration for the distribution policy of employees’ remuneration and 
directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration stipulated in the Articles of Association. 
  The company adopts a fixed and residual dividend policy for sustainable operation, 
sustainable growth and long-term financial planning based on the overall environment and 
the characteristics of the industrial development. Shareholders' dividends are distributed 
annually from the distributable surplus. The cash dividends are maintained between 10% 
and 90%, but may be adjusted according to changes in the internal and external business 
environment. 
  Distribution of earnings to the legal reserve shall be made until the reserve equals the 
Company’s paid-in capital. Legal reserves may be used to offset the deficit. If the Company 
has no deficit and the legal reserve has exceeded 25% of the Company’s paid-in capital, the 
excess may be transferred to capital or distributed in cash. 
  The Company sets aside and reverses special reserves in accordance with the 
requirements of the letters referenced Jin-Guan-Cheng-Fa No. 1010012865 and Jin-Guan-
Cheng-Fa No. 1010047490, and "Questions and Answers on the Applicability of 
Appropriation of Special Reserves After Adoption of International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs)". 
  The Company’s general shareholders’ meeting on July 1, 2021 and June 9, 2022 
respectively passed resolutions on the following earnings distribution schemes for 2021 and 
2020: 

  2021  2020 

Legal reserve    $ 7,581    $ 5,656 
Cash dividends    $ 61,056    $ 48,844 
Cash dividends per share (NTD)    $ 1.00    $ 0.80 
 
  The Company’s board meeting on March 13, 2023 proposed the following earnings 
distribution of 2022: 

    2022 

Cash dividends      $ 30,528 
Cash dividends per share (NTD)      $ 0.5 

 
  The earnings distribution scheme for 2022 is pending the resolution of the general 
shareholders’ meeting expected to be held in June 2023. 

XXI. Revenue 

  2022  2021 

Revenues from sale of merchandise    $ 1,134,234    $ 1,148,633 
 

 (I) Contract balance 
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021  January 1, 2021 

Notes receivable (Note 10)    $ 35,616    $ 42,776    $ 39,137 
Accounts receivable (Note 10)    $ 115,246    $ 213,418    $ 174,307 
Contractual liabilities       
  Goods sold    $ 9,262    $ 4,496    $ 2,964 
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 (II) Breakdown of revenue from contracts with customers 
  Please refer to Note 33 for the breakdown of revenue. 

XXII. Net (loss) profit for the year 
 (I) Interest income 

  2022  2021 

Cash in banks    $ 1,021    $ 840 
Financial assets measured at 

amortized costs     992     739 
    $ 2,013    $ 1,579 

 
 (II) Other income 

  2022  2021 

Grant revenue    $ 604    $ 681 
Other     51     165 
    $ 655    $ 846 

 
 (III) Other gains and losses 

  2022  2021 
Gain on disposal of property, 

plant, and equipment    $ 180    $ 572 
Net foreign currency exchange 

benefits     2,152      162  
Net gain (loss) of financial 

liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss   (  156 )     730  

    $ 2,176    $ 1,464 
 
 (IV) Finance costs 

  2022  2021 

Interest on bank loans    $ 718    $ 597 
Interest on lease liabilities     347     91 
    $ 1,065    $ 688 

 
 (V) Depreciation and amortization 

  2022  2021 
An analysis of depreciation by 

function 
 

   
  Operating costs    $ 20,520    $ 20,516 
  Operating expenses     1,994     1,933 
    $ 22,514    $ 22,449 
     
An analysis of amortization by 

function 
 

   
  Operating expenses    $ 50    $ 50 
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(VI) Employee benefits expense 

  2022  2021 
Short-term employee benefits     
  Salary expense    $ 95,615    $ 101,539 
  Employee insurance expense     9,504     9,494 
Post-employment benefits (Note 

19) 
 

   
  Defined contribution plans     3,500     3,481 
  Defined benefit plans     727     800 
Severance benefits     321     - 
Other employee benefits     5,315     5,312 
Total employee benefits expense    $ 114,982    $ 120,626 
     
An analysis by function     
  Operating costs    $ 72,913    $ 76,120 
  Operating expenses     42,069     44,506 

    $ 114,982    $ 120,626 
 
 (VII) Employees’ compensation and remuneration of directors and supervisors 

  In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Company appropriates 1% to 3% of 
the balance as the employees’ remuneration, and no more than 4% as the directors' and 
supervisors' remuneration. The resolutions on the employees’ remuneration and directors' 
and supervisors' remuneration for 2021 by the board meetings on March 17, 2022 are as 
follows: 
Ratio 

    2021 
Employees’ remuneration    1.69% 
Remuneration of directors and 
supervisors 

 
  2.55% 

 
Amount 

    2021 
      Cash  Stocks 

Employees’ 
remuneration 

       $ 1,643    $ - 

Remuneration of 
directors and 
supervisors         2,480     - 

 
  As the Company suffered a loss before tax in 2022, remuneration to employees and 
remuneration to directors/supervisors were not estimated. 
  If there is a change in the proposed amounts after the annual consolidated financial 
statements are authorized for issue, the differences are recorded as a change in accounting 
estimate in the following year. 
  There is no difference between the actual distribution amount of employees’ 
remuneration and directors' and supervisors' remuneration in 2020 and 2021 and the amount 
recognized in the consolidated financial statements in 2020 and 2021. 
  For information on the employees’ remuneration and directors' and supervisors' 
remuneration in accordance with the resolutions of the board meeting of the Company in 
2021 and 2022, please visit the “MOPS” of the Taiwan Stock Exchange. 
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XXIII. Income tax 
 (I) The main components of income tax expenses recognized in profit/loss 

  2022  2021 

Current tax payable     
  Generated in the current 

period    $ -    $ 16,597 
  R&D expenditures offset in 

the current year     -    (  856 ) 
  Income tax on undistributed 

earnings     402     103 
  Adjustments of prior years     569     - 
     971     15,844 
Deferred tax     
  Generated in the current 

period   (  5,135 )     167 
Income tax expenses recognized 

in profit or loss   ( $ 4,164 )    $ 16,011 
 

  A reconciliation of accounting income to current income tax (profit) expense is as 
follows: 

  2022  2021 

Net profit (loss) before tax   ( $ 23,355 )    $ 93,392 
Income tax on net profit (loss) 

before tax at the statutory tax 
rate   ( $ 4,467 )    $ 20,812 

Tax-free income   (  204 )   (  2,134 ) 
Surtax on undistributed earnings     402     103 
Unrecognized deductible 

temporary differences   (  464 )   (  1,914 ) 
R&D expenditures offset in the 

current year     -    (  856 ) 
Adjustments to income tax 

expenses of prior years     569     - 
Income tax expenses recognized 

in profit or loss   ( $ 4,164 )    $ 16,011 
 

 (II) Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income 

  2022  2021 

Deferred tax     

Generated in the current period     
  - Remeasurement of defined 

benefit obligation    $ 1,138    ( $ 392 ) 
Income tax recognized in other 

comprehensive income    $ 1,138    ( $ 392 ) 
 

 (III) Income tax assets and liabilities of the current period 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Current tax assets     

  Income tax receivable    $ 8,274    $ 19 
     

Income tax liabilities of the period     

  Income tax payable    $ 247    $ 14,546 
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 (IV) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities 

  Changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities: 
2022 

  Beginning balance  
Recognized as loss 

(profit)  

Recognized in other 
comprehensive 

income  Ending balance 

Deferred income tax assets         

Temporary difference         
  Financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss    $ 38    $ 31     $ -    $ 69 
  Provision for bad debts     5,248   (  631 )     -     4,617 
  Write-down of inventories     2,335     4,136      -     6,471 
  Impairment loss     136     -     -     136 
  Unrealized gross sales profit of 

inventory in transit     1,548   (  1,127 )     -     421 
  Unrealized gross profit of goods 

sold to subsidiaries     83   (  82 )     -     1 
  Unrealized exchange loss     8     94      -     102 
  Financial assets measured at cost     7,591     -     -     7,591 
  Defined-benefit retirement plan     3,473   (  242 )   (  835 )     2,396 
  Others     -     186     -     186 
  Loss deduction     12,580     1,528      -     14,108 
    $ 33,040    $ 3,893    ( $ 835 )    $ 36,098 
         

Deferred income tax liabilities         

Temporary difference         
  Property, plant, and equipment    $ 45,365    $ -     $ -    $ 45,365 
  Unrealized gross sales profit of 

inventory in transit     1,553   (  1,222 )     -     331 
  Defined-benefit retirement plan     -     -      303      303 
  Unrealized exchange gains     20   (  20 )     -     - 
    $ 46,938   ( $ 1,242 )    $ 303    $ 45,999 

 
2021 

  Beginning balance  
Recognized as loss 

(profit)  

Recognized in other 
comprehensive 

income  Ending balance 

Deferred income tax assets         

Temporary difference         
  Financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss    $ 184   ( $ 146 )    $ -    $ 38 
  Provision for bad debts     5,133     115     -     5,248 
  Write-down of inventories     1,997     338      -     2,335 
  Impairment loss     136     -     -     136 
  Unrealized gross sales profit of 

inventory in transit     1,488     60     -     1,548 
  Unrealized gross profit of goods 

sold to subsidiaries     79     4     -     83 
  Unrealized exchange loss     19   (  11 )     -     8 
  Financial assets measured at cost     7,591     -     -     7,591 
  Defined-benefit retirement plan     3,331   (  250 )     392      3,473 
  Loss deduction     12,580     -      -     12,580 
    $ 32,538    $ 110     $ 392     $ 33,040 
         

Deferred income tax liabilities         

Temporary difference         
  Property, plant, and equipment    $ 45,365    $ -     $ -    $ 45,365 

  Unrealized gross sales profit of 
inventory in transit     1,184     369      -     1,553 

  Unrealized exchange gains     112   (  92 )     -     20 
    $ 46,661    $ 277     $ -    $ 46,938 
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 (V) Unused loss deduction amount and unused investment offsetting amounts not recognized in 
deferred income tax assets in the consolidated balance sheet 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Loss deduction     

  Due in 2022    $ -    $ 3,039 
  Due in 2023     1,691     1,691 
  Due in 2024     12,990     12,990 
  Due in 2029     5,539     5,539 

    $ 20,220    $ 23,259 
Investment offsets     

  R&D expenditures    $ 557    $ - 
 
(VI) Information on the unused loss deduction of the Group 

  As of December 31, 2022, the relevant information on loss deduction is as follows: 

Undeducted balance  Last deduction year 

  $ 1,691  2023 
   12,990  2024 
   19,671  2025 
   23,330  2027 
   19,899  2028 
   5,539  2029 
   7,639  2032 
  $ 90,759   

 
 (VII) Income tax assessments 

  The Company's profit-seeking enterprise income tax declaration has been approved by 
the tax collection authority up to and including 2020. 
  The profit-seeking enterprise income tax declaration of Sun Yang Global Co., Ltd. under 
the Group has been approved by the tax collection authority up to and including 2020. 

XXIV. Earnings (losses) per share 
Unit: NTD Per Share 

  2022  2021 

Basic earnings (loss) per share   ( $ 0.31)    $ 1.27 
Diluted earnings (loss) per share   ( $ 0.31)    $ 1.27 

 
  The earnings (loss) and the weighted average number of common shares issued for the 
calculation of earnings (loss) per share are as follows: 
Net (loss) profit for the year 

  2022  2021 
Net profit (loss) used to calculate 

basic earnings (loss) per share   ( $ 19,191 )    $ 77,381 
Net profit (loss) used to calculate 

diluted earnings (loss) per share   ( $ 19,191 )    $ 77,381 
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Number of shares Unit: Thousand Shares 

  2022  2021 
Weighted average number of 

ordinary shares in the 
computation of basic (losses) 
earnings per share     61,056     61,056 

Effect of potentially dilutive ordinary 
shares:     

  Employees’ remuneration     19     100 
Weighted average number of 

ordinary shares in the 
computation of diluted (losses) 
earnings per share     61,075     61,156 

 
  If the Group has the option to pay employees’ remuneration in shares or cash, the 
calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the assumption that the employees’ 
remuneration will be issued in shares, and the weighted average number of outstanding shares 
will be included in the calculation of diluted (losses) earnings per share when the potential 
common shares are diluted. Such a dilutive effect of the potential shares is included in the 
employees' compensation of diluted (losses) earnings per share until the shareholders resolve 
the number of ordinary shares to be distributed to employees at their meeting in the following 
year. 

XXV. Cash flow information 
 (I) Non-cash transactions 

 1. On December 31, 2022, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment with a total 
fair value of NTD12,439 thousand. The total amount of equipment payable in other 
payables increased by NTD2,409 thousand, and the cash paid for the purchase of 
property, plant and equipment totaled NTD10,030 thousand (please refer to Notes 13 
and 18). 

 2. On December 31, 2021, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment with a total 
fair value of NTD11,105 thousand. The total amount of equipment payable in other 
payables decreased by NTD1,922 thousand, and the cash paid for the purchase of 
property, plant and equipment totaled NTD13,027 thousand (please refer to Notes 13 
and 18). 

 (II) Changes in liabilities from financial activities 
2022 

        Non-cash variables   

  January 1, 2022  Cash flow  New lease  Interest expense  December 31, 2022 

Short-term 
borrowing    $ 69,913   ($ 35,913 ) 

 
 $  -    $ - 

 
  $ 34,000 

Short-term notes 
payable     30,005   (  17,291 ) 

 
   -      - 

 
   12,714 

Lease liabilities     2,490   (  7,328 )     35,562      347     31,071 

    $ 102,408   ( $ 60,532 )    $ 35,562     $ 347    $ 77,785 
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2021 
        Non-cash variables   

  January 1, 2021  Cash flow  New lease  Interest expense  December 31, 2021 

Short-term 
borrowing    $ 40,000    $ 29,913    $  - 

 
  $ - 

 
  $ 69,913 

Short-term notes 
payable     43,050   (  13,045 )     -  

 
   - 

 
   30,005 

Lease liabilities     9,174   (  6,775 )     -      91     2,490 

    $ 92,224    $ 10,093     $ -     $ 91    $ 102,408 

 
XXVI. Capital management 

  The Group conducts capital management to ensure that it can maximize shareholder 
returns by optimizing debt and equity balances on the premises of continuing operation. 
  The Group adopts a prudent risk management strategy and conducts regular reviews, and 
makes an overall plan based on business development strategies and operational needs to 
determine the appropriate capital structure for the Group. 

XXVII. Financial instruments 
 (I) Fair value information - financial instruments not measured at fair value 

  The management of the Group considers that as the maturity date of the carrying 
amount of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value is near, or that 
the future payment price is equivalent to the carrying amount, the carrying amount is close 
to its fair value. 

 (II) Fair value information - financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis 
 1. Fair value hierarchy 

December 31, 2022 
  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss         

  Derivatives    $ -    $ 344    $ -    $ 344 

 
December 31, 2021 
  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss         

  Derivatives    $ -    $ 188    $ -    $ 188 

 
  There was no transfer between level I and level II fair value measurements in 
2021 and 2022. 

 2. Evaluation technology and input value of level 2 fair value measurement 
Types of financial 

instruments  Evaluation technology and input value 
Derivative instrument - FX 

forward contract 
 Discounted cash flow method: The future cash flow 

is estimated at the observable forward exchange 
rate at the end of the period and the exchange rate 
set in the contract, and discounted respectively at 
a discount rate that can reflect the credit risk of 
each counterparty. 
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 (III) Categories of financial instruments 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Financial assets     
Financial assets measured at 

amortized cost     

  Cash and cash equivalents    $ 338,067    $ 353,700 
  Financial assets measured at 

amortized costs - current     99,000     99,000 
  Notes receivable     35,616     42,776 
  Accounts receivable     115,246     213,418 
  Other receivables     162     640 
  Refundable deposits     2,022     2,022 
     

Financial liabilities     
Measured at cost after 

amortization     
  Short-term borrowing     34,000     69,913 
  Short-term notes payable     12,714     30,005 
  Notes payable     4,121     5,831 
  Accounts payable     24,526     42,150 
  Other payables     28,892     33,714 
Financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss     344     188 
 

 (IV) Financial risk management objective and policies 
  The financial instruments of the Group include equity investment, accounts receivable, 
accounts payable and loans. The Group is committed to ensuring sufficient and cost-effective 
working capital when necessary. The Group prudently manages the foreign currency 
exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, equity instrument price risk, credit risk and liquidity 
risk related to the operating activities, in order to reduce the potential adverse impact of 
market uncertainty on the Group's finance. 
  The important financial planning of the Group has been reviewed by the board meeting 
in accordance with relevant norms and internal control systems. In carrying out financial 
planning, the Finance Department of the Group strictly abides by the relevant financial 
operation procedures related to the overall financial risk management and the division of 
rights and responsibilities. 
 1. Market risk 

  The financial risk caused by the operating activities of the Group to itself are the 
foreign currency exchange rate change risk and the interest rate change risk. The 
Group uses various derivative financial instruments to manage the foreign currency 
exchange rate risk. 
 (1) Foreign currency risk 

  The Group engages in sales and purchase transactions denominated in 
foreign currencies, thus causing the Group to be exposed to foreign currency 
exchange rate changes. In order to avoid fluctuations in future cash flows due 
to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, the Group uses FX forward 
contracts to avoid foreign currency exchange rate risks. The Group also borrows 
short-term foreign currency loans to offset part of the foreign currency 
exchange rate risks arising from transaction conversion. The use of derivative 
financial instruments such as FX forward contracts can help the Group reduce 
but still cannot completely exclude the impact of foreign currency exchange rate 
changes. 
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  Please refer to Note 31 for the carrying amounts of monetary assets and 
monetary liabilities denominated in non-functional currencies of the Group on 
the balance sheet date. 
Sensitivity analysis 
  The sensitivity analysis of the foreign currency exchange rate risk is mainly 
calculated for foreign currency monetary items at the end of the reporting 
period. When the New Taiwan dollar appreciates by 5% against foreign 
currencies, the Group's net loss before tax in 2022 will decrease by NTD219 
thousand and net profit before tax in 2021 will decrease by NTD81 thousand, 
respectively; when the New Taiwan dollar depreciates by 5% against the 
foreign currency, the impact on the Group's net profit (loss) before tax in the 
years 2022 and 2021 will be a negative number of the same amount. 

 (2) Interest rate risk 
  Interest rate exposure occurs because individual entities of the Group 
borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. 
The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the 
Group exposed to interest rate exposure on the balance sheet date are as 
follows: 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Fair value interest rate risk     

  -Financial assets    $ 348,937    $ 368,818 
  -Financial liabilities     12,714     30,005 
Cash flow interest rate risk     

  -Financial assets     87,990     83,742 
  -Financial liabilities     34,000     69,913 

 
Sensitivity analysis 

  The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate exposure of 
derivative and non-derivative instruments on the balance sheet date. For 
floating rate liabilities, the analysis method assumes that all the amount of 
liabilities circulating on the balance sheet date is circulating during the 
reporting period. The rate of change used in reporting interest rates to the key 
management of the Group is an increase or decrease of one hundred basis 
points (1%) in interest rates, which also represents the management's 
assessment of the reasonably possible range of changes in interest rates. 
  If the interest rate increases by one hundred basis points (1%), with all 
other variables remaining unchanged, the Group's net profit before tax in the 
years 2022 and 2021 will increase by NTD540 thousand and NTD138 thousand, 
respectively, mainly because of the interest rate change position risk arising 
from the bank borrowings of the Group with floating interest rates. 

 (3) Other price risks 
  The Group has equity price exposure due to equity securities investments. 
The equity investments are not held for trading but are strategic investments; 
the Group does not actively trade these investments and the management 
manages risk by holding a portfolio of investments with different risks. In 
addition, the Group assigns a designated team to monitor price risks and assess 
when it is necessary to increase positions with hedged risks. 
Sensitivity analysis 
  The following sensitivity analysis is based on equity price risk exposure on 
the balance sheet date. If the price of equity increases/decreases by 5%, the pre-
tax profit/loss in the years 2022 and 2021 will decrease/increase due to an 
increase/decrease in the fair value of financial liabilities measured at fair value 
through profit or loss by NTD17 thousand and NTD9 thousand, respectively. 
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  The Group's sensitivity to equity securities investments have not changed 
significantly from the previous year. 

 2. Credit risk 
  Credit risk refers to the potential impact of the counterparty's failure to perform 
its contractual obligations on the Group's financial losses. As of the balance sheet date, 
the maximum credit risk exposure of the Group that may result in financial losses due 
to the counterparty's failure to perform its obligations is mainly from the book value 
of financial assets recognized in the consolidated balance sheet. 
  The receivables of the Group cover many customers, and most of the receivables 
do not have collaterals. The Group continuously evaluates the financial status of 
customers with accounts receivable to reduce the credit risk of accounts receivable, 
and reviews the recoverable amount of accounts receivable one by one on the balance 
sheet date to ensure appropriate impairment losses have been provided for 
uncollectable receivables. 

 3. Liquidity risk 
  The Group manages and maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet 
operating needs and mitigate the impact of cash flow fluctuations. The management 
of the Group supervises the use of banks’ financing lines and ensures compliance with 
the terms of the loan contract. 
  Bank borrowings are an important source of liquidity for the Group. As of 
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the unutilized short-term bank facilities of the Group 
were NTD1,161,126 thousand and NTD1,095,801 thousand, respectively. 
 (1) Liquidity and interest rate risk table of non-derivative financial liabilities 

  The remaining contractual maturity analysis of non-derivative financial 
liabilities is prepared based on the earliest date on which the Group may be 
required to repay, and the undiscounted cash flows (including principal and 
estimated interest) of financial liabilities. Therefore, the bank loans which the 
Group may be required to repay immediately are listed in the earliest period in 
the table below, regardless of the probability of the banks’ immediate execution 
of the right; the maturity analysis of other non-derivative financial liabilities is 
prepared according to the agreed repayment dates. 
December 31, 2022 

  

Effective 
interest rate 

(%)  
Less than One 

Year  1 to 5 years  
More than 5 

years  Total 

Non-derivative 
financial liabilities 

 
         

Short-term borrowing     1.39%    $ 34,473    $ -    $ -    $ 34.473 
Short-term notes 

payable 
 

   -     12,714     -     -     12,714 
Notes payable     -     4,121     -     -     4,121 
Accounts payable     -     24,526     -     -     24,526 
Other payables     -     28,892     -     -     28,892 
Lease liabilities  1.484%～

1.997%     7,328     24,994     -     32,322 

 
  Further information on the analysis of lease liabilities maturity is as 
follows: 

  Less than 1 year  1 to 5 years  More than 5 years 

Lease liabilities    $ 7,328    $ 24,994    $ - 
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December 31, 2021 

  

Effective 
interest rate 

(%)  
Less than One 

Year  1 to 5 years  
More than 5 

years  Total 

Non-derivative 
financial liabilities 

 
         

Short-term borrowing     1.43%    $ 70,913    $ -    $ -    $ 70,913 
Short-term notes 

payable 
 

   -     30,005     -     -     30,005 
Notes payable     -     5,831     -     -     5,831 
Accounts payable     -     42,150     -     -     42,150 
Other payables     -     33,714     -     -     33,714 
Lease liabilities     1.484%     2,507     -     -     2,507 

 
  Further information on the analysis of lease liabilities maturity is as 
follows: 

  Less than 1 year  1 to 5 years  More than 5 years 

Lease liabilities    $ 2,507    $ -    $ - 
 

 (2) Liquidity and interest rate risk table of derivative financial liabilities 
  Regarding the liquidity analysis of derivative financial instruments, it is 
prepared on the basis of undiscounted net contractual cash inflows and 
outflows for derivatives delivered on a net basis; for derivatives settled in the 
aggregate amount, it is prepared on the basis of total undiscounted cash inflows 
and outflows. When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the disclosed 
amount is determined based on the expected interest rate estimated by the yield 
curve on the balance sheet date. 
December 31, 2022 

  

Immediate 
repayment or 
in less than 1 

month  1~3 months  
3 months to 1 

year  1~5 Years  
More than 5 

years 

Aggregate amount 
settlement 

 
         

FX forward contracts           

  - Inflow    $ -    $ 13,675    $ -    $ -    $ - 

  - Outflow     -   (  14,019 )     -      -     - 

    $ -   ( $ 344 )    $ -     $ -    $ - 

 
December 31, 2021 

  

Immediate 
repayment or 
in less than 1 

month  1~3 months  
3 months to 1 

year  1~5 Years  
More than 5 

years 

Aggregate amount 
settlement 

 
         

FX forward contracts           

  - Inflow    $ -    $ 1,242    $ 29,979    $ -    $ - 

  - Outflow     -   (  1,246 )   (  30,163 )     -     - 

    $ -   ( $ 4 )   ( $ 184 )    $ -    $ - 

 
XXVIII. Related party transactions 

  The transactions, account balances, gains and impairments between the Company and its 
subsidiaries (which are related parties of the Company) were written off in full at the time of 
consolidation, so they are not disclosed in this note. 
Compensation of key management personnel 

  2022  2021 

Short-term employee benefits    $ 11,280    $ 13,426 
Post-employment benefits     510     722 
    $ 11,790    $ 14,148 
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  The remuneration of directors and other key management is determined by the 
Remuneration Committee in accordance with individual performance and market trends. 

XXIX. Pledged Assets 
  The following assets of the Group have been provided as collateral for bank loans: 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Property, plant, and equipment     

  Land    $ 126,840    $ 126,840 
  Building     30,212     31,219 
    $ 157,052    $ 158,059 
 

XXX. Significant contingent liabilities and unrecognized contract commitments 
  The Group has the following major commitments and contingencies on the balance sheet 
date: 

 (I) As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2022, the amount of customs duty guarantee 
issued by the Group to banks for imported goods was NTD8,000 thousand. 

 (II) As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2022, the amount of unused letters of credit 
issued by the Group for imported raw materials was USD158 thousand and USD744 
thousand. 

 (III) The guarantee notes payable issued by the Group for bank loans are as follows: 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
USD    $ 5,150    $ 5,150 
NTD     260,000     260,000 

XXXI. Significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
  The following information was aggregated by the foreign currencies other than the 
functional currencies of the Group and the exchange rates between foreign currencies and 
respective functional currencies were disclosed. The significant assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies were as follows: 
December 31, 2022 

  Foreign Currency  Exchange Rate  Book value 
Foreign currency 

asset       

Monetary item       

USD    $ 351   30.71 (USD: NTD)    $ 10,787 
RMB     1,431   4.408 (RMB: NTD)     6,309 
        $ 17,096 
       

Foreign currency 
liabilities       

Monetary item       

USD     414   30.71 (USD: NTD)    $ 12,714 
December 31, 2021 

  Foreign Currency  Exchange Rate  Book value 
Foreign currency 

asset       

Monetary item       

USD    $ 817   27.68 (USD:NTD)    $ 22,613 
RMB     1,538   4.344 (RMB: NTD)     6,681 
        $ 29,294 
       

 
(continued on the next page)
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(continued from the previous page) 
 

  Foreign Currency  Exchange Rate  Book value 
Foreign currency 

liabilities       

Monetary item       

USD    $ 1,117   27.68 (USD:NTD)    $ 30,919 
 
  The foreign currency exchange gain of the consolidated company in 2022 and 2021 were 
respectively NTD2,152 thousand and NTD162 thousand. Due to the variety of foreign currency 
transactions, it is not possible to disclose the exchange gain and loss by each major foreign 
currency category. 

XXXII. Other Disclosures 
 (I) Information related to major transactions: 

 1. Loans to others: None. 
 2. Endorsements/guarantees for others: None. 
 3. Securities held at period end: None. 
 4. The cumulative amount of the same securities purchased or sold reaches NTD300 

million or 20% of the paid-in capital: None. 
 5. The amount of real estate acquired reaches NTD300 million or 20% of the paid-in 

capital: None. 
 6. The amount of real estate disposed of reaches NTD300 million or 20% of the paid-in 

capital: None. 
 7. The amount of goods purchased or sold with related parties reaches NTD100 million 

or 20% of the paid-in capital. (Table 1) 
 8. The amount of accounts receivable from related parties reaches NTD100 million or 

20% of the paid-in capital: None. 
 9. Engagement in derivative trading. (Note 7) 
10. Others: Business relationships and important transactions between parent and 

subsidiaries and among subsidiaries. (Table 2) 
 (II) Information related to investees. (Table 3) 
 (III) Mainland China investment information: None. 
 (IV) Information of major shareholders: name, number of shares held and proportion of 

shareholders with 5% shareholding or more. (Table 4) 
XXXIII. Segments Information 

  The Group focuses on each type of deliverable based on information used by the 
management (the chief operating decision makers) to allocate resources and measure 
departmental performance. The chief operating decision makers summarize and disclose by 
production unit. The reportable departments of the Group include the Resin Department and 
the Hot Melt Adhesive Department. 

 (I) Segment revenues and results 
  The revenue, operating results and department assets of the Group's continuing 
business units are analyzed as follows by each reportable department: 

  2022 

  Resin Department  
Hot Melt Adhesive 

Department  
Adjustment and 

Write Off  Total 

Revenue and benefits         
Revenue from external customers    $ 792,865    $ 341,369    $ -    $ 1,134,234 
Interdepartmental revenue     181,398     -   (  181,398 )     - 
Total income    $ 974,263    $ 341,369   ( $ 181,398 )    $ 1,134,234 
         
Segment Profit   ( $ 26,982 )   ( $ 172 )    $ 20   ( $ 27,134 ) 
Interest income     2,002     11     -     2,013 
Interest expenses   (  183 )   (  882 )     -   (  1,065 ) 
General revenue of the company           3,558 
General expenses and losses of the 

company         (  727 ) 
Net profit before tax of continuing 

business unit         ( $ 23,355 ) 
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  2021 

  Resin Department  
Hot Melt Adhesive 

Department  
Adjustment and 

Write Off  Total 

Revenue and benefits         
Revenue from external customers    $ 876,291    $ 272,342    $ -    $ 1,148,633 
Interdepartmental revenue     145,422     -   (  145,422 )     - 
Total income    $ 1,021,713    $ 272,342   ( $ 145,422 )    $ 1,148,633 
         
Segment Profit    $ 78,757    $ 11,416     $ 18    $ 90,191 
Interest income     1,576     3          1,579 
Interest expenses   (  19 )   (  669 )        (  688 ) 
General revenue of the company           2,574 
General expenses and losses of the 

company         (  264 ) 
Net profit before tax of continuing 

business unit          $ 93,392 

 
  Departmental profit and loss refer to the profit earned by each department, excluding 
the rental income, interest income, profit and loss on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment, profit and loss on disposal of investment, foreign currency exchange gains and 
losses, gains and losses on financial assets (liabilities) measured at fair value through profit 
and loss, and interest expenses and income tax expenses that should be apportioned. This 
measurement amount is provided to the chief operational decision makers for allocating 
resources to departments and evaluating their performance. 

 (II) Total assets and liabilities of the department 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Segment assets     

Resin Department    $ 623,257    $ 753,770 
Hot Melt Adhesive Department     162,395     157,801 
General assets     485,040     496,224 
Total consolidated assets    $ 1,270,692    $ 1,407,795 
     

Departmental liabilities     

Resin Department    $ 74,474    $ 87,274 
Hot Melt Adhesive Department     2,250     11,785 
General liabilities     129,989     169,063 
Total consolidated liabilities    $ 206,713    $ 268,122 
 
  To monitor segment performance and allocate resources between segments: 
 1. All general company assets, except cash and cash equivalents, prepayments, 

investments, other financial assets, current and deferred income tax assets, are 
allocated to reportable departments; and 

 2. All liabilities of the company, except loans, advances received, other financial 
liabilities, remuneration payable to directors and supervisors, current and deferred 
income tax liabilities and other general liabilities of the company, are allocated to 
reportable departments. 

 (III) Income from main products and services 
  The reportable departments of the Group are based on different products and services; 
refer to the revenue and operating results of the departments above for details. 



 

131 
 

 (IV) Region information 
  The Group's revenue from continuing operations with external customers is as follows: 

  2022  2021 

Taiwan    $ 916,551    $ 885,391 
Brazil     31,040     26,088 
Hong Kong     51,373     92,364 
Japan     33,307     36,909 
Mainland China     35,485     29,485 
India     33,803     42,002 
Other     32,675     36,394 
    $ 1,134,234    $ 1,148,633 

 
(V) Information of important customers 

  The customers of the Group accounting for more than 10% of the revenue of the current 
year are listed below: 

  2022  2021 

Customer A    $ 175,361    $ 146,341 
Customer B     70,185     147,883 
Customer C     173,673     123,104 
Customer D     150,934     114,437 
    $ 570,153    $ 531,765 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
The amount of goods purchased or sold with related parties reaching NTD100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital 

2022 
Table 1 Unit: NTD thousands 
 

Buyer/Seller Counterparty Relationship 

Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction Notes and Accounts Receivable 

Remarks 
Purchase/Sale Amount 

Ratio (%) of 
Total 

Purchase 
(Sales) 

Credit Period Unit Price (Note 
1) 

Credit Period 
(Note 1) Balance 

Ratio (%) of 
Total Notes 

and Accounts 
Receivable 
(Payable) 

Yong Shun Chemical 
Co., Ltd. 

Sun Yang Global Co., 
Ltd. 

Subsidiary Sales   $ 181,398 18.62% 100 days monthly 
settlement 

- -   $ 41,099 25.93%  

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

 

Note 1: The transaction price and payment period between the Company and related parties are comparable to those of ordinary customers. 
Note 2: The purchase and sales transactions between each individual entity of the Group have been written off. 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Business relationship between parent and subsidiary companies and important transactions and amounts 

2022 
Table 2 Unit: NTD thousands 
 

No. 
(Note 1) 

Transaction Company Counterparty 
Relationship with 

Counterparty 
(Note 2) 

Transactions 

Account Amount Transaction Terms 
Ratio of Consolidated 

Revenue/Assets 
(Note 3) 

 2022       

0 Yong Shun Chemical Co., 
Ltd. 

Sun Yang Global Co., Ltd. 1 Sale   $ 181,398 No significant difference from 
ordinary customers 

   15.99% 

   Miscellaneous income    20 〃    - 

    Notes receivable    32,611 〃    2.57% 

    Accounts receivable    8,488 〃    0.67% 

 
Note 1: The types of business transactions are indicated by the following numbers shown in the No. column: 

1. 0 - Parent company. 
Note 2: The transaction flows were as follows: 

1. Parent to subsidiary. 
2. Subsidiary to parent. 
3. Subsidiary to subsidiary. 

Note 3: The calculation of the ratio of the transaction amount to the consolidated total revenue or total assets, for an asset or liability item, is the ending balance to the consolidated total assets; for a profit 
and loss item, it is the accumulated amount of the period to the total consolidated revenue. 

Note 4: Transactions of related parties of each individual entity of the Group have been adjusted and written off. 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Information about the investee, the location, etc 

2022 
Table 3 Unit: NTD thousand; (share) 
 

Name of the 
investor 

Name of investee Location Main business activities 

Original Investment Amount Shares held as at end of the period 
Net profit 

(loss) of the 
investee of 

current period 

Investment 
gain/loss 

recognized in 
the current 

period 

Remarks End of the 
current period 

End of the 
previous year 

Number of 
shares Ratio (%) Book value 

Yong Shun 
Chemical Co., 
Ltd. 

Sun Yang Global 
Co., Ltd. 

Taiwan Subsidiary for 
manufacturing and 
sales of synthetic 
resins, plastics, 
coatings, paints and 
industrial additives 

  $ 50,000   $ 50,000    5,000,000    100%   $ 62,558   $ 1,021    $ 1,021  Subsidiary 

            

            

            

            

 
Note: For the investment gain/loss recognized by the companies in the consolidated financial statements by the equity method, the long-term equity investment recorded in the account of the investing 

company and the net equity value of the investee have been completely written off. 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 
Information on major shareholders 

December 31, 2022 
Table 4 
 

Name of major shareholder 
Shares 

Shareholding 
Percentage of 
shareholding 

Lin, Tsyr-Huan    6,057,327 9.92% 
Lin, Tsyr-Hung    4,469,367 7.32% 
Lin, Tsyr-Hsi    4,457,788 7.30% 
Lin, Cheng-Chien    4,205,821 6.88% 
Tsai, Cheng-Fung    3,492,490 5.72% 

 
Note 1: The information on major shareholders in this table is calculated by TDCC on the last business 

day at the end of the current quarter for shareholders who hold more than 5% of the ordinary 
shares and special shares that have been delivered by the Company without physical 
registration (including treasury shares). The share capital reported in the consolidated financial 
statements and the actual number of ordinary shares that have completed the dematerialized 
registration and delivery may be different due to differences in the basis of calculation. 
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V. Parent company’s financial statements in the most recent fiscal year: 

 
 
 

Independent Auditor's Report 
To Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd.: 
 
Opinion 
  We have duly audited the individual balance sheet as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the 
individual comprehensive income statement, individual statement of changes in equity and individual 
cash flow statement from January 1 to December 31, 2022 and 2021 as well as notes to the individual 
financial statements (including the summary of significant accounting policies) of Yong Shun Chemical 
Co., Ltd. 
  In our opinion, the individual financial statements referred to above have been prepared, in all 
material respects, in conformity with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 
Securities Issuers, and are fairly stated in terms of the individual financial position of Yong Shun 
Chemical Co., Ltd. as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the individual financial performance and 
individual cash flow from January 1 to December31, 2022 and 2021. 
Basis for Opinion 
  Certified Public Accountants conducted our audits in accordance with Regulations Governing 
Auditing and Attestation of Financial Statements using auditing principles. Our responsibilities as an 
auditor under the abovementioned standards are explained in the Responsibilities paragraph. All 
relevant personnel of the accounting firm have followed the CPA code of ethics and maintained 
independence from Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. when performing their duties. We believe that the 
evidence obtained provides an adequate and appropriate basis for our opinion. 
Key Audit Matters 
  Key audit matters are matters that we considered to be the most important, based on professional 
judgment, when auditing the 2022 individual financial statements of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. These 
issues were addressed when we audited and formed our opinions on the parent company only financial 
statements. Therefore, we do not provide opinions separately for individual matters. 
The key audit items of the individual financial statements of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. for 2022 are 
as follows: 
Key audit matter: Authenticity of sales, revenue and shipment to specific customers 
  Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. are mainly engaged in the design, development, and manufacturing 
of resin products. Since changes in the major customers have a significant impact on the financial 
statements, and sales revenue is inherently subject to a high degree of risk, we have identified customers 
meeting specific criteria, and assessed the authenticity of the sales revenue transactions for these 
customers as a key audit matter. For the accounting policies and the information disclosed related to the 
revenue recognition, please refer to Notes 4 and 21 to the parent company only financial statements. 
  In response to the above important matters, the main audit procedures implemented by the CPAs are 
as follows: 
 1. Understanding and testing the revenue recognition of a specific sales target is critical to the design 

and execution of internal control. 
 2. For the aforementioned specific sales target revenue details, select an appropriate sample to check 

the relevant supporting documents and test the collection status to confirm that the sales 
transaction actually occurred. 

 3. We review whether material sales returns and discounts have occurred after the balance sheet date, 
in order to confirm whether there is material misstatement in the revenue of specific sales targets. 
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Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for Parent Company Only 
Financial Statements 
  Responsibilities of the management were to prepare and ensure fair presentation of the parent 
company only financial statements in accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of 
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and to exercise proper internal control practices that are relevant 
to the preparation of the parent company only financial statements so that the parent company only 
financial statements are free of material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error. 
  The management’s responsibilities when preparing the parent company only financial statements 
also involved: assessing the ability of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. to operate, disclose information, and 
account for transactions as an ongoing concern unless the management intends to liquidate or cease 
business operations, or is compelled to do so with no alternative solution. 
  The governance units (including the Audit Committee) of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. are 
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process. 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Parent Company Only Financial Statements 
  The purposes of our audit were to obtain reasonable assurance of whether the parent company only 
financial statements were prone to material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error, and to issue 
a report of our audit opinions. We considered assurance to be reasonable only if it is highly credible. 
However, audit tasks conducted in accordance with auditing principles do not necessarily guarantee 
detection of all material misstatements within the parent company only financial statements. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if the individual 
amount or aggregate total is reasonably expected to affect economic decisions of the financial statement 
user. 
  When conducting audits in accordance with auditing principles, we exercised judgments and raised 
doubts as deemed professionally appropriate. We also performed the following tasks as an auditor: 
 1. Identifying and assessing risk of material misstatement within the parent company only financial 

statements that are attributed to fraud or error; designing and executing appropriate response 
measures for the identified risks; and obtaining adequate and appropriate audit evidence to 
support audit opinions. Fraud may involve conspiracy, forgery, intentional omission, untruthful 
declaration, or breach of internal controls, and our audit did not find any material misstatement 
where the risk of fraud is greater than the risk of error. 

 2. Obtaining necessary understanding of internal controls relevant to audit and designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate under the prevailing circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
providing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control system of Yong Shun Chemical Co., 
Ltd. 

 3. Assessing the appropriateness of accounting policies adopted by the management, and the 
rationality of accounting estimates and related disclosures. 

 4. Forming conclusions regarding the appropriateness of management’s decision to account for the 
business as an ongoing concern, and whether there are doubts or uncertainties about the ability of 
Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. to continue operating, based on the audit evidence obtained. We are 
bound to remind parent company only financial statement users to pay attention to relevant 
disclosures in the notes of statements within our audit report if material uncertainties exist in 
regards to the aforementioned events or circumstances, and amend audit opinions when the 
disclosures are no longer appropriate. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of the audit report. However, future events or change of circumstances may still 
render Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. no longer capable of continuing operations. 

 5. Assessing the overall presentation, structure, and contents of the parent company only financial 
statements (including related footnotes), and whether certain transactions and events are presented 
appropriately in the parent company only financial statements. 

 6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 
within Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. to express an opinion on the parent company only financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and execution of the Company’s audits, 
and for forming an audit opinion of the Company. 

  We have communicated with the governance body about the scope, timing, and significant findings 
(including significant defects in internal controls identified during the audit) of our audit. 
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We have also provided the governance body with a declaration of independence stating that all relevant 
personnel of the accounting firm have complied with the CPA code of ethics, and communicated with the 
governance body on all matters that may affect the auditor’s independence (including relevant protection 
measures). 
  We have identified the key audit matters after communicating with the governance body regarding 
the parent company only financial statements from the year ended December 31, 2022 of Yong Shun 
Chemical Co., Ltd. These issues have been addressed in our audit report except for: 1. Certain topics that 
are prohibited by law from disclosing to the public; or 2. Under extreme circumstances, topics that we 
decide not to communicate in the audit report because they may cause higher negative effects than the 
benefits they bring to public interest. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Deloitte Taiwan 
CPA Hsueh, Chun-Min 

  
CPA Chih, Jui-Chuan 
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number 
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No. 1090358185 

 Financial Supervisory Commission approval 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 
Parent Company Only Balance Sheet 

December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2022 
Unit: NTD thousands 

 

    December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Code  Asset  Amount  %  Amount  % 
  Current assets         
1100  Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6 and 27)    $ 327,373     27    $ 345,073     26 
1136  Financial assets measured at amortized costs - current (Notes 8, 9 

and 27) 
 

   99,000     8     99,000     8 
1150  Net notes receivable (Notes 10, 21 and 27)     34,415     3     40,248     3 
1160  Notes receivable - related parties (Notes 10, 21, 27 and 28)     32,611     3     19,713     1 
1170  Net accounts receivable (Notes 10, 21 and 27)     82,716     7     167,137     13 
1180  Accounts receivable - related parties (Notes 10, 21, 27 and 28)     8,488     1     17,273     1 
130X  Inventory (Note 11)     179,856     15     219,840     17 
1410  Prepayments     1,993     -     4,148     - 
1476  Income tax assets of the period (Note 23)     8,274     1     19     - 
1479  Other current assets - others (Note 15)     82     -     572     - 
11XX  Total current assets     774,808     65     913,023     69 
                       
  Non-current assets         
1550  Investment by the equity method (Note 12)     62,558     5     61,129     5 
1600  Property, plant and equipment (Notes 13, 25 and 29)     326,216     28     326,546     25 
1780  Intangible assets     38     -     88     - 
1840  Deferred income tax assets - non-current (Note 23)     22,701     2     18,993     1 
1920  Refundable deposits (Note 27)     210     -     210     - 
15XX  Total non-current assets     411,723     35     406,966     31 
                       
1XXX  Total assets    $ 1,186,531     100    $ 1,319,989     100 
           

Code  Liabilities and equity         

  Current liabilities         
2100  Short-term borrowing (Notes 16, 25 and 27)    $ -     -    $ 913     - 
2110  Short-term notes payable (Notes 16, 25 and 27)     12,714     1     30,005     2 
2120  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 7 and 

27) 
 

   344     -     184     - 
2130  Contractual liabilities - current (Note 21)     6,093     -     1,183     - 
2150  Notes payable (Notes 17 and 27)     3,392     -     4,517     1 
2170  Accounts payable (Notes 17 and 27)     23,006     2     39,610     3 
2219  Other payables (Notes 18, 25 and 27)     20,386     2     25,785     2 
2230  Income tax liabilities of the period (Note 23)     -     -     14,546     1 
2399  Other current liabilities     310     -     344     - 
21XX  Total current liabilities     66,245     5     117,087     9 
                       
  Non-current liabilities         
2570  Deferred income tax liabilities (Note 23)     45,841     4     45,866     4 
2640  Net defined benefit liabilities - non-current (Note 19)     10,466     1     17,363     1 
25XX  Total non-current liabilities     56,307     5     63,229     5 
                       
2XXX    Total liabilities     122,552     10     180,316     14 
                       
  Equity (Note 20)         
  Share capital         
3110  Common stock     610,560     51     610,560     46 
3200  Capital surplus     53,309     5     53,309     4 
  Retained earnings         
3310  Legal reserve     210,483     18     202,902     15 
3320  Special reserve     98,028     8     98,028     8 
3350  Undistributed retained earnings     91,599     8     174,874     13 
3300  Total retained earnings     400,110     34     475,804     36 
3XXX  Total equity     1,063,979     90     1,139,673     86 
                       
  Total liabilities and equity    $ 1,186,531     100    $ 1,319,989     100 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the individual financial statements. 
 
Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien Head of Accounting: Chen, Fu-Mei 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 
Parent Company Only Statement of Comprehensive Income 

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 
Unit: NTD thousand, except earnings (losses) per share which is in NTD 

 

    2022  2021 

Code    Amount  %  Amount  % 

4000  Operating revenue (Notes 21 and 
28) 

 
  $ 974,263     100    $ 1,021,713     100 

                       
5000  Operating costs (Notes 11 and 22)   (  937,046 )   (  96 )   (  868,314 )   (  85 ) 

                       
5900  Operating margin     37,217     4     153,399     15 

                       
5910  Unrealized gains from 

subsidiaries, affiliated 
enterprises and joint ventures 

 

 (  6 )     -   (  414 )     - 

                       
5920  Realized gains from subsidiaries, 

affiliated enterprises and joint 
ventures 

 

   414     -     395     - 

                       
5950  Realized gross profit from 

operations 
 

   37,625     4     153,380     15 

                       

  Operating expenses (Note 22)         
6100  Selling expenses   (  29,775 )   (  3 )   (  32,232 )   (  3 ) 
6200  Administrative expenses   (  33,323 )   (  3 )   (  35,782 )   (  3 ) 
6300  Research and development 

expenses 
 

 (  5,569 )   (  1 )   (  5,709 )   (  1 ) 
6450  Expected credit impairment 

loss (reversal gain) 
 

   4,060     -   (  900 )     - 
6000  Total operating 

expenses 
 

 (  64,607 )   (  7 )   (  74,623 )   (  7 ) 

                       
6900  Operating income (loss)   (  26,982 )   (  3 )     78,757     8 

                       

  Non-operating income and 
expenses (Notes 22, 28 and 31) 

 
       

7100  Interest income     2,002     1     1,576     - 
7010  Other income     675     -     717     - 
7020  Other gains and losses     128     -     1,414     - 
7070  Share of gains or losses of 

subsidiaries, affiliated 
enterprises and joint 
ventures by the equity 
method 

 

   1,021     -     10,672     1 
7050  Finance costs   (  183 )     -   (  19 )     - 
7000  Total non-operating 

income and expenses 
 

   3,643     1     14,360     1 
 
(continued on the next page) 
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(continued from the previous page) 
 

    2022  2021 

Code    Amount  %  Amount  % 

7900  Net income before tax (loss)   ( $ 23,339 )   (  2 )    $ 93,117     9 

                       
7950  Income tax income (expense) 

(Note 23) 
 

   4,148     -   (  15,736 )   (  2 ) 

                       
8200  Net profit (loss) for the year   (  19,191 )   (  2 )     77,381     7 

                       

  Other comprehensive income 
(Notes 19 and 23) 

 
       

  Items not reclassified into 
profit or loss: 

 
       

8311  Remeasurement of 
defined benefit 
obligation 

 

   5,691     -   (  1,960 )     - 
8341  Income tax related to 

items not reclassified 
 

 (  1,138 )     -     392     - 
8310       4,553     -   (  1,568 )     - 
8300  Other comprehensive 

income of the period 
(net after tax) 

 

   4,553     -   (  1,568 )     - 

                       
8500  Comprehensive income of the 

period 
 

 ( $ 14,638 )   (  2 )    $ 75,813     7 

                       

  Earnings (losses) per share (Note 
24) 

 
       

9750  Basic   ( $ 0.31 )         $ 1.27      
9850  Diluted   ( $ 0.31 )         $ 1.27      
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the individual financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien Head of Accounting: Chen, Fu-Mei 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 
Parent Company Only Statement of Changes in Equity 

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 
Unit: NTD thousands 

 

    Share capital    Retained earnings   
Code    Number of shares (in 

thousands)  Amount  Capital surplus  Legal reserve  Special reserve  
Undistributed 

retained earnings  Total equity 
A1  Balance on January 1, 2021     61,056    $ 610,560    $ 53,309    $ 197,246    $ 98,028    $ 153,561    $ 1,112,704 
                                      
  Earnings distribution for 2020               
B1  Legal reserve     -     -     -     5,656     -   (  5,656 )     - 
B5  Shareholders’ cash dividends     -     -     -     -     -   (  48,844 )   (  48,844 ) 
                                      
D1  Net profit for 2021     -     -     -     -     -     77,381     77,381 
                                      
D3  Other after-tax comprehensive income of 2021     -     -     -     -     -   (  1,568 )   (  1,568 ) 
                                      
D5  Total comprehensive income of 2021     -     -     -     -     -     75,813     75,813 
                                      
Z1  Balance on December 31, 2021     61,056     610,560     53,309     202,902     98,028     174,874     1,139,673 
                                      
  Earnings distribution for 2021               
B1  Legal reserve     -     -     -     7,581     -   (  7,581 )     - 
B5  Shareholders’ cash dividends     -     -     -     -     -   (  61,056 )   (  61,056 ) 
                                      
D1  Net loss for 2022     -     -     -     -     -   (  19,191 )   (  19,191 ) 
                                      
D3  Other after-tax comprehensive income of 2022     -     -     -     -     -     4,553     4,553 
                                      
D5  Total comprehensive income of 2022     -     -     -     -     -   (  14,638 )   (  14,638 ) 
                                      
Z1  Balance on December 31, 2022     61,056    $ 610,560    $ 53,309    $ 210,483    $ 98,028    $ 91,599    $ 1,063,979 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the individual financial statements. 
 
 
 
Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien Head of Accounting: Chen, Fu-Mei 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 
Parent Company Only Statement of Cash Flow 

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 
Unit: NTD thousands 

 

Code    2022  2021 
  Cash flow from operating activities     
A10000  Net income (loss) before tax   ( $ 23,339 )    $ 93,117 
A20010  Income, expenses and losses:     
A20100  Depreciation expenses     7,569     7,974 
A20200  Amortization expenses     50     50 
A20300  Expected credit impairment loss 

(reversal gain) 
 

 (  4,060 )     900 
A20400  Net (gain) loss of financial liabilities 

at fair value through profit or 
loss 

 

   160   (  495 ) 
A20900  Finance costs     183     19 
A22400  Share of gains or losses of 

subsidiaries, affiliated enterprises 
and joint ventures by the equity 
method 

 

 (  1,021 )   (  10,672 ) 
A21200  Interest income   (  2,002 )   (  1,576 ) 
A22500  Gain on disposal of property, plant, 

and equipment 
 

 (  178 )   (  492 ) 
A23700  Write-down of inventories     20,683     1,689 
A23900  Unrealized gains from subsidiaries, 

affiliated enterprises and joint 
ventures 

 

   6     414 
A24000  Realized gains from subsidiaries, 

affiliated enterprises and joint 
ventures 

 

 (  414 )   (  395 ) 
A29900  Inventory scrapping loss     1,254     983 
A30000  Net change of operating assets and 

liabilities 
 

   
A31130  Notes receivable   (  7,065 )     15,117 
A31150  Accounts receivable     97,266   (  47,467 ) 
A31200  Inventory     18,047   (  66,507 ) 
A31230  Prepayments     2,155   (  816 ) 
A31240  Other current assets     512   (  518 ) 
A32125  Contract liabilities - current     4,910     757 
A32130  Notes payable   (  1,125 )   (  422 ) 
A32150  Accounts payable   (  16,604 )     10,745 
A32180  Other payables   (  6,581 )     1,300 
A32230  Other current liabilities   (  34 )     58 
A32240  Net defined benefit liabilities   (  1,206 )   (  1,254 ) 
A33000  Cash from operations     89,166     2,509 
A33100  Interest received     1,980     1,576 
 
(continued on the next page) 
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(continued from the previous page) 
 

Code    2022  2021 
A33300  Interest paid   ( $ 183 )   ( $ 19 ) 
A33500  Income tax paid (refundable)   (  23,524 )     2,202 
AAAA  Net cash inflow from operating 

activities 
 

   67,439     6,268 
             
  Cash flow from investment activities     
B02700  Acquisition of property, plant and 

equipment 
 

 (  6,057 )   (  5,963 ) 
B02800  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant 

and equipment 
 

   178     492 
BBBB  Net cash outflow from investments   (  5,879 )   (  5,471 ) 
             
  Cash flow from financial activities     
C00100  Increase in short-term borrowing   (  913 )     913 
C00600  Decrease in short-term notes payable   (  17,291 )   (  13,045 ) 
C04500  Dividend payment   (  61,056 )   (  48,844 ) 
CCCC  Net cash outflow from financial 

activities 
 

 (  79,260 )   (  60,976 ) 
             
EEEE  Decrease in cash and cash equivalents   (  17,700 )   (  60,179 ) 
             
E00100  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 

the year 
 

   345,073     405,252 
             
E00200  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 

year 
 

  $ 327,373    $ 345,073 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the individual financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien Head of Accounting: Chen, Fu-Mei 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 
Notes to Parent Company Only Financial Statements 

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 
(NTD thousand, Unless Stated Otherwise) 

 
 I. Organization and Operations 

  Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as "the Company") was established 
in July 1965, mainly engaged in the manufacturing and sales of multi-component resins, special 
coating resins and fiber auxiliaries as well as the manufacturing, processing and trading of 
various reinforced plastic-steel products, the manufacturing of the auxiliary raw materials, the 
purchase of raw materials, and the import and export of finished products. 
  The Company’s stock has been traded on the Taipei Exchange of the Republic of China 
since February 1999. 
  The parent company only financial statements of the Company are presented in the 
Company’s functional currency, the New Taiwan dollar. 

 II. Financial Statement Approval Date and Procedures 
  This parent company only financial report was approved by the board meeting on March 
13, 2023. 

 III. Application of new standards, amendments, and interpretations 
 (I) Initial application of the amendments to the Regulations Governing the Preparation of 

Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC 
Interpretations (SIC) (hereinafter referred to collectively as the “IFRSs”) endorsed and issued 
into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC) 
  The application of the revised IFRSs approved and issued by the FSC will not result in a 
material change in the accounting policies of the Company. 

 (II) FSC-approved IFRSs applicable from 2023 onwards 

New/amended/revised standards and interpretations  
Effective date of IASB 

announcement 
Amendments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting 

Policies” 
 January 1, 2023 (Note 1) 

Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting 
Estimates” 

 January 1, 2023 (Note 2) 

Amendments to IAS 12 "Deferred Tax Related to Assets 
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction" 

 January 1, 2023 (Note 3) 

 
Note 1: The amendments apply to the annual reporting periods beginning on or after 

January 1, 2023. 
Note 2: The amendments apply to changes in accounting estimates and in accounting 

policies that occur during the annual reporting period beginning on and after 
January 1, 2023. 

Note 3: In addition to recognizing deferred income tax on the temporary difference 
between leases and decommissioning obligations on January 1, 2022, the 
amendment is applicable to transactions that occur after January 1, 2022. 

 1. Amendments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies” 
  The amendments clearly stipulate that the Company shall determine the material 
accounting policy information to be disclosed based on the definition of materiality. If 
accounting policy information can be reasonably expected to affect the decisions made 
by the main users of general-purpose financial statements based on these financial 
statements, the accounting policy information is material. The amendments also 
clarify: 
˙ Accounting policy information related to non-material transactions, other matters, 

or circumstances that are non-material, and the Company is not required to 
disclose such information. 
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˙ The Company may determine the relevant accounting policy information to be 
material due to the nature of transactions, other matters, or circumstances, even if 
the amount is not material. 

˙ Not all accounting policy information related to the significant transaction, other 
matters, or circumstances is material. 

  In addition, the amendments also illustrate that if the accounting policy 
information is related to material transactions, other matters, or circumstances while 
in line with the following circumstances, the information may be material: 
 (1) The Company changes its accounting policies during the reporting period, and 

the change results in a material change in financial statement information; 
 (2) the Company selects its applicable accounting policies from the options allowed 

by the standards; 
 (3) due to the lack of specific standards, the Company has formulated accounting 

policies in accordance with IAS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes and Errors in 
Accounting Estimates"; 

 (4) The Company discloses the accounting policies that are determined using 
significant judgments or assumptions; or 

 (5) complicated accounting treatment rules are involved and the user of the 
financial statements relies on the information to understand significant 
transactions or other matters or circumstances. 

 2. Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates” 
  The amendments define accounting estimates as the currency amount affected by 
measurement uncertainty in the financial statements. When applying accounting 
policies, the Company may need to measure the items in the financial statements 
using the currency amount that cannot be observed directly and must be estimated. 
When measuring the effect of the changes in technique or input value on accounting 
estimates, they shall be the changes in accounting estimates if they are not the 
correction of the previous errors. 

  In addition to the impacts referred to above, as of the date the parent company only 
financial report was authorized for issue, the Company has assessed the possible impact that 
the application of other standards and interpretations will not have a material impact on the 
Company’s financial position and financial performance. 

 (III) IFRSs issued by the IASB but not yet approved and released by the FSC 

New/amended/revised standards and interpretations  
Effective date announced by 

IASB (Note 1) 
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution 

of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint 
Venture” 

 To be determined 

Amendments to IFRS 16 “Lease Liabilities under Sale and 
Leaseback” 

 January 1, 2024 (Note 2) 

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”  January 1, 2023 
Amendments to IFRS 17  January 1, 2023 
Amendments to IFRS 17 "First-time Application of IFRS 

17 and IFRS 9 - Comparative Information" 
 January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as 
Current or Non-current” 

 January 1, 2024 

Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with 
Contractual Clauses” 

 January 1, 2024 

 
Note 1: Unless stated otherwise, the new/amended/revised standards and interpretations 

above are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after their 
respective effective dates. 

Note 2: A seller-lessee should apply the amendments to IFRS 16 retrospectively to sale and 
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of IFRS 16. 
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Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current” (Amended in 
2020) and “Non-current Liabilities with Contractual Clauses” (Amended in 2022) 
  Amended in 2020 to clarify that when determining whether a liability is classified as 
non-current, it is necessary to assess whether the Company has the right to defer the 
settlement period to at least 12 months after the reporting period at the end of the reporting 
period. If the Company has the right at the end of the reporting period, regardless of 
whether the Company expects to exercise the right, the liabilities are classified as non-
current. 
  The 2020 amendments further specify that if the Company must comply with certain 
conditions before it has the right to defer payment of its liabilities, the Company must have 
complied with certain conditions at the end of the reporting period, even if the lender is 
testing whether the Company has complied with those conditions at a later date. The 2022 
amendments further clarify that only the contractual terms that must be followed before the 
end of the reporting period will affect the classification of liabilities. Although the terms of 
the contract to be followed within 12 months after the reporting period do not affect the 
classification of liabilities, relevant information must be disclosed to enable users of the 
financial statements to understand that the Company may not be able to comply with the 
contractual terms and be required to make repayments within 12 months after the reporting 
period. 
  The 2020 amendments provide that, for the purpose of liability classification, the 
aforementioned settlement refers to the extinguishment of liabilities due to the transfer of 
cash, other economic resources, or equity instruments of the Company to the counterparty. 
However, if the terms of the liability may be based on the choice of the counterparty, 
resulting in the settlement of the equity instrument of the Company, and if the choice is 
separately recognized in equity according to IAS 32 "Financial Instruments: Presentation", 
the aforementioned clauses do not affect the classification of liabilities. 
  As of the date the parent company only financial report authorized for issue, the 
Company is continuously assessing the possible impact that the application of other 
standards and interpretations will have on the Company’s financial position and financial 
performance and will disclose the relevant impact when the assessment is completed. 

 IV. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 (I) Statement of compliance 

  The parent company only financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers. 

 (II) Basis of preparation 
  In addition to financial instruments measured at fair value and net defined benefit 
liabilities recognized at the present value of defined benefit obligations less the fair value of 
planned assets, the parent company only financial statements are prepared based on 
historical cost. 
  The fair value measurements, which are grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree 
to which the fair value measurement inputs are observable and based on the significance of 
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, are described as follows: 
 1. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities. 
 2. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 

observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., 
derived from prices). 

 3. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
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  The Company adopts the equity method for investment subsidiaries when preparing 
the parent company only financial statements. In order to make the current year’s profit and 
loss, other comprehensive income and equity in the parent company only financial report 
identical to the current year’s profit and loss, other comprehensive income and equity 
attributable to the owners of the Company in its parent company only financial statements, 
certain accounting treatment differences between the individual basis and the consolidated 
basis are handled by adjusting investments by the equity method, share of profit or loss of 
subsidiaries by the equity method, share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries by 
the equity method, and related equity items. 

 (III) Criteria for distinguishing current and non-current assets and liabilities 
  Current assets include: 
 1. Assets held primarily for trading purposes; 
 2. Assets expected to be realized within 12 months of the balance sheet date, and 
 3. Cash and cash equivalents (other than those restricted from being exchanged or 

settled more than 12 months after the balance sheet date). 
  Current liabilities include: 
 1. Liabilities held primarily for trading purposes; 
 2. Liabilities due for settlement within 12 months of the balance sheet date (long-term 

refinancing or rescheduled agreements completed after the balance sheet date and 
before the issuance of the financial report are also current liabilities), and 

 3. Liabilities that cannot be unconditionally deferred until at least 12 months after the 
balance sheet date. If the terms of the liability may be settled by issuing equity 
instruments at the choice of the counterparty, the classification will not be affected. 

  Assets or liabilities that are not classified as current assets or liabilities are classified as 
non-current assets or non-current liabilities. 

 (IV) Foreign currency 
  When the Company prepares the financial report, transactions in currencies other than 
the Company’s functional currency (in foreign currencies) shall be converted into the 
functional currency based on the exchange rate on the transaction date. 
  Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are converted at the closing rate on 
the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary items 
or the conversion of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period they occur. 
  Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value 
are converted at the prevailing exchange rates on the date when the fair values are 
determined, and the resulting exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss for the 
current period, except for those arising from changes in fair value that should be recognized 
in other comprehensive income. 
  Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies measured at historical cost are 
converted at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of transactions and are not re-
converted. 
When preparing the parent company only financial statements, the assets and liabilities of 
foreign operating institutions (including subsidiaries, affiliates, joint ventures or branches 
that operate in foreign countries or use currencies different from those of the Company) are 
converted into New Taiwan dollars at the exchange rate on each balance sheet date. Items of 
income and expenses are converted at the average exchange rate of the current period, and 
the resulting exchange differences are included in other comprehensive income. 

 (V) Inventory 
  Inventory includes raw materials, supplies, finished goods and work-in-progress. 
Inventories are measured at a lower cost or net realizable value. Comparisons between cost 
and net realizable value are made on an item-by-item basis, except for inventories of the 
same type. The net realizable value is the estimated selling price under normal 
circumstances less the estimated costs still to be invested to completion and the estimated 
costs required to complete the sale. The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted-
average method. 
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 (VI) Investments in subsidiaries 
  The Company adopts the equity method to handle investments in subsidiaries. 
  Subsidiaries are entities over which the Company has control. 
  Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognized at cost, and the carrying 
amount after the acquisition increases or decreases with the Company’s share of the 
subsidiary’s profit and loss and other comprehensive income and profit distribution. In 
addition, changes in other equities that the Company can enjoy in subsidiaries are 
recognized in proportion to its shareholding. 
  When the change of the Company’s ownership interest in the subsidiary does not lead 
to the loss of control, it is treated as an equity transaction. The difference between the 
carrying amount of the investment and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is 
recognized directly as equity. 
  When assessing impairment, the Company considers the cash-generating units as a 
whole in the financial report and compares the recoverable amount with the carrying 
amount. If the recoverable amount of the asset increases subsequently, the reversal of the 
impairment loss shall be recognized as a profit, but the carrying amount of the asset after the 
reversal of the impairment loss shall not exceed the amount of the asset, before the 
recognition of the impairment loss, minus the carrying amount after amortization. 
Impairment losses attributable to goodwill cannot be reversed in subsequent periods. 
  Unrealized gains and losses from downstream transactions between the Company and 
its subsidiaries are eliminated from the parent company only financial statements. Profits 
and losses arising from upstream and side-stream transactions between the Company and its 
subsidiaries are recognized in the parent company only financial statements only to the 
extent not related to the Company’s interests in subsidiaries. 

 (VII) Property, plant, and equipment 
  Property, plant and equipment are recognized at cost and subsequently measured at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 
  Property, plant and equipment are depreciated separately over their useful lives on a 
straight-line basis for each significant component. The Company reviews the estimated 
useful life, residual value and depreciation method at least at the end of each year and defers 
the effect of changes in applicable accounting estimates. 
  When property, plant and equipment are de-recognized, the difference between the net 
disposal price and the carrying amount of the assets is recognized in profit or loss. 

 (VIII) Intangible assets 
 1. Single acquisition 

  Individually acquired intangible assets with finite useful lives are initially 
measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization 
and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line 
basis over their useful lives. The Company reviews the estimated useful lives, residual 
values and amortization methods at least at the end of each year and defers the effect 
of changes in applicable accounting estimates. Intangible assets with uncertain useful 
lives are presented at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 

 2. Derecognition 
  When intangible assets are de-recognized, the difference between the net disposal 
price and the carrying amount of the assets is recognized in the current profit or loss. 

 (IX) Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets. 
  The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that 
property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets may have been impaired. If any 
indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. If the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset cannot be estimated, the Company estimates the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Common assets 
are allocated to the group of minimum cash-generating units on a reasonable and consistent 
basis. 
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  The recoverable amount is the higher fair value less costs to sell and value in use. If the 
recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, then 
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable 
amount, and the impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss. 
  When an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset or 
cash-generating unit is increased to the revised recoverable amount, provided that the 
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount (net of amortization or 
depreciation) that would have been determined if the impairment loss had not been 
recognized in prior years for that asset or cash-generating unit. Reversal of impairment loss 
is recognized in profit or loss. 

 (X) Financial instruments 
  Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the balance sheet when the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
  When financial assets and financial liabilities are not initially recognized at fair value 
through profit or loss, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issuance of the financial assets or financial liabilities. 
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets or 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or 
loss. 
 1. Financial assets 

  Regular transactions of financial assets are recognized and de-recognized using 
trade date accounting. 
 (1) Type of measurements 

  The types of financial assets held by the Company are financial assets 
measured at amortized cost. 
Financial assets measured at amortized costs 
  If the Company’s investment in financial assets is classified as financial 
assets carried at amortized cost if both of the following two conditions are met: 
A. It is held under an operating model in which financial assets are held for the 

purpose of receiving contractual cash flows; and 
B. The terms of the contract give rise to cash flows on specific dates that are 

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

  Financial assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash 
equivalents, notes receivable, accounts receivable and other receivables 
measured at amortized cost, and refundable deposits), after initial recognition, 
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method to determine 
the total carrying amount less any impairment loss, and any foreign currency 
exchange gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. 
  Interest income is calculated by multiplying the effective interest rate by 
the total carrying amount of the financial assets, except for the following two 
cases: 
A. For credit-impaired financial assets purchased or established, interest income 

is calculated by multiplying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate by the 
amortized cost of the financial assets. 

B. For financial assets that are not acquired or created but subsequently become 
impaired, interest income should be computed by multiplying the effective 
interest rate by the amortized cost of the financial assets from the next 
reporting period after the impairment is applied. 

  Credit-impaired financial assets are those for which the issuer or the debtor 
has experienced significant financial difficulties or defaulted, or where it is 
probable that the debtor will declare bankruptcy or other financial 
reorganization, or where an active market for the financial assets has 
disappeared due to financial difficulties. 
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  Cash equivalents include time deposits that are highly liquid, readily 
convertible into fixed deposits with minimal risk of changes in value within 3 
months from the date of acquisition and are used to meet short-term cash 
commitments. 

 (2) Impairment of financial assets 
  The Company assesses impairment losses on financial assets (including 
accounts receivable) measured at amortized cost based on expected credit losses 
at each balance sheet date. 
  Accounts receivable are recognized as a loss provision based on the 
expected credit loss over the period of survival. Other financial assets are first 
evaluated to determine whether there is a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition. If there is no significant increase, an allowance for loss is 
recognized based on the expected credit loss over 12 months. If there is a 
significant increase, a loss provision is recognized based on the expected credit 
loss over the remaining period. 
  Expected credit loss is a weighted average credit loss weighted by the risk 
of default. The 12-month expected credit loss represents the expected credit loss 
arising from possible defaults within 12 months after the reporting date of the 
financial instrument, and the ongoing, expected credit loss represents the 
expected credit loss arising from all possible defaults during the expected life of 
the financial instrument. 
  For the purpose of internal credit risk management, the Company, without 
taking into account the collateral held, determines that the following 
circumstances represent the default of financial assets: 
A. There is internal or external information that indicates that the debtor is 

unlikely to be able to pay its debts. 
B. Financial assets are more than 365 days past due, unless there is reasonable 

and supportable information indicating that the basis for delayed default is 
more appropriate. 

All impairment losses on financial assets are reversed by reducing the carrying 
amount through the provision account. However, the loss provision on 
investments in debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive 
income are recognized in other comprehensive income without reducing their 
carrying amount. 

 (3) De-recognition on financial assets 
  The Company derecognizes financial assets only when the contractual 
rights to the cash flows from the financial assets lapse or when the financial 
assets have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the assets have been transferred to other enterprises. 
  When the financial asset is de-recognized as a whole at amortized cost, the 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the 
consideration received is recognized in profit or loss. When investments in debt 
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income are de-
recognized as a whole, the difference between the carrying amount of the 
investments and the sum of the consideration received and any accumulated 
gain or loss recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit 
or loss. When investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income are de-recognized as a whole, the cumulative gain 
or loss is transferred directly to retained earnings and is not reclassified as 
profit or loss. 

 2. Financial liabilities 
 (1) Subsequent measurements 
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  All financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method, except for the following. 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include those held 
for trading and designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

 (2) De-recognition of financial liabilities 
  When a financial liability is de-recognized, the difference between the 
carrying amount and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets 
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss. 

 3. Derivatives 
  The derivative instruments entered into by the Company include forward foreign 
exchange contracts used to manage the Company’s exchange rate risks. 
Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value upon entering into derivative 
contracts and subsequently remeasured at fair value at the balance sheet date, with 
gains or losses arising from subsequent measurements recognized directly in profit or 
loss. However, for derivatives that are designated and are effective hedging 
instruments, the timing of their recognition in profit or loss will depend on the nature 
of the hedging. When the fair value of a derivative is positive, it is classified as a 
financial asset; when the fair value is negative, it is classified as a financial liability. 
  Derivatives that are embedded in asset master contracts within the scope of IFRS 
9, "Financial Instruments", are used as a whole to determine the classification of 
financial assets. A derivative is considered to be a separate derivative if it is embedded 
in a master contract of an asset that is not within the scope of IFRS 9 (e.g., embedded 
in a master contract of a financial liability) and the embedded derivative meets the 
definition of a derivative, the risks and characteristics of which are not closely related 
to those of the master contract and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value 
through profit or loss. 

(XI) Revenue recognition 
  The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation after the 
performance obligation is identified in the customer contract and recognizes revenue when 
each performance obligation is satisfied. 
Revenue from product sales 
  Revenue from product sales is from the manufacturing and sale of multi-resins. The 
Company recognizes revenue when the product is delivered and control of ownership is 
transferred. Advance receipt of payments for the sale of goods are recognized as contract 
liabilities before the products are delivered. 

(XII) Leases 
  The Company assesses whether a contract is (or contains) a lease at the contract 
inception date. 
Company as lessee 
  Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date 
for all leases, except for leases of low-value underlying assets and short-term leases to which 
the recognition exemption applies, where lease payments are recognized as expenses on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. 

(XIII) Borrowing cost 
  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an 
asset that meet the criteria are included as part of the cost of the asset until substantially all 
of the activities necessary to bring the asset to its intended use or sale condition have been 
completed. 
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Investment income earned on the temporary investment from specific borrowings pending 
the occurrence of qualifying capital expenditures is deducted from the qualifying borrowing 
costs for capitalization. 
  Except for the above, all other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the 
period in which they are incurred. 

(XIV) Employee benefits 
 1. Short-term employee benefits 

  Short-term employee benefit-related liabilities are measured at the non-
discounted amount expected to be paid in exchange for employee services. 

 2. Post-employment benefits 
  Payments to the defined contribution pension plan is an expense that recognizes 
the amount of pension benefits to be contributed during the employees' service 
period. 
  The defined benefit cost (including service cost, net interest and re-measurement) 
of the defined benefit pension plan is actuarially determined using the projected unit 
benefit method. The service cost (including the current service cost and previous 
service cost and settlement gains or losses) and the net interest of net defined benefit 
liabilities (assets) are recognized as employee benefit expenses as they occur. Re-
measurements (including actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets, net of 
interest) are recognized in other comprehensive income as incurred and included in 
retained earnings, and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 
  The net defined benefit liability (asset) represents the appropriation deficit 
(surplus) of the defined benefit pension plan. The net defined benefit asset must not 
exceed the present value of the refund of appropriation from the plan or of the 
reduction of future appropriation. 

 3. Severance benefits 
  The Company recognizes a severance benefit liability when it can no longer 
withdraw its offer of severance benefits, or recognizes the associated restructuring 
costs, whichever is earlier. 

(XV) Income tax 
  Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax payable and deferred tax. 
 1. Current tax payable 

  The Company determines the current income (loss) in accordance with the 
regulations of each income tax filing jurisdiction and calculates the income tax payable 
(recoverable) accordingly. 
  Income tax on undistributed earnings calculated in accordance with the ROC 
Income Tax Act is recognized in the year when the shareholders resolve to retain the 
earnings. 
  Adjustments to prior years' income tax payable are to be included in the current 
period's income tax. 

 2. Deferred tax 
  Deferred income tax is computed on temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities and the tax basis of taxable income. 
  Deferred income tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary 
differences, and deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against which income tax credits can be 
utilized for temporary differences. 
  Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences 
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Company can control 
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the 
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred income tax 
assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences associated with such 
investments only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable income will be 
available to allow the temporary differences to be realized and to the extent that a 
reversal is expected in the foreseeable future. 
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  The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient tax 
assets will be available to allow recovery of all or part of the asset. Deferred income 
tax assets that have not been recognized are reviewed at each balance sheet date and 
the carrying amount is increased to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
income will be available to recover all or part of the asset. 
  Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply to the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realized, 
which are based on tax rates and tax laws that have been legislated or substantively 
legislated at the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred income tax liabilities 
and assets reflects the tax consequences of the manner in which the Company expects 
to recover or settle the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities at the balance sheet 
date. 

 3. Income tax of the current period and deferred income tax 
  Current and deferred income taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except for 
current and deferred income taxes related to items recognized in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, which are recognized in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, respectively. 

 V. Sources of Uncertainty to Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates, and Assumptions 
  In adopting accounting policies, the Company’s management is required to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that are based on historical experience and other 
relevant factors when relevant information is not readily available from other sources. Actual 
results may differ from estimates. 
  The Company takes the recent development of COVID-19 and the possible impact on the 
economic environment into the consideration of major accounting estimates such as cash flow 
estimates, growth rates, discount rates, profitability, etc. Management will review estimates and 
underlying assumptions on an ongoing basis. If a revision of an estimate affects only the current 
period, it is recognized in the period in which it is revised. If a revision of an accounting 
estimate affects both the current and future periods, it is recognized in the period in which it is 
revised and in the future period. 
  The accounting policies, estimates and basic assumptions adopted by the Company have 
been assessed by the management of the Company, and there is no significant uncertainty in 
accounting judgments, estimates or assumptions. 

 VI. Cash and cash equivalents 
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Cash on hand and working capital    $ 80    $ 80 
Checking accounts and demand deposits     77,356     75,175 
Cash equivalents     
  Commercial paper     249,937     269,818 
    $ 327,373    $ 345,073 

 VII. Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Financial liabilities - current     
Derivative instruments     
  (not specified for hedging)     
    - FX forward contracts    $ 344    $ 184 

  The FX forward contracts on the balance sheet date that are not subject to hedge accounting 
and have not yet matured are as follows: 

  Currency  Maturity period  
Contract amount 
(NTD thousand) 

December 31, 2022       

Purchase of FX forward 
contract 

 NTD to USD  November 7, 2022 ~ January 
30, 2023 

 NTD7,704/USD240 

Purchase of FX forward 
contract 

 NTD to USD  December 09, 2022 ~ March 
01, 2023 

 NTD5,310/USD174 
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  Currency  Maturity period  
Contract amount 
(NTD thousand) 

December 31, 2021       

Purchase of FX forward 
contract 

 NTD to USD  November 1, 2021 ~ April 
21, 2022 

 NTD9,468/USD340 

Purchase of FX forward 
contract 

 NTD to USD  December 13, 2021 ~ June 2, 
2022 

 NTD20,695/USD744 

 
  The purpose of the engagement in FX forward contracts by the Company in 2022 and 2021 
was to avoid the risk of foreign currency assets and liabilities arising from exchange rate 
fluctuations. The FX forward contracts held by the Company do not meet the effective hedging 
conditions, so hedge accounting is not applicable. 

 VIII. Financial assets measured at amortized costs  

 December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Current     
Domestic investment     
  Time deposits with original 

maturity over 3 months    $ 99,000    $ 99,000 
 
  As of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the interest rate range of time deposits 
with original maturity over 3 months is 1.2~1.325% and 0.755% per annum. 
  The Company has no pledge of financial assets measured at amortized cost. 

 IX. Credit risk management of debt instrument investment 
  The debt instruments invested by the Company are financial assets measured at amortized 
cost: 
December 31, 2022 

    At amortized cost 
Total book value      $ 99,000 
Loss provision       - 
Amortized cost      $ 99,000 
 
December 31, 2021 

    At amortized cost 
Total book value      $ 99,000 
Loss provision       - 
Amortized cost      $ 99,000 

 
  The credit risk of bank deposits and other financial instruments is measured and monitored 
by the financial departments of the Company.  As the trading counterparties and performing 
parties of the Company are all banks with good credit ratings and financial institutions or 
corporate organizations of investment grade or above, there is no major doubt of default, so 
there is no major credit risk. 
  The current credit risk rating mechanism of the Company and the total carrying amount of 
debt instrument investments of various credit ratings are as follows: 

Credit 
rating  Definition  

Recognition basis of 
expected credit loss  

Expected 
credit loss rate  

Total book 
amount on 

December 31, 
2022  

Total book 
amount on 

December 31, 
2021 

Normal  The debtor's credit risk is low, and 
the debtor is fully capable of 
paying off the contractual cash 
flow. 

 12-month expected 
credit loss 

 0%    $ 99,000    $ 99,000 
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X. Notes receivable, accounts receivable and collection 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Notes receivable     

At amortized cost     

  Arising from business     

    Non-related parties    $ 34,415    $ 40,248 
    Related party    $ 32,611    $ 19,713 
 

     

Accounts receivable     

At amortized cost     

  Total book value     

    Non-related parties    $ 83,016    $ 170,897 
    Less: Loss allowance   (  300 )   (  3,760 ) 
    $ 82,716    $ 167,137 
    Related party    $ 8,488    $ 17,273 

 
 (I) Accounts receivable 

  The Company’s average credit period for product sales is 90 days, and no interest is 
calculated for accounts receivable. The Company’s policy is to only conduct transactions 
with objects of investment grade or above (inclusive), and in necessary circumstances obtain 
sufficient collaterals to mitigate the risk of financial loss due to default. The Company will 
use other publicly available financial information and historical transaction records to rate 
its major customers. The Company continuously monitors the credit risk and the credit 
rating of the counterparty, and manages the credit risk through the annual review and 
approval of the counterparty’s credit limit. 
  In order to mitigate the credit risk, the management of the Company assigned dedicated 
personnel to be responsible for the credit line decision, credit approval and other monitoring 
procedures to ensure that appropriate actions have been taken for the recovery of overdue 
receivables. In addition, the Company will review the recoverable amount of the receivables 
one by one on the balance sheet date to ensure that the unrecoverable receivables have been 
provided with appropriate impairment losses. 
  The Company recognizes the loss provision of accounts receivable based on the 
expected credit loss during the existence period. The expected credit loss during the 
duration is calculated using the preparation matrix, which takes into account customers’ 
past default records and current financial situation, the industrial economic situation, the 
GDP forecast and the industrial outlook. Because the historical experience of credit loss of 
the Company shows that there is no significant difference between the loss types of different 
customer groups, the Company matrix does not further distinguish customer groups, and 
only sets the expected credit loss rate based on the number of days of accounts receivable. 
  If there is evidence that the counterparty is facing serious financial difficulties and the 
Company cannot reasonably expect the recoverable amount, for example, the counterparty 
to the transaction is in liquidation or the debt has been established for more than 365 days, 
the Company will directly write off the relevant accounts receivable, but will continue the 
recovery activities. The amount recovered due to the recovery is recognized in profit or loss. 
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  The Company measures the loss provision of accounts receivable according to the 
preparation matrix as follows: 
December 31, 2022 

  

Account 
established for 1 

to 90 days  

Account 
established for 
91 to 180 days  

Account 
established for 
181 to 365 days  

Account 
established for 
over 365 days  Total 

Total book value    $ 84,849    $ 6,655    $ -    $ -    $ 91,504 

Loss allowance (lifetime ECLs)     -    (  300 )     -      -   (  300 ) 

Amortized cost    $ 84,849    $ 6,355    $ -    $ -    $ 91,204 

 
December 31, 2021 

  

Account 
established for 1 

to 90 days  

Account 
established for 
91 to 180 days  

Account 
established for 
181 to 365 days  

Account 
established for 
over 365 days  Total 

Total book value    $ 174,927    $ 13,243    $ -    $ -    $ 188,170 

Loss allowance (lifetime ECLs)     -    (  3,760 )     -      -   (  3,760 ) 

Amortized cost    $ 174,927    $ 9,483    $ -    $ -    $ 184,410 

 
  The provision for losses of accounts receivable is calculated according to the expected 
credit loss rate of each age range, and the expected credit loss rate for the years ended 
December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 is 0.05% and 0.28%, respectively. 
  Changes in loss provision on accounts receivable: 

  2022  2021 
Beginning balance    $ 3,760    $ 2,360 
Add: Provision for impairment 

loss (reversal) for the current 
year   (  3,460 )     1,400 

Ending balance    $ 300    $ 3,760 
 
 (III) Collections (listed under other non-current assets) 

  Information on the change in provision for bad debts from collections is as follows: 

  2022  2021 
Beginning balance    $ 25,219    $ 25,719 
Less: Reversal of impairment 
losses for the year   (  600 ) 

 
 (  500 ) 

Ending balance    $ 24,619    $ 25,219 
 
As of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the amount of loss provision included 
individual impaired accounts receivable in significant financial difficulties, amounting to 
NTD 24,619 thousand and NTD 25,219 thousand, respectively, which had been transferred 
to collections (listed under other non-current assets). The Company does not hold any 
collateral for these receivable balances. 

XI. Inventory 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Raw materials    $ 120,972    $ 138,607 
Materials     6,294     5,471 
Work-in-progress     4,390     9,378 
Finished goods     48,200     66,384 
    $ 179,856    $ 219,840 
 
  The nature of cost of goods sold is as follows: 

  2022  2021 

Cost of inventory sold    $ 916,363    $ 866,625 
Inventory write-downs     20,683     1,689 
    $ 937,046    $ 868,314 
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  The Company has no inventory pledged as loan collateral. 

XII. Investments using the equity method 
Investments in subsidiaries 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Sun Yang Global Co., Ltd.    $ 62,558    $ 61,129 
 
  On the balance sheet date, the Company’s ownership interest and voting right percentage 
in subsidiaries are as follows: 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Sun Yang Global Co., Ltd.     100%     100% 
 
  In 2022 and 2021, the profit and loss and other comprehensive income share of subsidiaries 
by the equity method are recognized based on the financial report of each subsidiary that has 
been audited by CPAs during the same period. 
  The Company does not have any amount of borrowing with its investment in subsidiaries 
as the collateral. 

 
XIII. Property, plant, and equipment 

  Land  Building  
Machinery 
equipment  

Transportation 
equipment  

Office 
equipment  

Other 
equipment  Total 

Cost               
Balance on January 1, 

2022    $ 276,190    $ 148,382    $ 367,962    $ 12,781    $ 11,636    $ 46,671    $ 863,622 
Increase     -     314     2,495     1,790     1,456     1,184     7,239 
Disposals     -      -   (  1,695 )   (  2,532 )   (  749 )   (  289 )   (  5,265 ) 
Balance on December 

31, 2022    $ 276,190    $ 148,696    $ 368,762    $ 12,039    $ 12,343    $ 47,566    $ 865,596 
Cumulative 

depreciation               
Balance on January 1, 

2022    $ -    $ 108,002    $ 362,482    $ 12,456    $ 8,987    $ 45,149    $ 537,076 
Depreciation 

expenses     -     3,853     1,598     293     1,218     607     7,569 
Disposals     -     -   (  1,695 )   (  2,532 )   (  749 )   (  289 )   (  5,265 ) 
Balance on December 

31, 2022    $ -    $ 111,855    $ 362,385    $ 10,217    $ 9,456    $ 45,467    $ 539,380 
               
Net on December 31, 

2022    $ 276,190    $ 36,841    $ 6,377    $ 1,822    $ 2,887    $ 2,099    $ 326,216 
               
Cost               
Balance on January 1, 

2021    $ 276,190    $ 146,912    $ 369,227    $ 13,185    $ 12,583    $ 46,501    $ 864,598 
Increase     -     1,470     825     211     1,365     170     4,041 
Disposals     -      -   (  2,090 )   (  615 )   (  2,312 )     -    (  5,017 ) 
Balance on December 

31, 2021    $ 276,190    $ 148,382    $ 367,962    $ 12,781    $ 11,636    $ 46,671    $ 863,622 
Cumulative 

depreciation               
Balance on January 1, 

2021    $ -    $ 103,490    $ 362,844    $ 12,842    $ 10,343    $ 44,600    $ 534,119 
Depreciation 

expenses     -     4,512     1,728     229     956     549     7,974 
Disposals     -     -   (  2,090 )   (  615 )   (  2,312 )     -    (  5,017 ) 
Balance on December 

31, 2021    $ -    $ 108,002    $ 362,482    $ 12,456    $ 8,987    $ 45,149    $ 537,076 
               
Net on December 31, 

2021    $ 276,190    $ 40,380    $ 5,480    $ 325    $ 2,649    $ 1,522    $ 326,546 

 
  The Company’s property, plant and equipment listed on December 31, 2021 and December 
31, 2022 have been evaluated and there was no indication of impairment. 
  There was no interest capitalization on the property, plant and equipment of the Company 
in 2022 and 2021. 
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  Depreciation expense is accrued on a straight-line basis according to the following useful 
lives: 

Building   
  Main buildings  20 to 50 years 
  Decoration work, etc.  3 to 10 years 
Machinery equipment  3 to 16 years 
Transportation equipment  3 to 7 years 
Office equipment  3 to 5 years 
Other equipment  2 to 10 years 

 
  Please refer to note 29 for the amount of property, plant and equipment pledged as 
collaterals for loans. 

XIV. Lease arrangements 
Other lease agreements 

  2022  2021 

Short term lease expense    $ 300    $ 278 
Total cash outflow from lease   ( $ 300 )   ( $ 278 ) 
 
  The Company chooses to apply the recognition exemption to the leases of houses and 
buildings that meet the short-term lease criteria, and does not recognize the relevant right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for such leases. 

XV. Other assets 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Current     

Other receivables     

  Interest receivable    $ 54    $ 32 
  Tax refund receivable     -     534 
Provisional payment     28     6 
    $ 82    $ 572 
     

Non-current     

Collection    $ 24,619    $ 25,219 
Less: Provision for bad debts   (  24,619 )   (  25,219 ) 
    $ -    $ - 

 
XVI. Borrowings 

 (I) Short-term borrowing 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Secured loans    $ -    $ 913 
 
  The interest rate of bank revolving loans was 1.23% as of 31 December, 2021. 

 (II) Short-term notes payable 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Bank acceptances    $ 12,714    $ 30,005 
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  Outstanding short-term notes payable were as follows: 
December 31, 2022 

Guarantee/acceptance 
institution  Book value  

Original 
currency 
amount 
(USD)  

Name of 
collateral  

Book value of 
collateral 

Bank acceptances         
Mega International 

Commercial Bank 
   $ 5,344    $ 174  None    $ - 

Taiwan Cooperative 
Bank  

    7,370     240  None     - 

    $ 12,714    $ 414  None    $ - 

 
December 31, 2021 

Guarantee/acceptance 
institution  Book value  

Original 
currency 
amount 
(USD)  

Name of 
collateral  

Book value of 
collateral 

Bank acceptances         
Hua Nan Bank    $ 30,005    $ 1,084  None    $ - 

 
  Please refer to note 30 for guaranteed notes payable issued for bank borrowings. 

XVII. Notes and accounts payable 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Notes payable     
Arising from business    $ 3,392    $ 4,517 
     

Accounts payable     
Arising from business    $ 23,006    $ 39,610 
 
  Accounts payable are paid at the agreed time in the contract. The Company has a financial 
risk management policy to ensure that all payables are repaid within the pre-agreed credit 
period. 

XVIII. Other liabilities 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Current     

Other payables     
  Directors’ and supervisors’ 
remuneration payable 

 
  $ -    $ 2,480 

  Employees’ remuneration 
payable 

 
   -     1,643 

  Salary and bonus payable     13,791     14,353 
  Equipment payables     1,182     - 
  Other     5,413     7,309 
    $ 20,386    $ 25,785 

 
XIX. Retirement benefit plans 

 (I) Defined contribution plan 
  The pension system of the “Labor Pension Act” applicable to the Company is a 
government managed defined contribution retirement plan, in which 6% of an employee’s 
monthly salary is allocated to an individual account at the Labor Insurance Bureau. 
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 (II) Defined benefit plans 
  The pension system of the Company in accordance with the country’s “Labor Standards 
Act” is a government-administered defined-benefit retirement plan. The employee's pension 
is calculated based on the length of service and the average salary for the six months before 
the approved retirement date. The Company allocates 10% of the total monthly salary of the 
employees to the pension, and hands it over to the Labor Retirement Reserve Supervision 
Committee to deposit it into the special account of the Bank of Taiwan in the name of the 
committee. Before the end of the year, if it is estimated that the balance of the special account 
is not sufficient to pay the workers who are expected to meet the retirement conditions in the 
next year, the difference will be provided in one go by the end of March of the next year. The 
special account is entrusted to the Bureau of Labor Fund of the Ministry of Labor for 
management, and the Company has no right to influence the investment management 
strategy. 
  The amounts of defined benefit plans included in the parent company’s balance sheet 
are listed as follows: 
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Present value of defined benefit 
obligations 

 
  $ 66,019    $ 73,393 

Fair value of plan assets   (  55,553 )   (  56,030 ) 
Net defined benefit liabilities    $ 10,466    $ 17,363 

  Changes to net defined benefit liabilities (assets) are as follows: 

  

Present value of 
defined benefit 

obligations  
Fair value of plan 

assets  
Net defined benefit 

liabilities (assets) 

Balance on January 1, 2022    $ 73,393   ( $ 56,030 )    $ 17,363 
Service cost       
  Service costs for the current period     624     -     624 
Interest expense (revenue)     459   (  356 )     103 
Recognized as loss (profit)     1,083   (  356 )     727 
Re-measurement       
  Compensation for planned assets 

(excluding the amount included 
in net interest) 

 

   -   (  4,898)   (  4,898) 
  Actuarial (gain) loss     -     -     - 
   Changes in financial assumptions   (  2,317 )     -   (  2,317 ) 
   Adjustment based on past 

experience 
 

   1,524      -     1,524  
Recognized in other comprehensive 

income 
 

 (  793 )   (  4,898 )   (  5,691 ) 
Employer contribution     -   (   1,933)   (  1,933 ) 
Benefit paid   (  7,664 )     7,664     - 
Balance on December 31, 2022    $ 66,019   ( $ 55,553 )    $ 10,466  

      
Balance on January 1, 2021    $ 80,927   ( $ 64,270 )    $ 16,657 
Service cost       
  Service costs for the current period     741     -     741 
Interest expense (revenue)     291   (  232 )     59 
Recognized as loss (profit)     1,032   (  232 )     800 
Re-measurement       
  Compensation for planned assets 

(excluding the amount included in net 
interest) 

 

   -   (  890 )   (  890 ) 
  Actuarial loss (gain)                
   Changes in demographic 

assumptions 
 

   1,804     -     1,804 
   Changes in financial assumptions   (  1,372 )     -   (  1,372 ) 
   Adjustment based on past 

experience 
 

   2,418      -     2,418  
Recognized in other comprehensive 

income 
 

   2,850   (  890 )     1,960  
Employer contribution     -   (  2,054 )   (  2,054 ) 
Benefit paid   (  11,416 )     11,416     - 
Balance on December 31, 2021    $ 73,393   ( $ 56,030 )    $ 17,363 
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The amounts recognized in profit or loss for defined benefit plans are summarized by 
function as follows: 

  2022  2021 
Operating costs    $ 452    $ 491 
Operating expenses     275     309 
    $ 727    $ 800 

 
  The Company is exposed to the following risks as a result of the “Labor Standards Act” 
pension system: 
 1. Investment risk: The Bureau of Labor Fund of the Ministry of Labor invests labor 

pension funds in domestic (foreign) equity and debt securities and bank deposits 
through self-operation and entrusted management, but the Company’s distributable 
amount of the plans’ assets is the income calculated at not lower than the 2-year fixed 
deposit interest rate of the local bank. 

 2. Interest rate risk: The decrease in interest rates of government/corporate bonds will 
increase the present value of the defined benefit obligation, but the return on the debt 
investment of the planned assets will also increase; the impact of the two on the net 
defined benefit liabilities is partially offset. 

 3. Salary risk: For the calculation of the present value of defined benefit obligations, 
reference is made to the future salaries of the members of the plans. Therefore, 
increases in plan members' salaries will result in an increase in the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation. 

  The present value of the Company’s defined benefit obligation was actuarially 
determined by a qualified actuary with the following significant assumptions as of the 
measurement date. 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Discount rate  1.375%  0.625% 
Expected rate of salary increase  2.250%  2.000% 

 
  If there are reasonable possible changes in significant actuarial assumptions, the amount 
by which the present value of the defined benefit obligation would increase (decrease), with 
all other assumptions held constant, is as follows: 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Discount rate     

  0.25% increase   ( $ 1,094 )   ( $ 1,352 ) 
  0.25% decrease    $ 1,126    $ 1,394 
Expected rate of salary increase     

  0.25% increase    $ 1,099    $ 1,354 
  0.25% decrease   ( $ 1,073 )   ( $ 1,320 ) 
 
The sensitivity analysis above may not reflect actual changes in the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation, because the actuarial assumptions may be correlated and changes 
in only one assumption are not probable. 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Amount expected to be 

appropriated within 1 year 
 

  $ 1,920    $ 1,900 
Average period of defined benefit 

obligation to maturity 
 

6.8 years  7.5 years 
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XX. Equity 
 (I) Common share capital 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Authorized ordinary shares (in 

thousands) 
 

   61,056     61,056 
Authorized capital    $ 610,560    $ 610,560 
Issued and paid ordinary shares 

(in thousands) 
 

   61,056     61,056 
Issued capital    $ 610,560    $ 610,560 

 
  The par value of each issued common share is NTD10; each share has one voting right 
and the right to receive dividends. 

 (II) Capital surplus 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
May be used to offset a deficit, 

distributed cash dividend or 
transferred to shares (1) 

 

   

Treasury stock trading    $ 52,541    $ 52,541 
Donated assets     768     768 
    $ 53,309    $ 53,309 

 
 1. Such capital surplus may be used to offset a deficit; in addition, when the Company 

has no deficit, such capital surplus may be distributed as cash dividends or 
transferred to share capital (limited to a certain percentage of the Company’s capital 
surplus and to once a year). 

 (III) Retained earnings and dividends policy 
  According to the provisions of the earnings distribution policy in the Company’s articles 
of association, if there is a surplus in the annual final accounts, taxes shall be paid in 
accordance with the law, and after making up the cumulative loss, 10% shall be set aside as 
the legal reserve, and the rest shall be appropriated as or reversed from special reserve 
according to laws and regulations. If there is still a balance, the board meeting shall 
formulate an earnings distribution proposal for it together with the cumulative 
undistributed surplus, and submit it to the shareholders’ meeting for a resolution to 
distribute dividends to shareholders. Please refer to note 22(7) employees’ remuneration and 
directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration for the distribution policy of employees’ 
remuneration and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration stipulated in the Articles of 
Association. 
  The Company adopts a fixed and residual dividend policy for sustainable operation, 
sustainable growth and long-term financial planning based on the overall environment and 
the characteristics of the industrial development. Shareholders' dividends are distributed 
annually from the distributable surplus. The cash dividends are maintained between 10% 
and 90%, but may be adjusted according to changes in the internal and external business 
environment. 
  Distribution of earnings to the legal reserve shall be made until the reserve equals the 
Company’s paid-in capital. Legal reserves may be used to offset the deficit. If the Company 
has no deficit and the legal reserve has exceeded 25% of the Company’s paid-in capital, the 
excess may be transferred to capital or distributed in cash. 
  The Company sets aside and reverses special reserves in accordance with the 
requirements of the letters referenced Jin-Guan-Cheng-Fa No. 1010012865 and Jin-Guan-
Cheng-Fa No. 1010047490, and "Questions and Answers on the Applicability of 
Appropriation of Special Reserves After Adoption of International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs)". 



 

164 
 

  The Company’s general shareholders’ meeting on June 9, 2022 and July 1, 2021 
respectively passed resolutions on the following earnings distribution schemes for 2021 and 
2020: 

  2021  2020 
Legal reserve    $ 7,581    $ 5,656 
Cash dividends    $ 61,056    $ 48,844 
Cash dividends per share (NTD)    $ 1.00    $ 0.80 

 
  The Company’s board meeting on March 13, 2023 proposed the following earnings 
distribution of 2022: 

    2022 

Cash dividends      $ 30,528 
Cash dividends per share (NTD)      $ 0.5 

 
  The earnings distribution scheme for 2022 is pending the resolution of the general 
shareholders’ meeting expected to be held in June 2023. 

XXI. Revenue 

  2022  2021 

Revenues from sale of merchandise    $ 974,263    $ 1,021,713 
 
Contract balance 

  
December 31, 

2022  
December 31, 

2021 
 

January 1, 2021 

Notes receivable (Note 10)    $ 34,415    $ 40,248    $ 37,391 
Notes receivable - related parties 

(Note 10)    $ 32,611    $ 19,713 
 

  $ 37,687 
       

Accounts receivable (Note 10)    $ 82,716    $ 167,137    $ 124,971 
Accounts receivable - related 

parties (Note 10)    $ 8,488    $ 17,273 
 

  $ 12,872 
       

Contractual liabilities       

  Goods sold    $ 6,093    $ 1,183    $ 426 
 
XXII. Net (loss) profit for the year 

 (I) Interest income 

  2022  2021 

Bank interest income    $ 1,010    $ 837 
Financial assets measured at 

amortized costs     992     739 
    $ 2,002    $ 1,576 

 
 (II) Other income 

  2022  2021 

Grant revenue    $ 604    $ 681 
Other     71     36 
    $ 675    $ 717 
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 (III) Other gains and losses 

  2022  2021 
Gain on disposal of property, plant, 

and equipment    $ 178    $ 492 
Net foreign currency exchange 

benefits     110     427 
Net gain (loss) of financial 

liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss   (  160 )     495 

    $ 128    $ 1,414 
 
 (IV) Finance costs 

  2022  2021 

Interest on bank loans    $ 183    $ 19 
 
(V) Depreciation and amortization 

  2022  2021 
An analysis of depreciation by 

function 
 

   
  Operating costs    $ 5,575    $ 6,041 
  Operating expenses     1,994     1,933 
    $ 7,569    $ 7,974 
     
An analysis of amortization by 

function 
 

   
  Operating expenses    $ 50    $ 50 

 (VI) Employee benefits expense 

  2022  2021 
Short-term employee benefits    $ 74,906    $ 80,681 
Post-employment benefits     
  Defined contribution plans     2,242     2,130 
  Defined benefit plan (note 19)     727     800 
Other employee benefits     3,796     3,776 
Total employee benefits expense    $ 81,671    $ 87,387 
     
An analysis by function     
  Operating costs    $ 44,709    $ 47,428 
  Operating expenses     36,962     39,959 
    $ 81,671    $ 87,387 

 (VII) Employees’ compensation and remuneration of directors and supervisors 
  In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Company appropriates 1% to 3% of 
the balance as the employees’ remuneration, and no more than 4% as the directors' and 
supervisors' remuneration. The resolutions on the employees’ remuneration and directors' 
and supervisors' remuneration for 2021 by the board meetings on March 17, 2022 are as 
follows: 
Ratio 

    2021 
Employees’ remuneration    1.69% 
Remuneration of directors and 
supervisors 

 
  2.55% 
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Amount 

  2021 
  Cash  Stocks 

Employees’ remuneration    $ 1,643    $ - 
Remuneration of directors and 

supervisors     2,480     - 
 
  As the Company suffered a loss before tax in 2022, remuneration to employees and 
remuneration to directors/supervisors were not estimated. 
  If there is still any change in the amount after the annual parent company only financial 
statements is approved and issued, it shall be handled according to the change of accounting 
estimates and adjusted and recorded in the next year. 
  There is no difference between the actual allotment amounts of employees’ 
remuneration and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration in 2020 and 2021 and the 
amount recognized in the parent company only financial statements in 2020 and 2021. 
  For information on the employees’ remuneration and directors' and supervisors' 
remuneration in accordance with the resolutions of the board meeting of the Company in 
2021 and 2022, please visit the “MOPS” of the Taiwan Stock Exchange. 

XXIII. Income tax 
 (I) The main components of income tax expenses recognized in profit/loss 

  2022  2021 

Current tax payable     
  Generated in the current 

period    $ -    $ 16,599 
  R&D expenditures offset in 

the current year     -   (  856 ) 
  Income tax on undistributed 

earnings     154     103 
  Adjustments of prior years     569     - 
     723     15,846 
Deferred tax     
  Generated in the current 

period   (  4,871 )   (  110 ) 
Income tax expenses recognized 

in profit or loss   ( $ 4,148 )    $ 15,736 
 
  Adjustment of accounting income and income tax (gain) expense is as follows: 

  2022  2021 

Net profit (loss) before tax   ( $ 23,339 )    $ 93,117 
Income tax on net profit (loss) 

before tax at the statutory tax 
rate   ( $ 4,667 )    $ 18,623 

Tax-free income   (   204 )   (  2,134 ) 
Income tax on undistributed 

earnings     154      103  
R&D expenditures offset in the 

current year     -    (  856 ) 
Adjustments to income tax 

expenses of prior years     569     - 
Income tax expenses recognized 

in profit or loss   ( $ 4,148 )    $ 15,736 
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(II) Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income 

  2022  2021 

Deferred tax     

Generated in the current period     
  - Remeasurement of defined 

benefit obligation    $ 1,138    ( $ 392 ) 
Income tax recognized in other 

comprehensive income    $ 1,138    ( $ 392 ) 
 
 (III) Income tax assets and liabilities of the current period 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Current tax assets     

  Income tax receivable    $ 8,274    $ 19 
     

Income tax liabilities of the period     

  Income tax payable    $ -    $ 14,546 
 
 (IV) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities 

  Changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities: 
2022 

  
Beginning 

balance  
Recognized as 

loss (profit)  

Recognized in 
other 

comprehensive 
income  Ending balance 

Deferred income tax assets         

Temporary difference         
  Financial liabilities at fair 

value through profit or 
loss    $ 37    $ 32    $ -    $ 69 

  Provision for bad debts     5,248   (  631 )     -     4,617 

  Impairment loss     136     -     -     136 

  Write-down of inventories     1,902     4,136     -     6,038 
  Unrealized gross sales profit 

of inventory in transit     523   (  277 )     -     246 
  Unrealized gross profit of 

goods sold to 
subsidiaries     83   (  82 )     -     1 

  Financial assets measured at 
cost     7,591     -     -     7,591 

  Unrealized exchange loss     -     79     -     79 

  Loss deduction     -     1,528     -     1,528 
  Defined-benefit retirement 

plan     3,473   (  242 )   (  835 )     2,396 

    $ 18,993    $ 4,543   ( $ 835 )    $ 22,701 

         

Deferred income tax liabilities         

Temporary difference         
  Property, plant, and 

equipment    $ 45,365    $ -    $ -    $ 45,365 
  Unrealized gross sales profit 

of inventory in transit     481   (  308 )     -     173 
  Defined-benefit retirement 

plan     -     -     303     303 

  Unrealized exchange gains     20   (  20 )     -     - 

    $ 45,866   ( $ 328 )    $ 303    $ 45,841 
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2021 

  
Beginning 

balance  
Recognized as 

loss (profit)  

Recognized in 
other 

comprehensive 
income  Ending balance 

Deferred income tax assets         

Temporary difference         
  Financial liabilities at fair 

value through profit or 
loss    $ 136   ( $ 99 )    $ -    $ 37 

  Provision for bad debts     5,133     115      -     5,248 

  Impairment loss     136     -      -     136 

  Write-down of inventories     1,564     338      -     1,902 
  Unrealized gross sales profit 

of inventory in transit     689   (  166 )     -     523 
  Unrealized gross profit of 

goods sold to 
subsidiaries     79     4      -     83 

  Financial assets measured at 
cost     7,591     -      -     7,591 

  Defined-benefit retirement 
plan     3,331   (  250 )     392      3,473 

    $ 18,659   ( $ 58 )    $ 392     $ 18,993 

         

Deferred income tax liabilities         

Temporary difference         
  Property, plant, and 

equipment    $ 45,365    $ -     $ -    $ 45,365 
  Unrealized gross sales profit 

of inventory in transit     557   (  76 )     -     481 

  Unrealized exchange gains     112   (  92 )     -     20 

    $ 46,034   ( $ 168 )    $ -    $ 45,866 

 
 (V) Unused investment offset of deferred income tax not recognized in the parent company-only 

balance sheet 

    December 31, 2022 
Investment offsets     
  R&D expenditures      $ 557 

 
 (VI) Information on the unused loss deduction 

  As of December 31, 2022, the relevant information on loss deduction is as follows: 

Undeducted balance  Last deduction year 

 $ 7,639  2032 
 

 (VII) Income tax assessments 
  The Company's profit-seeking enterprise income tax declaration has been approved by 
the tax collection authority up to and including 2020. 

XXIV. Earnings (losses) per share 
Unit: NTD Per Share 

  2022  2021 
Basic earnings (loss) per share   ( $ 0.31)    $ 1.27 
Diluted (loss) per share   ( $ 0.31)    $ 1.27 
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  The earnings (loss) and the weighted average number of common shares issued for the 
calculation of earnings (loss) per share are as follows: 
Net profit of the period 

  2022  2021 
Net profit (loss) used to calculate 

basic earnings (loss) per share   ( $ 19,191)    $ 77,381 
Net profit (loss) used to calculate 

diluted earnings (loss) per share   ( $ 19,191)    $ 77,381 
 
Number of shares Unit: Thousand Shares 

  2022  2021 
Weighted average number of 

ordinary shares in the 
computation of basic (losses) 
earnings per share 

 

   61,056     61,056 
Effect of potentially dilutive ordinary 

shares: 
 

   
  Employees’ remuneration     19     100 
Weighted average number of 

ordinary shares in the 
computation of diluted (losses) 
earnings per share 

 

   61,075     61,156 
 
  If the Company has the option to pay employees’ remuneration in shares or cash, the 
calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the assumption that the employees’ 
remuneration will be issued in shares, and the weighted average number of outstanding shares 
will be included in the calculation of diluted (losses) earnings per share when the potential 
common shares are diluted. Such a dilutive effect of the potential shares is included in the 
employees’ compensation of diluted earnings per share until the shareholders resolve the 
number of ordinary shares to be distributed to employees at their meeting in the following year. 

XXV. Cash flow information 
 (I) Non-cash transactions 

  The Company conducted the following non-cash investment and financial activities in 
2022 and 2021: 
 1. In 2022, the Company acquired NTD7,239 thousand of property, plant and 

equipment. Among other payables, the total amount of equipment payables decreased 
by NTD1,182 thousand. The total amount of cash paid for the purchase of property, 
plant and equipment was NTD6,057 thousand (please refer to Notes 13 and 18). 

 2. In 2021, the Company acquired NTD4,041 thousand of property, plant and 
equipment. Among other payables, the total amount of equipment payables decreased 
by NTD1,922 thousand. The total amount of cash paid for the purchase of property, 
plant and equipment was NTD5,963 thousand (please refer to Notes 13 and 18). 

 (II) Changes in liabilities from financial activities 
2022 

  January 1, 2022  Cash flow  
December 31, 

2022 

Short-term borrowing    $ 913   ( $ 913 )    $ - 
Short-term notes 

payable     30,005   (  17,291 )     12,714 

    $ 30,918   ( $ 18,204 )    $ 12,714 
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2021 

  January 1, 2021  Cash flow  
December 31, 

2021 

Short-term borrowing    $ -    $ 913    $ 913 
Short-term notes 

payable     43,050   (  13,045 )     30,005 

    $ 43,050   ( $ 12,132 )    $ 30,918 
 

XXVI. Capital management 
  The Company conducts capital management to ensure that it can maximize shareholder 
returns by optimizing debt and equity balances on the premises of continuing operation. 
  The Company adopts a prudent risk management strategy and conducts regular reviews, 
and makes an overall plan based on business development strategies and operational needs to 
determine the appropriate capital structure for the Company. 

XXVII. Financial instruments 
 (I) Fair value information - financial instruments not measured at fair value 

  The management of the Company considers that as the maturity date of the carrying 
amount of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value is near, or that 
the future payment price is equivalent to the carrying amount, the carrying amount is close 
to its fair value. 

 (II) Fair value information - financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis 
 1. Fair value hierarchy 

December 31, 2022 
  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss         

  Derivatives    $ -    $ 344    $ -    $ 344 

 
December 31, 2021 
  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss         

  Derivatives    $ -    $ 184    $ -    $ 184 

 
  There was no transfer between level I and level II fair value measurements in 
2021 and 2022. 

 2. Evaluation technology and input value of level 2 fair value measurement 

Types of financial instruments  Evaluation technology and input value 
Derivative instrument - FX 
forward contract 

 Discounted cash flow method: The future cash 
flow is estimated at the observable forward 
exchange rate at the end of the period and the 
exchange rate set in the contract, and 
discounted respectively at a discount rate that 
can reflect the credit risk of each counterparty. 
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 (III) Categories of financial instruments 
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Financial assets     
Financial assets measured at amortized 

costs     
  Cash and cash equivalents    $ 327,373    $ 345,073 
  Financial assets measured at 

amortized costs - current     99,000     99,000 
  Notes receivable     34,415     40,248 
  Notes receivable - related parties     32,611     19,713 
  Accounts receivable     82,716     167,137 
  Accounts receivable - related 

parties     8,488     17,273 
  Refundable deposits     210     210 
Financial liabilities     
Measured at cost after amortization     
  Short-term borrowing     -     913 
  Short-term notes payable     12,714     30,005 
  Notes payable     3,392     4,517 
  Accounts payable     23,006     39,610 
  Other payables     20,386     25,785 
Financial liabilities measured at fair 

value through profit or loss     344     184 

 
(IV) Financial risk management objective and policies 

  The financial instruments of the Company include equity investment, accounts 
receivable, accounts payable and loans. The Company is committed to ensuring sufficient 
and cost-effective working capital when necessary. The Company prudently manages the 
foreign currency exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, equity instrument price risk, credit risk 
and liquidity risk related to operating activities, in order to reduce the potential adverse 
impact of market uncertainty on the Company's finance. 
  The important financial planning of the Company has been reviewed by the board 
meeting in accordance with relevant norms and internal control systems. In carrying out 
financial planning, the Finance Department of the Company strictly abides by the relevant 
financial operation procedures related to the overall financial risk management and the 
division of rights and responsibilities. 
 1. Market risk 

  The financial risk caused by the operating activities of the Company to itself are 
the foreign currency exchange rate change risk and the interest rate change risk. The 
Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage the risk of foreign currency 
exchange rate changes. 
 (1) Foreign currency risk 

  The Company engages in sales and purchase transactions denominated in 
foreign currencies, thus causing it to be exposed to foreign currency exchange 
rate changes. In order to avoid fluctuations in future cash flows due to changes 
in foreign currency exchange rates, the Company uses FX forward contracts to 
avoid foreign currency exchange rate risks. The Company also borrows short-
term foreign currency loans to offset part of the foreign currency exchange rate 
risks arising from transaction conversion. The use of derivative financial 
instruments such as FX forward contracts can help the Company reduce but 
still cannot completely exclude the impact of foreign currency exchange rate 
changes. 
  Please refer to Note 31 for the carrying amounts of monetary assets and 
monetary liabilities denominated in non-functional currencies of the Company 
on the balance sheet date. 
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Sensitivity analysis 
  The sensitivity analysis of the foreign currency exchange rate risk is mainly 
calculated for foreign currency monetary items at the end of the reporting 
period. When the New Taiwan dollar appreciates by 5% against foreign 
currencies, the Company’s net loss before tax in the years 2022 and 2021 will 
decrease by NTD74 thousand and net profit before tax will decrease by NTD430 
thousand, respectively; when the New Taiwan dollar depreciates by 5% against 
the foreign currency, the impact on the Company’s net profit (loss) before tax in 
the years 2022 and 2021 will be a negative number of the same amount. 

 (2) Interest rate risk 
  Interest rate exposure occurs because the Company borrows funds at both 
fixed and floating interest rates. 
  The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the 
Company exposed to interest rate exposure on the balance sheet date are as 
follows: 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Fair value interest rate risk     

  -Financial assets    $ 348,937    $ 368,818 
  -Financial liabilities     12,714     30,005 
Cash flow interest rate risk     

  -Financial assets     77,356     75,175 
  -Financial liabilities     -     913 

 
Sensitivity analysis 

  The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate exposure of 
derivative and non-derivative instruments on the balance sheet date. For 
floating rate liabilities, the analysis method assumes that all the amount of 
liabilities circulating on the balance sheet date is circulating during the 
reporting period. The rate of change used by the Company when reporting 
interest rates internally to the key management is an increase or decrease of one 
basis point (1%) in the interest rate, which also represents the management’s 
assessment of the reasonably possible range of changes in interest rates. 
  If the interest rate increases/decreases by one hundred basis points (1%), 
with all other variables remain unchanged, the Company’s net profit before tax 
in the years 2022 and 2021 will increase by NTD774 thousand and NTD743 
thousand respectively, mainly because of the interest rate change position risk 
arising from the bank borrowings of the Company with floating interest rates. 

 (3) Other price risks 
  The Company has an equity price exposure due to its investment in TWSE 
and TPEx listed equity securities and fund beneficiary certificates. The equity 
investments are not held for trading but mainly for earning dividend income. 
The Company does not actively trade these investments, and regularly 
evaluates the impact of market price risk in order to minimize the risk. 
Sensitivity analysis 
  Sensitivity analysis is based on equity price risk on at the balance sheet 
date. If the equity price increases/decreases by 5%, the pre-tax net profit of 2022 
and 2021 will increase/decrease by NTD17 thousand NTD9 thousand and 
respectively due to the increase/decrease in the fair value of the investments 
held for trading. 
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 2. Credit risk 
  Credit risk refers to the potential impact of the counterparty’s failure to perform 
its contractual obligations on the Company’s financial losses. As of the balance sheet 
date, the maximum credit risk exposure of the Company’s that may result in financial 
losses due to the counterparty’s failure to perform its obligations is mainly from the 
book value of financial assets recognized in the parent company only balance sheet. 
  The receivables of the Company cover many customers, and most of the 
receivables do not have collaterals. The Company continuously evaluates the financial 
status of customers with accounts receivable to reduce the credit risk of accounts 
receivable, and reviews the recoverable amount of accounts receivable one by one on 
the balance sheet date to ensure appropriate impairment losses have been provided 
for uncollectable receivables. 

 3. Liquidity risk 
  The Company manages and maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents to 
meet operating needs and mitigate the impact of cash flow fluctuations. The 
management of the Company supervises the use of banks’ financing lines and ensures 
compliance with the terms of the loan contract. 
  Bank borrowings are an important source of liquidity for the Company. As of 
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2022, the Company’s unused short-term bank 
facilities were NTD970,126 thousand and NTD939,801 thousand, respectively. 
 (1) Liquidity and interest rate risk table of non-derivative financial liabilities 

  The remaining contractual maturity analysis of non-derivative financial 
liabilities is prepared based on the earliest date on which the Company may be 
required to repay, and the undiscounted cash flows (including principal and 
estimated interest) of financial liabilities. Therefore, the bank loans which the 
Company may be required to repay immediately are listed in the earliest period 
in the table below, regardless of the probability of the banks’ immediate 
execution of the right; the maturity analysis of other non-derivative financial 
liabilities is prepared according to the agreed repayment dates. 
December 31, 2022 

  

Effective 
interest rate 

(%)  
Less than One 

Year  1 to 5 years  
More than 5 

years  Total 

Non-derivative 
financial liabilities           

Short-term notes 
payable     -    $ 12,714    $ -    $ -    $ 12,714 

Notes payable     -     3,392     -     -      

Accounts payable     -     23,006     -     -     23,006 

Other payables     -     20,386     -     -     20,386 

 
December 31, 2021 

  

Effective 
interest rate 

(%)  
Less than One 

Year  1 to 5 years  
More than 5 

years  Total 

Non-derivative 

financial liabilities           
Short-term 

borrowing     1.20%    $ 924    $ -    $ -    $ 924 
Short-term notes 

payable     -     30,005     -     -     30,005 

Notes payable     -     4,517     -     -     4,517 

Accounts payable     -     39,610     -     -     39,610 

Other payables     -     25,785     -     -     25,785 
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 (2) Liquidity and interest rate risk table of derivative financial liabilities 

  Regarding the liquidity analysis of derivative financial instruments, it is 
prepared on the basis of undiscounted net contractual cash inflows and 
outflows for derivatives delivered on a net basis; for derivatives settled in the 
aggregate amount, it is prepared on the basis of total undiscounted cash inflows 
and outflows. When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the disclosed 
amount is determined based on the expected interest rate estimated by the yield 
curve on the balance sheet date.  
December 31, 2022 

  

Immediate 
repayment or 
in less than 1 

month  1~3 months  
3 months to 1 
year  1~5 Years  

More than 5 
years 

Aggregate amount 
settlement 

 
         

FX forward contracts           

  - Inflow    $ -    $ 12,671    $ -    $ -    $ - 

  - Outflow     -   (  13,015 )     -      -     - 

    $ -   ( $ 344 )    $ -     $ -    $ - 

December 31, 2021 

  

Immediate 
repayment or 
in less than 1 

month  1~3 months  
3 months to 1 
year  1~5 Years  

More than 5 
years 

Aggregate amount 
settlement 

 
         

FX forward contracts           

  - Inflow    $ -    $ -    $ 29,979    $ -    $ - 

  - Outflow     -     -   (  30,163 )     -     - 

    $ -    $ -   ( $ 184 )    $ -    $ - 

 
XXVIII. Related party transactions 

  In addition to those disclosed in other notes, the transactions between the Company and 
related parties are as follows: 

 (I) Related party name and category 

Related Party Name  Relationship with the Company 

Sun Yang Global Co., Ltd.  Subsidiary 
 
 (II) Sale 

Line Item  Related Party Name  2022  2021 
Sale  Sun Yang Global Co., Ltd.    $ 181,398    $ 145,422 

 
  The transaction price and payment period for the purchase and sale of the Company’s 
related parties are comparable to those of ordinary customers. 
 

 (III) Receivables from related parties (excluding loans to related parties) 

Line Item  Related Party Name  
December 31, 

2022  
December 31, 

2021 
Notes receivable - 

related parties 
 Sun Yang Global Co., Ltd.    $ 32,611    $ 19,713 

Accounts receivable - 
related parties 

 Sun Yang Global Co., Ltd.    $ 8,488    $ 17,273 

 
  There is no collateral for receivables from related parties in circulation. Expected credit 

losses are not included in accounts receivable from related parties in 2022 and 2021. 
 (IV) Other related party transactions 

Miscellaneous income 

Related Party Name  2022  2021 
Sun Yang Global Co., Ltd.    $ 20    $ 18 
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 (V) Compensation of key management personnel 

  2022  2021 
Short-term employee benefits    $ 11,280    $ 13,426 
Post-employment benefits     510     722  

   $ 11,790    $ 14,148 
 
  The remuneration of directors and other key management is determined by the 
Remuneration Committee in accordance with individual performance and market trends. 

XXIX. Pledged Assets 
  The following assets of the Company have been provided as collateral for bank loans: 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
Property, plant, and equipment     
  Land    $ 126,840    $ 126,840 
  Building     30,212     31,219 
    $ 157,052    $ 158,059 

 
XXX. Significant contingent liabilities and unrecognized contract commitments 

  The Company has the following major commitments and contingencies on the balance 
sheet date: 

 (I) As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2022, the amount of customs duty guarantee 
issued by the Company to banks for imported goods was NTD8,000 thousand. 

 (II) As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2022, the amount of unused letters of credit 
issued by the Company for imported raw materials was USD158 thousand and USD744 
thousand. 

 (III) The guarantee notes payable issued by the Company for bank loans are as follows: 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
USD    $ 4,000    $ 4,000 
NTD     160,000     160,000 

 
XXXI. Significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 

  The following information is aggregated and expressed in foreign currencies other than the 
Company’s functional currency, and the exchange rates disclosed refer to the exchange rates at 
which these foreign currencies are converted to the functional currency. The significant assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies were as follows: 
December 31, 2022 

  Foreign Currency  Exchange Rate  Book value 
Foreign currency 

asset 
 

   
  

Monetary item       

USD    $ 257   30.71 (USD:NTD)    $ 7,892 
RMB     1,431   4.408 (RMB: NTD)     6,309 
        $ 14,201 

       
Foreign currency 

liabilities     
 

 

Monetary item       

USD     414   30.71 (USD:NTD)    $ 12,714 
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December 31, 2021 

  Foreign Currency  Exchange Rate  Book value 
Foreign currency 

asset 
 

   
  

Monetary item       

USD    $ 565   27.68 (USD:NTD)    $ 15,629 
RMB     1,538   4.344 (RMB: NTD)     6,681 
        $ 22,310 

       
Foreign currency 

liabilities     
 

 

Monetary item       

USD     1,117   27.68 (USD:NTD)    $ 30,919 
 
  The foreign currency exchange gains (realized and unrealized) of the Company in 2022 and 
2021 were NTD110 thousand and NTD427 thousand, respectively. Due to the wide variety of 
foreign currency transactions, it is not possible to disclose the exchange gains and losses 
according to the major influences of the foreign currencies. 

XXXII. Other Disclosures 
 (I) Material transaction. 

 1. Loans to others: None. 
 2. Endorsements/guarantees for others: None. 
 3. Securities held at period end: None. 
 4. The cumulative amount of the same securities purchased or sold reaches NTD300 

million or 20% of the paid-in capital: None. 
 5. The amount of real estate acquired reaches NTD300 million or 20% of the paid-in 

capital: None. 
 6. The amount of real estate disposed of reaches NTD300 million or 20% of the paid-in 

capital: None. 
 7. The amount of goods purchased or sold with related parties reaches NTD100 million 

or 20% of the paid-in capital. (Table 1) 
 8. The amount of accounts receivable from related parties reaches NTD100 million or 

20% of the paid-in capital: None. 
 9. Engagement in derivative trading. (Note 7) 

 (II) Information related to investees. (Table 2) 
 (III) Mainland China investment information: None. 
 (IV) Information of major shareholders: name, number of shares held and proportion of 

shareholders with 5% shareholding or more. (Table 3) 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 
The amount of goods purchased and sold with related parties reaching NTD100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital. 

2022 
Table 1 Unit: NTD thousands 

 

Buyer/Seller Counterparty Relationship 

Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction Notes/Accounts Receivable 
(Payable) 

Remarks 

Purchase/Sale Amount 
Ratio (%) of 

Total Purchase 
(Sales) 

Credit Period Unit Price 
(note) 

Credit Period 
(note) Balance 

Ratio (%) of 
Total Notes and 

Accounts 
Receivable 
(Payable) 

Yong Shun Chemical 
Co., Ltd. 

Sun Yang Global Co., Ltd. Subsidiaries Sales   $ 181,398 18.62% 100 days 
monthly 

settlement 

－ －   $ 41,099 25.93%  

           

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

 
Note: The transaction price and collection period between the Company and related parties are comparable to those of ordinary customers. 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 
Invested company information, location... etc. 

2022 
Table 2 Unit: NTD thousand; (share) 
 

Name of the investor Name of investee Location Main business activities 

Original Investment Amount Shares held as at end of the period 
Net profit (loss) 

of the investee of 
current period 

Investment 
gain/loss 

recognized in the 
current period 

Remarks 
End of the 

current period 
End of the 

previous year 
Number of 

shares Ratio (%) Book value 

Yong Shun Chemical 
Co., Ltd. 

Sun Yang Global Co., 
Ltd. 

Taiwan Subsidiary for 
manufacturing and sales 
of synthetic resins, 
plastics, coatings, paints 
and industrial additives 

  $ 50,000   $ 50,000    5,000,000    100   $ 62,558   $ 1,021    $ 1,021  Subsidiaries 

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

 



 

179 
 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 
Information on major shareholders 

December 31, 2022 
Table 3 
 

Name of major shareholder 
Shares 

Shareholding 
Percentage of 
shareholding 

Lin, Tsyr-Huan    6,057,327 9.92% 
Lin, Tsyr-Hung   4,469,367 7.32% 
Lin, Tsyr-Hsi    4,457,788 7.30% 
Lin, Cheng-Chien    4,205,821 6.88% 
Tsai, Cheng-Fung    3,492,490 5.72% 

 
Note 1: The information on major shareholders in this table is calculated by TDCC on the last business day 

at the end of the current quarter for shareholders who hold more than 5% of the ordinary shares 
and special shares that have been delivered by the Company without physical registration 
(including treasury shares). The share capital recorded in the Company’s parent company only 
financial statements and the actual number of scripless shares delivered may be different due to 
the calculation basis for the report preparation. 
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VI. If the company or its affiliates have experienced financial difficulties in the most recent 
fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report, 
the impact on the company's financial situation: None. 
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Seven. Review and Analysis of Financial Position and Financial Performance, 
and Assessment of Risks 

 

I. Review and analysis of financial status 

Unit: NT$ thousand 

 

  

Item 2022 2021 

Increase 

(decrease) 

amount 

Ratio of change 

(%) 

Difference 

explanation 

Current assets 848,335 1,020,386 (172,051) -16.86%  

Property, plant, and 

equipment 
347,729 349,508 (1,779) -0.51%  

Intangible assets 38 88 (50) -56.82% 1 

Other assets 74,590 37,813 36,777 97.26% 2 

Total assets 1,270,692 1,407,795 (137,103) -9.74%  

Current liabilities 121,397 203,821 (82,424) -40.44% 3 

Non-current liabilities 85,316 64,301 21,015 32.68% 4 

Total liabilities 206,713 268,122 (61,409) -22.90% 5 

Share capital 610,560 610,560 -- --  

Capital surplus 53,309 53,309 -- --  

Retained earnings 400,110 475,804 (75,694) -15.91%  

Unrealized gains or 

losses from available-for-

sale financial assets 

-- -- -- --  

Total equity 1,063,979 1,139,673 (75,694) -6.64%  

Analysis of changes in the increase/decrease: 

1. Intangible assets decreased by NT$50 thousand, or 56.82% for the period, compared to the previous 

period, mainly due to the amortization of computer software costs for the period.  

2. Other assets increased by NT$36,777 thousand, or 97.26% for the period, compared to the previous 

period, mainly due to the addition of right-of-use assets. 

3. Current liabilities decreased by NT$82,424 thousand or 40.44%, compared to the previous period, 

mainly due to the decrease in operating revenue in Q4 from the same period of the previous year, 

resulting in the decrease in accounts payable and notes payable. 

4. Non-current liabilities increased by NT$21,015 thousand, or 32.68% compared to the previous 

period, mainly due to the increase in lease liabilities and provision for liabilities for the period. 

5. Total liabilities decreased by NT$61,409 thousand, or 22.90% for the period, mainly due to the 

decrease in operating revenues in the Q4 compared to the same period last year, resulting in a 

simultaneous decrease in current liabilities. 
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II. Review and analysis of financial performance 

Unit: NT$ thousand 

  

Item 2022 2021 
Increase 

(decrease) 
amount 

Ratio of 
change (%) 

Difference 
explanation 

Operating revenue 1,134,234 1,148,633 (14,399) -1.25%  

Operating margin 49,267 177,252 (127,985) -72.21% 1 

Operating profit (loss) (27,134) 90,191 (117,325) -130.09% 1 

Non-operating income and 

expenses 
3,779 3,201 578 18.06%  

Net profit (loss) before tax (23,355) 93,392 (116,747) -125.01% 1 

Net income (loss) of continuing 

operations 
(19,191) 77,381 (96,572) -124.80% 1 

Loss from discontinued operations -- -- -- --  

Net income (loss) for the period (19,191) 77,381 (96,572) -124.80% 1 

Other comprehensive income 

(loss) for the period (net amount 

after tax) 

4,553 (1,568) 6,121 -390.37% 2 

Total comprehensive income 

(loss) for the period 
(14,638) 75,813 (90,451) -119.31% 1 

Net profits (losses) attributable to 

the owners of the parent company 
(19,191) 77,381 (96,572) -124.80% 1 

Net profits (losses) attributable to 

non-controlling interests 
-- -- -- --  

Total comprehensive income 

(loss) attributable to the owners of 

the parent company 

(14,638) 75,813 (90,451) -119.31% 1 

Total comprehensive income 

(loss) attributable to non-

controlling equity 

-- -- -- --  

Earnings (loss) per share  (0.31) 1.27 (1.58) -124.41% 1 

Analysis of changes in the increase/decrease: 

1. Operating margin, operating profit and loss, net profit before tax, and net profit for the period decreased by 

NT$127,985 thousand, NT$117,325 thousand, NT$116,747 thousand, and NT$96,572 thousand from the 

previous period, respectively, by 72.21%, 130.09%, 125.01%, and 124.80%. This was due to the global 

inflation caused by the Ukraine-Russian War since the 2022 Q1, which in turn affected the global 

consumption reduction, especially the consumer goods industries. The inventory level of end products in 

the United States is too high. As a result, the price of raw materials has fallen sharply since 2022 Q2, and 

the sales volume has declined sharply. Most of the Company's products are focused on the consumer goods 

related to the textile and sports shoes industries, the impact on revenue and profit was relatively serious. 

Operating margin, operating profit and loss, net profit before tax, and net profit for the period decreased 

from the previous period. 

2. Other comprehensive income increased by NT$6,121 thousand, or 390.37%, mainly due to the increase of 

$7,651 thousand in the remeasurement of the defined benefit plan compared to the previous period. 
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III. Review and analysis of cash flows 

(I) Changes in cash flows during the year: 
Unit: NT$ thousand 

The Company’s 2022 net cash flow was NT$15,633 thousand; cash flow changes from 

activities are as follows: 

1. Operating activities: The net cash inflow from operating activities was NT$117,631 

thousand, mainly due to the decrease in accounts receivable, notes receivable and 

inventories. 

2. Investment: The net cash outflow from investment was NT$11,676 thousand, 

mainly due to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment and prepayment for 

equipment for the period. 

3. Financial activities: The net cash outflow from financial activities was NT$121,588 

thousand, mainly due to the decrease in short-term borrowings and cash dividends 

paid for the period. 

(II) Remedies for projected cash shortfalls and liquidity analysis: 

1. Remedies for projected cash shortfalls: Not applicable. 

2. Liquidity analysis  

 

(III) Liquidity analysis for the coming year: 
Unit: NT$ thousand 

 

  

Cash at the 

beginning of 

the period 

(1) 

Annual net cash 

inflow from 

operating 

activities (2) 

Annual cash 

outflow from 

investments and 

financial 

activities (3) 

Residual cash 

amount 

(1)+(2)+(3) 

Remedies for projected cash 

shortfalls 

Investment 

plan 

Financing 

plan 

353,700 117,631 (133,264) 338,067 - - 

  Year  
Item December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 

Increase (decrease) 
ratio 

Cash flow ratio 96.90% (10.94%) 985.74% 

Cash flow adequacy ratio 98.15% 78.44% 25.13% 

Cash reinvestment ratio 3.07 (3.77%) 181.43% 
Analysis of changes in the increase/decrease: 

1. Cash flow ratio: The increase of 985.74% compared to the previous period was mainly due to the 

increase of net cash flow from operating activities in the current period 

compared to the previous period. 

2. Cash flow adequacy ratio: The increase of 25.13% compared to the previous period was mainly 

due to the increase in net cash flow from operating activities in the 

current period and the past five years. 

3. Cash reinvestment ratio: The increase of 181.43% compared to the previous period was mainly 

due to the increase in net cash flow from operating activities. 

Cash at the 

beginning of 

the period 

Projected full-

year net cash 

flows from 

operating 

activities 

Projected 

full-year cash 

outflow 

Projected cash 

surplus 

(shortfall) 

amount 

Remedies for projected cash 

shortfalls 

Investment 

plan 

Financing 

plan 

338,067 167,506 102,736 402,837 - - 
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1. Projected cash flow changes in 2023: 

(1) Operating activities: Operating revenue and profits are expected from 

operating activities to generate cash inflows. 

(2) Investments: Procurement of fixed assets are expected to generate net cash 

outflows. 

(3) Financial activities: The distribution of cash dividends is expected to generate 

net cash outflows. 

2. Remedies for projected cash shortfalls and liquidity analysis: Not applicable as no 

cash shortfalls are projected for 2023. 

 

IV. Effect upon financial operations of any major capital expenditures in the most recent 
fiscal year: None. 

 

V. Reinvestment policy in the most recent fiscal year, the main reasons for the profits/losses 
generated thereby, the plan for improvement, and investment plans for the coming year: 

In January 2010, the Company established subsidiary Sun Yang Global Co., Ltd.. for the 

manufacturing and sale of shoe and hot melt adhesive. The investment income accounted for using 

the equity method recognized this year was NT$1,021 thousand. Main reason for investment 

income and investment plan for the coming year: 

(I) Main reasons for investment income: 

With the joint efforts of all employees, Sun Yang's revenue amounted to NT$341,369 

thousand in 2022. In response to the needs for differentiated products in the market, the 

Company has changed its business model to improve products and strengthen customer 

services to gain room for profit. In addition to stabilizing customers' acceptance of the 

Company's product quality and orders, the Company has also begun to show profitable 

results after making strategic adjustments to limited sales of non-profitable products. 

Moreover, we are proactively developing products and enhancing customer 

communication and technical service value in an effort to increase the selling price of our 

products for effective profit. Although the new product has not yet been fully accepted by 

the market and the competitors have international brand advantages and control the market 

selling price, the sales volume of the uncompetitive products in the market will be reduced 

from the second half of the year. Due to the fluctuation of raw material prices, Sun Yang 

has increased the selling price of all products, and customers also changed their 

procurement strategies for response. In addition to stabilizing the revenue in the second 

half of the year, the overall profit was better than the first half. 

Nevertheless, Sun Yang continued to improve its production technology and lean 

management of processes, enhance the quality of the staff, while also working with the 

customers in developing new products and equipment maintenance, as well as to control 

raw materials in warehousing. By doing this, total operating costs of the Company were 

well controlled, achieving an annual profit of NT$1,021 thousand. 

Main reasons: 

1. Strictly control the loss of raw materials and reduce the defective rate of finished 

products under the new product trial run and develop new product applications with 

customers. 

2. Adjust product sales strategy, increase sales of high profit products, reduce sales of 

low profit products, and continue to cooperate with customers in new product 

development to improve customers' trust in our products and development technology. 

3. Continue to maintain, sort, and replace the equipment to maintain its stable and 

precise operation. The production quality of products is enhanced year by year. The 

relative operating cost is also reduced by controlling production scheduling and 

reasonable inventory. 

4. In recent years, the awareness of environmental protection has risen, and the number 

of banned chemical items has increased, and the cost of product formula maintenance 
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has also increased. In addition, it is necessary to reposition the value of the products 

to establish a new development and inspection mechanism, which has increased the 

expenditure on research and development and inspection. Therefore, effective control 

of this expense will also increase the profit. 

(II) Investment plan for the coming year: 

1. In an effort to fulfill our commitment of future energy conservation, carbon reduction 

and ESG, aside from focusing on the development of bio-based materials in product 

development projects, we also review the carbon inventory and reduction of carbon 

emissions in the production process to gradually meet the government's carbon 

emission laws and regulations. At the same time, we keep replacing old production 

equipments with new equipments to enhance production efficiency and strengthen 

product development quality. Furthermore, we have set up a complete research and 

sales team to serve as a collaborative service platform to improve the flexibility of 

product sales and provide technical services to provide timely feedback to customers. 

2. Strengthen the formulation of mass production reliability conditions and the 

implementation of systematic management to reduce energy and raw material 

consumption, improve cost control, and continue to deepen the competitiveness of 

our company in the market technical services and product refinement, and comply 

with customer requirements for banned chemical substances and government 

regulations on environmental protection, fire prevention, and building safety, and 

continue to invest in external testing of product testing and implementation of overall 

factory safety and health maintenance improvement projects. In the next five years, 

we will strive to achieve the global carbon emission reduction management and ESG 

goals. 

 

VI. Analysis and assessment of risks in the most recent fiscal year or during the current 
fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report 

(I) The effect upon the company's profits (losses) of interest and exchange rate fluctuations 

and changes in the inflation rate, and response measures to be taken in the future: 

1. The Company’s interest expenditures in 2022 were NT$1,065 thousand, only 

accounting for 0.09% of operating revenue, a slight impact on the Company's profit 

or loss. We are committed to reducing the cost of capital by shortening the collection 

deadline of receivables for early repayments so as to reduce interest expenditures. 

2. The Company’s exchange gains or losses in 2022 were NT$2,152 thousand, 

accounting for 0.19% of operating revenue. In order to respond to exchange rate 

fluctuations, the Finance Department collects information on exchange rate trends 

and strengthens foreign exchange-related information with banks while at the same 

time operating forward exchange at appropriate times. The Company also directly 

repays foreign currency liabilities from the payment of foreign sales to avoid foreign 

currency exchange losses. In terms of the quotation of foreign currency sales, we also 

take into account the impact of exchange rate changes on costs. 

3. At Yong Shun, we keep a close eye on market price fluctuations and maintain an 

interactive relationship with customers and suppliers. Given this, inflation has not 

directly impacted the Company. 

 

(II) Policy regarding high-risk investments, highly leveraged investments, loans to other 

parties, endorsements, guarantees, and derivative instrument transactions; the main 

reasons for the profits/losses generated thereby in the most recent fiscal year; and 

response measures to be taken in the future: 

1. The Company does not engage in high-risk investments, highly leveraged 

investments, loan funds to other parties, or make endorsements/guarantees. To strive 

for prudent management, improve the financial structure and avoid unnecessary 

operational risks, we planned to prohibit the loaning funds to other parties or making 

endorsements/guarantees for others. On March 15, 2006, the Board of Directors 
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approved to abolish the “Operating Procedures for Making of Endorsements and 

Guarantees” and “Operating Procedures for Loaning Funds to Others”, which was 

submitted to and passed by the 2006 annual general meeting. 

2. In order to effectively control exchange rate risks, the Company collects the latest 

market information and economic data. Meanwhile, we also grasp the changes in 

interest rates and exchange rates and appropriately engage in the pre-purchase of 

forward foreign exchange derivative transactions. In doing this, we stabilize operating 

costs while achieving the purpose of hedging. For relevant operating procedures, 

please refer to the provisions of the Company's “Regulations Governing the 

Acquisition and Disposal of Assets”. 

 

(III) Research and development work to be carried out in the future, and expected 

expenditures for research and development work: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(IV) Effect on the company's financial operations of important policies adopted and changes 

in the legal environment in Taiwan and abroad, and measures to be taken in response: 

We keep a close eye on changes in important domestic and foreign policies and 

laws. The impact of these changes on the Company is evaluated. The Company’s 

financial operations were not affected by changes in important domestic and foreign 

policies and laws in the most recent fiscal year. 

 

(V) Effect on the company's financial operations of developments in science and technology 

as well as industrial change, and measures to be taken in response: 

We pay close attention to technological changes at all times and assign specialists 

to assess the overall impact on the Company and future developments depending on the 

situation. This way, we are able to better respond to the impact of technological changes 

on the Company’s finances. The Company was not impacted by technological changes 

in the most recent fiscal year. 

 

(VI) Effect on the company's crisis management of changes in the company's corporate image, 

and measures to be taken in response: 

We have always been a law-abiding enterprise and strive for maintaining a good 

corporate image. Moreover, we fulfill our business philosophy of providing the best 

service to customers to achieve the goal of giving back to society. There were no 

corporate image changes in the most recent fiscal year. 

 

(VII) Expected benefits and possible risks associated with any mergers and acquisitions, and 

mitigation measures being or to be taken: The Company has no M&A plans. 

 

(VIII) Expected benefits and possible risks associated with any plant expansion, and measures 

to be taken in response: The Company has no plans for plant expansion. 

  

R&D plan 
Current progress of 

future R&D plan 
R&D expenses 

reinvested 

Development and application of environment-
friendly waterproof thermoplastic urethane resin 

Commercialization 
of R&D testing 

NT$1,500 
thousand 

Continue the development and application of 
bio-based 1.3PDO (organic polyol) in PU resin 

Commercialization 
of R&D testing 

NT$1,500 
thousand 

Development and application of 
poly(terephthalate) engineering plastics resin 

Commercialization 
of R&D testing 

NT$1,500 
thousand 

Development and application of C-5 
dicyclopentadiene in unsaturated polyester resin 

Commercialization 
of R&D testing 

NT$1,500 
thousand 
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(IX) Risks associated with any concentration of sales or purchasing operations, and measures 

to be taken in response: 

The Company has approximately three customers whose sales account for more 

than 10% of the Company's total revenue. As our operational objective is to continue to 

develop new customers, there is no concentration of sales. The Company has 

approximately three suppliers whose purchases account for more than 10% of the 

Company’s total purchases. These suppliers have been working with the Company for a 

long period of time. Moreover, as the Procurement Department takes a proactive 

approach to developing new sources of goods while the R&D Department conducts tests 

and trials on different raw materials, there is no concentration of purchases. 

 

(X) Effect upon and risk to the company in the event a major quantity of shares belonging to 

a director or shareholder holding more than 10% of the shares of the company has been 

transferred or has otherwise changed hands, and measures to be taken in response: 

The Company’s directors or shareholders holding more than 10% of the shares of 

the Company did not transfer a major quantity of shares or change hands. 

 

(XI) Effect upon and risk to the company associated with any change in governance personnel, 

and measures to be taken in response: 

There was no change in governance personnel as the shareholdings of the 

Company’s directors and major shareholders are stable. 

 

(XII) List major litigious, non-litigious or administrative disputes that involve any company 

director, the general manager, any person with actual responsibility, any major 

shareholder holding a stake of more than 10%, or any subordinate companies and have 

been concluded by means of a final and unappealable judgment, or are still under 

litigation; where such a dispute could materially affect shareholders' equity or the prices 

of the company's securities, disclose the facts of the dispute, amount of money at stake 

in the dispute, the date of litigation commencement, the main parties to the dispute, and 

the status of the dispute as of the date of publication of the annual report: 

This did not happen to the Company. 

 

(XIII) Other important risks and measures to be taken in response: None. 

 

VII. Other important matters: None. 
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Eight. Special Items to Be Included 

 

I. Information on affiliates 

(I) Consolidated Business Report of Affiliates 

1. Organizational chart of affiliates 

 

 
 
 
 
  

 

 

 

2. Basic information of each affiliate 

Unit: NT$ thousand 

 

3. Information on the same shareholders who are presumed to have a relationship of 

control and subordination: None 

4. Industries covered by the businesses operated by the affiliates as a whole: Chemical 

manufacturing industry 

5. Information on directors, supervisors and general managers of each affiliate 

Unit: Shares; % 

 

Company name 
Date of 

incorporation 
Address 

Paid-in 
capital 
amount 

Main business or 
production items 

Sun Yang 

Global Co., 

Ltd. 

2010.01.08 

11F., No. 168, 

Songjiang Road, 

Taipei, Taiwan 

50,000 
Manufacturing and sale of 

shoe and hot melt adhesive 

Company name Title Representative name 

Shareholding 

Number of 

Shares 

Percentage of 

shareholding % 

Sun Yang Global 

Co., Ltd. 

Chairma

n 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

Representative: Lin, Tsyr-Huan 
5,000,000 100% 

Sun Yang 

Global Co., Ltd. 
Director 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

Representative: Tsai, Cheng-Fung 
5,000,000 100% 

Sun Yang 

Global Co., Ltd. 
Director 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

Representative:  

Lin Wu, Fang-Mei 

5,000,000 100% 

Sun Yang 

Global Co., Ltd. 

Supervis

or 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

Representative: Tsai, Chi-Lung 
5,000,000 100% 

Sun Yang 

Global Co., Ltd. 

General 

Manager 
Shih, Kun-Chin - - 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

Capital NT$610,560 thousand 

Sun Yang Global Co., Ltd. 

Capital NT$50,000 thousand 

100.00% 
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6. Business overview of affiliates 

Unit: NT$ thousand/NT$ 

7. The Company’s affiliates did not loan funds to others, nor did they provide 

endorsements/guarantees. 

 

(II) Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliates:  

 

Statement of Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Companies 

For the year 2022 (January 1, 2022, to December 31, 2022), the companies that should be included in 

the consolidated financial statements of affiliated companies in accordance with the "Regulations Governing 

the Preparation of Consolidated Statements of Operations of Affiliated Companies and Related Party Reports" 

are the same as those that should be included in the consolidated financial statements of parent and subsidiary 

companies in accordance with IFRS 10, and the information required to be disclosed in the consolidated 

financial statements of affiliated companies has already been disclosed in the aforementioned consolidated 

financial statements of parent and subsidiary companies, therefore no separate consolidated financial 

statements of the affiliated companies are prepared. 

We hereby state the above. 

 

 

 Company name: Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

 

 Chairman: Tsai Cheng-Fung 

 

 

 

March 13, 2023 

 
 

(III) Affiliation Report: None. 
 
  

Company 

name 

Capital 

amount 
Total assets 

Total 

liabilities 

Net 

value 

Operating 

revenue 

Income 

before 

income tax 

Current net 

profit 

(after tax) 

Earnings 

per share 

(after tax) 

Sun Yang 

Global Co., 

Ltd. 

50,000 187,825 125,261 62,564 341,369 1,005 1,021 0.20 
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II. Private placement of securities in the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal 
year up to the date of publication of the annual report: None. 

 

III. Holding or disposal of shares in the company by subsidiaries in the most recent fiscal year 
or during the current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report: None. 

 

IV. Other matters that require additional description: The Company completed all 
commitments of a TPEx-listed company. 

 

V. Companies listed on the TWSE and TPEx shall include an explanation of any material 
differences from the rules of the Republic of China (Taiwan) in relation to the protection 
of shareholder equity: Not applicable. 

 
 

Nine. Any of the Situations Listed in Article 36, Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 2 of 
the Securities and Exchange Act, Which Might Materially Affect 
Shareholders' Equity or the Price of the Company's Securities, Occurred 
in the Most Recent Fiscal Year or During the Current Fiscal Year Up to 
the Date of Publication of the Annual Report: None.



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

 

 

Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung 


